AFPCL

FFBL POWER COMPANY LIMITED

Dated:June 17, 2025
To,
The Registrar
National Electric Power Regulatory Authority
NEPRA Tower, Attaturk Avenue (East)
Sector G-5/1, Islamabad

Subject: APPLICATION FOR AMENDMENT IN ELECTRIC POWER SUPPLY LICENCE

AND WITHDRAWAL OF HOLD REQUEST
With reference to NEPRA's letter dated April 7, 2025, regarding the submission of the Electric
Power Supply Licence {(EPSL) and Licensee Proposed Modification (LPM) by FFBL Power
Company Limited (FPCL), we hereby submit a request for amendment in the Electric Power
Supply License (EPSL) in line with the revised application and attached supporting
documents.
We hereby inform NEPRA that the EPSL application has now been made fully consistent with
the LPM, reflecting removal of the EPCL case from the scope of power supply. As such, there
is no proposed enhancement in generation capacity, and electric power will now be supplied
sotely to FonGreen Silicon Technologies {(FOST).
In view of this alignment and clarification, we formally request NEPRA to:

1. Withdraw the hold request earlier submitted by FPCL vide letter dated April 23, 2025.
Proceed with the processing of the updated Electric Power Supply License.

3. Apply the licence fee of PKR 2,465,133/-, already paid with the original EPSL application
dated March 27, 2025, to this updated application, as no niaterial change in the scope of
licensing has occurred that would warrant the payment of a new fee.

We trust that this submission fulfills NEPRA’s requirements, and we remain available for any
further information or'¢larification that may be needed.

Yours Sincerely

Lt Col Ali Siddiq (Retd)
Company Secretary

Authonative
FFBL Po ompany Limited

FFBL Tower C1 - C2. Sectgr B. Jinnah Boulevard, DHA Phase Il Islamahad, Pakistan
Tel No:-—92 51 876 3322, Fax No:- —92 X1 876 2305 www.ipcl.com
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‘FFBL POWER GOMPANY LIMITED.

R ' RESOLUTION NO. C01/ 3025
*RESOLVED THAT the Company is hereby auth
Power Generation License. As may be required, including butnot limited to?-
" a) - Sale of power to new Bulk Power Cofisuners (B!

b) Addition of generation capacity as deemed suitable.”

«FORTHER RESOLVED THAT the

Distribution, Supply and S pecial Purpos¢ Trapsmission Lifie or filing 4 Moti
tariffs and licenses, as well as License Proposed Modification (LPM),

changes.in.,

7 ! Company is also authorized to file or Sﬂﬁr;n't ih
Nationa! Electric Power Reguiatory - Authority (NEl:RA} or any.other authority, -
tariffs, licenses ;hcludin%?qgfgﬁ@eneraﬁong ‘

on for Leave for Review-agaitist

_ grecments with FFC and KE efc, together with all other allied docur
:" limited to any'and alt undertakings, affidavits, securties et¢., as may be regqf;ed? {o effectuate such filings

. . ‘% ] & ;' ) o . .
otized to ﬁle,_appqua'ti,q‘né and petitions; for obtaining
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or Tespond thereto; or file any other applications or dogurments to enable the Company to implement the.
is ﬁn‘ther authorized to make any

foregoing resolutions‘and to undertake associated activities, The Company i
" oral or written representations, applica

: : ns, Or
regards to the above authorizations X

. EURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Company is authorized 46 carzy ot &ll supplene
- actions necessary for the implementatior and completion of the ab
- all applicableTaws and regulations.”

“FURTHERRESOLVED THAT any one individual
{6 act on behaif of the Company to-sign, exesut

fiill effect to these resolutions:
Group Ar . ’ R GroupB:
- Mr-Muhammatl Nauman Younas
" Mr. Bashir Muhammad
. Lt Co! Ali Siddig {Retd)

' “FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the manageraent is authorized to take, al .
hnical adyisors, etc., to. facilitate and complete’ the'above hatters.™

engagement of legal, financia], and €€
«FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Comparly Secretary be and
copy of this resolution to all <oncerned authorities, regulatory ‘bodies, count

entities as may be required for fmplementation.”

‘This ;gsolﬁﬁon is hergby approv
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Applicationfor supply License along with Yes.The requ isite.
1 Affidavit, Authqrization from Board pursuant to docqments are enclosed
1 } Regulation (1] of the Regulations. w:th the Apbl‘catfo:‘a .
2 ' ] Applica‘hoﬁ Fee pursuant to Regulation 3 (1) of Bai nk bra frAttache g
‘ : the Regulations.. : C it e
e ) "Application in Trlpl' cate pnrsharitto Régulat!onB N ; i ;i
3 | . i I YES.:-‘ - HE.
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4 - {Inforination Relaxlngto ability toaccess |t Attached i
27 | :\f(Xl; Co cunsmermeten‘ngsystemSand other 3[ sé :
. S sewmes/eqmpment ' e . el _, i )
1 -1 ¢ | Information Relating to basis ofcommonsemces 1] Attached fi0 -
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e ofﬁssemnca—lﬂetcommnments ! i ‘? ; 3
"  An aﬁidamt by authorized officer to fufil the 5 Attathed i
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: and data shall, u,rﬂel provided otherwise under 1 ' "; w" be fuﬂ?illedz ;
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CERTIFICATE OFINCORPORATION.

32 of the Compaties Oidinaice, 1984 (XLV

e Universal Tentification No.. 0088996

day incorporated under the¥ N
that the sompany is limited |
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FFBL Power Company l.lmtted A

PRQSPEC‘[US SRR

_ Entrodution of the Company

4' . co:npanymcnrpprated mJune2014asa Special EurposeVegldeg(SPV) forestaf:!‘shmg

" . aCoal, Powar?}ant {CPP} at Port Qasim, Karacﬁl The Compahy start@ its’ Cqmtnerchl
" Operation jiy May:aol? R TEME Ty
’; : _' FPClisa whnﬂy ownerd sub.,swluary‘cff Fanquertdazer f:mhpény énd FaU]l Gra p (FF}

. FRCL is a custo:mged power plant providmg “Power. to ‘hx'?stmg Fertllizei Piant

- (Aromonia, Urea & DAP produetiﬁn units) of FFBL@ 60 Hfalongwﬁh Fowei' Export fo:

g - H {4

!Y" ; o+ d ’

R e RN i &

: Sahent Features of the Facrl:ty

;‘" " The ;:oa? powerpfam (CPP) oF fP;:l; is {ocated at‘Porf Qas:m Kaliat:?n, in the provmce
;| of Sindh, tovering apptoximately 50- acres. of-land. The fac:hty has the c;pac:ty to
- generate: 500 Tons Per Hour (TPH) af steam - through two (02) equaf—capﬁc:ty

Circulating Flutd’uéd B.ed (CFB) high-pressure coa!—f‘ red bonlers The mstalfed capat:lty
. pf the exnstmg plant is 118 MW, A A L i_ _:_,, % ..

. AS part oF“the modification, the new project will mmrppréte mednﬁt:at:on io the -
existing, S?S"tem,, The modification involves the addition of FonGreem thcon

. Tg;hrrplogtee L:mrteg[ (FoST) “as BPC* to-the turrent systent, which hasa tetar ca%uacuiy
y . of TIS MWL W:thlrrthus, >01 MW will be.supplied via a dedi cated F oederfrom thé FPCL

bétteryhmxffutheFoSTb’a;tEervhm:t A A S s ;
‘—Thesa{*eﬁtfeaturesoffhe facility are quilinéd below: * . .
" BN It
'5‘: RS
-

o
e N ———

_EFBL Power Company Umntecft"FFCL" or the,’?Compahy”) man nhsted publscghmited

wt

R

0 e



' P

A . D8

FPCL BN B
FFBL Power Campany Limited -~ - S SRS

| s st e z‘;:,i"é::;f;%;;;k‘““““af%"f'?;;
Typeoffacgllty Coal Fired The:mai iner Plant, i ’ y
. | Fuel R o uCoa] f f “{iy _
a‘m"e,gs L FFC, K—Electncand EoSI(FoS‘[asa h{ew gpc;t
..Tataremsslnstalledapaaty [aasmw T Ae
| rant conﬁkuranou ;;i’;":&%ﬁf "":i“f"’“" Sy |
‘Lﬁ‘e oifaal:}y 30years I ,. | 1
i
L

Proposed Investment

: ‘Thé pwpuse& power suppl\j tc tlie new ‘Bulk ‘Power Corrsumefs (BPCs), riamefy
. FonGreen Sllu:on Techinclogies Lirited (FaST): anvnlvathe‘fallowﬂng Capttalstru’ttures:

PmSuﬁlenfmsuucmreforFoS? R L] i§
Total Capital Expenditure (SAPEXJ'USD 3.t milliom.. . . e ;
. 'Financihg Sfructuré* The entire investment will be equuty-ﬁnancecl bythé Faujtﬁroup‘
.. with no éxterual debt eomponent. - SRR N E i v

" This arrang,e,mem:ensurés ‘timely deplayment of mfrasﬂ‘ﬂ&ufe wrtﬁm FPCLs exlsnrig
facility footprir nt, with full owhership-and Tunding borne by the prp;ect’sporisa Py

9?'

‘This finaricial structure reflects the commercial \uab:hty and bankabalm;* of the project
£pmponents, wﬂfho_ut requur"ng any increase in FPCL's hcensgd generanon cabac:ty
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World Earik;[ Imtetnationi i
o Standards: Ellg Study was, submitted ‘to the' S“ndh Enqunmentaf Protett:o

Public and' Technical” hearing . was conductad by s

FPCL T
FFBL Power€ompany lelted N -i e

Socna! and Enwronmental impact of the Proposed Facuhty

FPCL has camedout a detailed Environmentat im

pact ASsessment Study [ "EIA 5tu dy"
through M/s Hagler Baily i

in accordance with the standards aniﬂ’requarements ‘of the
al Finance Corporatzo‘n an¢NatuonaE£nvar0’nmentaf

niAgerrcg o
§E-f

,;:.

(*SEPA") andwassubmluedforapproyal g5 o i

EPA and: _N%C ITIO

EpAfzam,(os[M]ElA[os fmm SEPA was granted to the prOJectu SR .
" FPCL remams t:ammlttesi to £enviroomental comphance in rts operat;on Jnﬂ will -
develop pmcesses and programs to, proactwely prevent and maf'gate any posszﬁle

advers‘alm‘pactsohthe env:ronm:ent e "i ot Y E' s
; SEREE 1y
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PCL BN

}
FFBL Power Company Limited | o
e t :i . " P
- L COMPANY PRBFILE | ek
SRR O UR HISTORY ' | ‘ I
» o FPCi isan unllstéd private limited company established as aSpecua] PurpoSe Vehxcle [SPV])
. f ﬁy fhe Sponscjr in June 2014, The Company started :tsCommerczal Gperat:on m Malel?
m FF’CL is 3 custurmzed power plant praviding “Steam 8, Power to exust‘hg’ Femllzer Plant.
it . -(Ammoni, Urea& DAP production units} of FEC (formeﬂv FFBI:.! @ 60 Az along wnth Power
gagportto Na’aonal Gr:d @ 50 Hz". The salrentfeaturesaf ex:stmé FPCL plant arn::i as.under:
, T © £ L
i ':,:_,?’. AR .';k : s ) ~ i.;! ) §§§
‘ ln&talléci Power { 118 MW toal iF‘Dwer Prpjecﬁg if
- :_ Chgnts- T

1T T iistaledPower | OLXBOMW | 02;{244 01X 10MW |

o fT - Frequensy | - 50 ms'yst‘é}ﬁ G HiS‘ys‘tem 1
b o TS i ' Power | T 52MW . ;ZIIVIW .. -
P L NetSupplies = |, et e I AR
. . .o oo -] Steam | e A 20p MTIHF .

B‘o?iprj'férl;ﬁ}nofdg} T Cnrcuiatmg F!uaduze Beﬂ,Fuel Ftejub!e,
, | 3; R

PERFORMACE AD PRODUCTION

- »'FPCL“@ powet and steam generation plantjs-a mbdern faca!nty equped w:th“an advariteﬂ
f . bisttibuted CointrofSystem (DS} to ensure safe ancf smébth opgratlcns The uﬂjlty supply
. capacities are s follows: _ alle s 0 ik

; "_Steam_ _Asper EFC (formerly FFBL) deman’d ,
Power @ 60Hz(FFC) . S 5BMW -
Power @ 50 Hz (Grid) _ L L GOMW

OUR DISTINCTION

‘ FP(;L is the caly power pTant in Paklstan generating elex:tnc:lty at both RSO'i-I#z‘ dnd 60 Hz,
" frequencies, t’nereby making a significant contribution to t'!wf energy sector by supplying

' powératég Hz to FFC {farmterly FFBL fertilizer complex and expo rting power at 50 Hzto the
- nationat grid.’ '




% [}

BN
B

';'.__«4,; Fouudat"onWmd Eﬁergy—ll.lm:taﬂ ;

Z “of FFBL, : . c
*115"55 2 fau;iCementhmpanvLim'ted(FCCL) SRR ol ;g

-~ FPCL p
. FFBL Power Company Limited

o

| ‘1. Pakistan: MarocPhosphoreSA (PMP) Morocco Dok

Phosphonc#\cld, being the main raw material far DAP prbductlori is bemg nmported from

": Morocco. Gffice Cheuf' e des Phosphates (OCP), Morocco, the blggest :ndustnal group of

l('ngdon'r of Morcxcco ang the Fauji Group (Faup Foundation, FF& and FFBL) entered intoa .
-, joint venture fo gnsure thé continuous supply of Phosphonc Ac:d Cammerc:ak product:un e

: " and shipment: to FFBL started in'Aprit 2008 andMav 2008 respedt:vely,. Piant is; desugnedto .

produce 375 000 MT per'yea rof Phos acid thus meet,mgthe tpta reqwrement Df DAP plant

o t‘ f;r'—f

£, i
i :
2

Tbe. Fauji cement {FeCL) operates one of the most eff' crent an? well-malptame& cemenf’
jpla htsin Paklsfati which consumesappfoxlm’ately 50% tess: e*rrergyw;th qumk’er prda liction
tur’naround f’ mie. Its mu!tkfuel burmﬁgtapab"hty a[[ow:s it fo use either hatural gasi coalar

L f f'umace oil for its pperations and further optimizing its Fuel Eff“crencv to lmprove operating

: ":,-”;f “margins. FCCL's management is also comp’osed of seriior stech mcal personnet with vast
expenenceof ioca[tﬁmentsector. L g & C l
3 . Foundation Wmd Energy I Limiited - - s - | 5

. ; .t “
"The total mvestmen’t required for FWEL-T lsaround us $i28 mﬁl:an with débt,equ:ty ratic
- of 75%:25%. The tending for the projett is arrahged from ¥ore ign and Iocal Banks witha
- distribution of 656 % & 34% respectively. Asian Development ‘Bank and Islam:c D‘evelopment .

_Banksarethe Lead Foreign Lendérs while National Bank of Pakistams the Léaﬂ !.ocaT Lender.

: Tl‘te equity financing for the projett is being arranged by Fauy Fouridatlon z(30%), Fauji

Fertilizer Bin, Qasam (35%) and Cap-Asia (A M‘a1aysran Prwate Equ:ty Fm‘n 35%)

2
i ;
The total 'h\(éStméht requared for FWEL-l arourtd usé &27 m‘lfxon wnth debt eqlnty tatio
-af 75 %: 25 %. “l‘helend”hg for the project is arranged frorm‘oréagn and lbtal banks witha -

.15!

) :_ dlStrlbL[thB of 66 % & 34% respectively. Asian Developmerit | Ba nk and lslam‘lc Development :

- Banks are the Lead Foreign {enders while Nafional Bank: of Paki’stan |s the ‘Lead Local

. Lender. The equnty financing for the project is being arranged by Fauji Foundatlon (20%),

Fauji Fertnllzgr Bin Qasim (35%), Cap Asia (A Malaysnan Prwam Eqmty Flrm 2592) and Tapal
Group (20%’) .
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" FFBL Power Company Limited

L EXPERIENCE IN ELECTR!CITY INDUSTRY

FPCL

.l 1
i
{

FAUJI GROUP ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

. FauererfﬂizerGQmpany Limited | > _ ,l . ;

, *'  Fatjf Foundanen _ ' ; ;; f
- " »,  bakistan MarocPﬁoSp,horﬁSA o | | Ji
[lounweriture i:etw@en Faui yGrOUp, Pak1stan&0CP Gr:oUp Morocc‘ g’
Eqmdatibnwiﬁdfnergv*u ' ? i r
L acemcmnunted 5] o
R 'Faujiceréalé h T 4 i g
,' . Fouhdataon Gas. - | o | . ; f
: 7 ;'Faupltab.lr\nfala?gwercompany !.lmlted L a X .;ha
. FoundaIlqriPo‘weermpanv Limited .)' ] _'I-j!»: I o % ;
aTxPetrglJeum Company Limited - K o i f j 8 %a
&' Fauji Aktiar Portia Marine Terminal | e g ?

% Fauji Gnl“l'armmai And Distribution K - | - éi

i qundaﬁan Securmes' (Pvt) Limited ﬁ L | ;

.~ = AskariBank Limited ' . : ' : & ;?
. Agkax};{;ém,en’tﬁommny. N g 3‘

FPCL operates a state-of-ﬂTe-arf u:tll'tnes it to prowde unhtues like e!ectncal power arid
steam to FFE formerly FFRL) Ammonia, Urea, DAR, Prodacﬁ Hand[mg& Smpment, and off-
site facilities, aSWeII as e!ectnca! power to K-Electsic (KE}. é : ; g

¥ ) i

" This unit mamly consists of two (02 Circulating Fluidized Bed 1CFB§ Bo:lers, each havinga

capacity afZSU tons/hr, and four (04) Stea mTurbmes’: WO ((}2) (;ondensmg Steam Turbines
of 24 MW .gach one (01] Back Pressure Steam Tﬁrbm.e of 10 M.W and one (013 Condensmg

at i

- Stéam Tﬂrhm’e af 60 MW capacity for power export to K-Eléctn? ¥ o L

The plant is b‘emg ‘operated and maintaited by highly trameﬁ‘ pmfessionals whﬁ ensure
unintetrupted supply of power tp both FFC and K—Eiectnc With- minimum: autages All
electrical roaintenance works are carried but Wifhﬂ‘l the plant‘ through a:weli—esrabhshed
sléctrical and instrumentation workshop. ‘ S
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FPCL - g
FFBL Power Compaﬁy Limited | -

t

B -\ ) GROUP OTHER ELECTRICITY BUSINESS N ’

E

I N FAU,I! KABIRWALA POWER COMPANY LTD [FKPCL) * | RN

's 1%-

Fauji Kabxrwala Power Plarit is a 157 MW Combmed Cycle Power Plaht Iocated near

Kabirwala, District Kbanewal, Fauji Foundation -set up this US S 170, m:lhon plant in .
co[[,aborat;orr Messrs. Ef Paso Energy Iﬁtemat;onal USA {(now replaced by Messrs  Pendekar _
.7 .Kabirwala Power Campany of Malaysia) with debt equity ratio of 75:25. AD&and EDC of
i . Cariada have f'n”anced amajor por;tlgr;gfthe debt - { i -? ; ] § '

!‘

" The project tommenced commertial ooeratzonsbn 21 0ct1999 and ever s:,nce us’ suppfymg

v, : I )
‘i 2. FOUNDATION POWER CQMPANY :mmsm LID (FPCDLI i S5 |

«+ -Thé Faujr Fo*undanon had reg'stered with’ PFIB for setting up @

power to the Naﬁoﬂat Gtid. Subject fo a\tailabllity of gas, egpans:on in ltS’t‘ap‘:BClt\f isalso

undercons;d‘eratxon > _ : | %L ',§~ ! gg' :

.!, 1,3 R

* The plan”t % bemg of.‘ferateﬁ and ma:nxameﬁ by own englneers. an staff Du‘rmg tEhe lastten
b “a,cears of aperation, it hasachieved the highestrateof ava :Iabz?t\( ased ofvits perfd’rmance
. the plant has beéen declared the world's Best Combined C\{cle Plant by; Siemens. /-
e ,WestxnghoUSe and awarded New Corpkrined Cycl'e Power Plant of theYear Award for the

: Yéars 2000, 2001 2002 and 2004, ' : ‘| ‘ L

R B
%;;
:”

MW Gas' @aSed Power
" Plant mDaharlZl (Sindh] in April 2004. Foundation Power Congpank/ Dah*arks I:lm‘ted (FPEDL)

L% was thus incorporated ig Naveniber 2005. The Foundation Stdne laying’ ceremony was
! presided over by the then President of the Ist amic Republic o | Pakistan, Beneraﬂ Pervez

Musharraf; NI{M], TBt, on 24 May 2007 at Bahark: Con‘Strutt:or; work startecf m October

i 2007 under M/s Doosan Hegvy Industries and Construction Compaﬁy of South Korea The

* Uinifed, The project costwas approxiately US$ 217 millon. - | i

* project was financed by a consortium ¢f 14 focal banks; Ted bv,g Askari Commé:'cuai[ Bank

i ;'f."

* The'installed combmed Cycle Power Plant (Gas Turbme of GE; USA &‘St'eam Tu rblma of Fu jiy

Japan) has a gross output af 202 MW, it employs modern ‘technoldgy Under strict

interpational and envitanment friendly standards. The fuel source, from: Mar: Dee’g Well

-; No. 6, has low BTU gas, which lsotﬁerwzse ynsuitable for domesglc and mdustrna1 uses. By
" %he Grace of Alrriighty Allah, the plaat i js fully operatuouafsmce May 2011 ancf cfontnbutmg

.. ‘178 MV electricity to-the Natianat Grid at comparatively. lower éost*than other IPPs. This .

output is suffi cient to illuminate 250,000 utban homes or meet the needs of 70 me‘dmm

f

. sized {nﬂustnafumts, or 1,500 small sized villages.” . g §f )

P

FPCDLer&tgred into an agreement with KEPCO KPS PlantSerwc,es and Engin;e:e’giri;g Company
 Limited of South Korea for Operation and Maintenance. bl
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o progess, Fauji Faundatior, ina private deal, acquired 100% share

:’FFB'— Power Company Limited ' o

i 'The regzstered fo‘ ice of the Company is located ot Faup ‘T owers, ﬁsl'ripu ‘.Rpacj&f Chakla'la,
; .

.
i

i ";*

S FOUNDATION WIND ENERGY — [LIMITED e 2
I light of its v:snon of diversification, Fauji Foundation mmatep acqmsmori ﬁrocess of’

E5 Beacon Enetgy Limited (BEL), 50MW wind energy pro;ect Aﬁetxccessful dufe diligence
Iding irr Beagcoﬁ Energy

Lumted. - , S ; - §
| Beacon Eﬁé‘rgy Limlte'd {BEL) was.3et up by the Beatd‘n house Group (K‘asur:%family) for

“ ’H'i- - :' davelopmg a 50 MW wind anefgy project. I 2005 BELwaS awarcfed 2 deveiopr%lent license

b’y the AEDBforthe constmctlon and operatrombf a ’50 MW wmcf farm near Karach.l.ﬁ
T

; After acqussnt;oﬁ name; of the company has b’een, chan_gedl 10 ’Faundatlon Wmﬂ Energv— '
., Limited (FWEL«-!)a ¥ f I a , N:f .

| ’ i FWEL-] proléct siteis located atKhutti Kun New lsla'ﬁd n the’falv ka er‘pur Sakm oFThafta

: D;str:gt, Project l:es withint the wind corridor ldeﬁtﬁ‘ ed ﬁy AE‘DB for comm ema! wind

5 o 5% projects; ThéGosfernmeﬁt of Sindh, thmugh AEDB has 3“°°amd tand to the pm"ed“The

o totaismeiandarga 51210 acres. ‘_ P ,= s ;«

P.a

; Fa\‘] ii Ferhl:zér Ccmpang‘hmlt ed {Subﬁld“ ary pf Faq}l Foundatlon) is also deVelop‘!ng @ 5'(5 MW
’ Pm;ex:t thampnr, District Thatta Sitdh. . . : f,_j i :" ‘ '

' The totaf investment required for FWEL-Tis around US $ 123 mvlon with debt équtty ratic

. of 75%:25%, The {ending for the project is arranged from fore‘:gh and Iocal ba‘nks with &
t+ distribution of 66 % & 34% respectively.Asiafi Developmen’t Bank and Islamtc DéVeiopment
o Banksarethe Lead Foreign Lendeérs while. National Bankof Paktstams the Lead Eocal Lender.
The equity financing for the project is being arranged by ’Faujs Foandatlon?@oﬁ, Fauii
Ferf' lizer Biti Qasim {35%)and Cap Asia (AMalaysnari Przyate Eq?nty Firm 35%)3 '

The E’ngmeen ng, Procuremgnt and Construction (EPQ) Contracti iof FWEL&lwas 'succeséfully ‘
: ssgned off on August 23; 2011 with M/s Nordex Germanv;l.ead)x& M/s Descon Eng‘ neering

Lzmlted canscsrttum “The EPC.cast is USD 111 million.FWEL-l is to install 20 Norﬂex (Mode!

N-100) wind turblne gengrators. Fach turbine has an mdmdu capaclt\f of generatmg 25 -

. MW The electne:ty generated will be soid to the Central Powe‘r PUrchasnﬁg Agency- {CPPAY

at 132 KVA Natxonal Transmission ard Despatch Company (NTdC) Thatta gnd stanon

" The Gnshore’ Cantractor, M/s Descoit Eng;n*eermg Umlted apd M/s Des,cbn lntegratad*
Projects Limited have been mohilized on site, sirice Decemtmr 2011, for executmg' the
preliminary works for project development. FWEL is targetmg to achleve fmancnal close,
by September 4012. Main works elated 10 consttiiction and erection oﬁwmd turbmes are
" ro commence right after financial clase and will be cbmp!eted within 15, mbnths' fime. The

b ‘.
- £ 1‘_5?_3-

- o
5 Ha

S

R e
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". : The Engin eenng, Prdturement and Cdrfs?l;rucﬁon {EPC} Ccntract oi’;FWEL—Il was ?ucééssfully
. . signéd off on August 23,2011 with M/s Nordex Gerinany {Lead} & M/s Descon Engineering
) .f.lmﬂ:éd conscrtlum “I'ie EPC cost is USD 110 million. The elettnénty generated will bie sold

FPCL I A
FFBL PowerCompany‘Limited ‘ L

' Commercidl Operatlon of FWEL=-[1s eXpected in-4th Quarter of 2013. FWEL-(is ajéb working
- .. with Altematwe Energv Deve!opment Board (AEDB) for seeklng carbon créq,it benefits.

"'-4. FOUNDATION WIND ENERGY - fl (PRIVATE} LIMITED S
= FWE[,—H project site i located at KiiuttiKun New sland in the T aluﬁca Mirpur §akm oFThatta N

T

T
1

District, Pro;ect lies, withim the wind corridor identified_ b AEDB for o mercial wind .
y !“ &

.+ 'projects. The Goviernment of Siridfy, through AEDB has allocated Land 1o’ tha project. The -
- & total site landareausisssatreﬁ, ” co 2 : * L

Falji Fertrhzer Co’&‘hpany limited (Subs:d;aryvf’ Faujt FOUndatlon} l; also deve[opmg a 50 MW “

. Projectin Jhan’\pir, Dlstnct Thatta Sindh. . S N ;f

, &

. . The total m\zesiment requured for FWEL-11 7 arovnd US$ 127 mul]wn ‘with deht équ:ty ratia”
< 'of 75 %: 25 %.; The Lendmg for the. pro;ect i$ arranged frqm forelgn and fccal banks withd. .
- distribution of B6 % & 34% respectivly. Asian Degvelopment Barﬂgand !slamlc Devélopmem -
Banks: are the: Lead ;Fore:gn Lenders while Natwn‘al Bank of. Pék;stan is theI f_tad Local -
‘ _Lénder The equ:ty financing for the project is beir(g arranged by‘ Fauu Fodhd”ation {20%),
" 'Fauji Fertilizer Bm Qasim {35%), Cap: Asxa (A Malays;an anata Equlty me 25%) and Tapal

v ?‘5“’

to the Centfal’ Power Burchasing Aggnty CCPPA) at 132 KVA. Natxonai Transrp1ss:on and
bl

SR Dispatch Company(NTDE} Thattagnd station. j - ' ;b_

" Public Hearing for Tariff determination with National Electric PoWefr Regutatbgy Authority
. {NEPRAJ was held on Oct. 18, 2011. FWEL-Il was awarded Tanff by NEPRA orr ‘March 16,

2012 - 3 i

The Qnshore Cﬁntractor M/s Descon ‘E‘ng‘treermg Lx:mted and MTS Descon% Integrated

,._ Projects Limited have beef mobilized on site, since December 2011 for executmg the

. prehmma;y works for project develoﬂmer,it; FWEL-Il is tafgeting o athleve ﬁnancnal close

-+ by September 2012, Mair Works related to. construction.and eregtion of wznd furbmes are

- _ to commence rught: after financial clase arid will be comple:ted wrghxrr 15 months xume The

- Commercial Opera"tlon of FWEL-I] is'expected in 4tthJ"arterof 20;[3 FWEL—H 1&3150 working
*~ with Alternative Eaergy Development Baard {AEDB) for seekmg carbbn crednt beneﬁts,

o

I

3 B
11"
I
ER

R 4.0 -
b 3

S . WM‘M»J



BFPRCL FFBL Power Company Limited (FPCL)

PR OB LTI

PROJECT OVERVIEW

A% .- BACKGROUND .’

FFBL Power Company Limited (“FPCL” or the “Company”) is an unlisted public limited
company incorporated in June 2014 as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) for etablishing a
Coal Power Plant (CPP) at Port Qasim, Karachi. The Company started its |Commercial
Operation in May 2017.

FPCL is a customized power plant providing “Steam & Power to existing Fertilizer Plant
{Ammonia, Urea & DAP production units} of FFC (formerly FFBL) @ 60 Hz along with Power
Export to National Grid @ 50 Hz”. The salient features of existing FPCL plant are as under:

Installed Power 118 MW Coal Power Project
Clients
Installed Power 01 x 60 MW 02x24+01x10 MW
Frequency 50 Hz System 60 Hz Systemn
Power 52 MW 21 MW
Net Supplies
Steam - 200 MT/Hr
Boiler Technology Circulating Fluudaze Bed, Fuel Flexible

Table-1 Salient Features of FPCL Comp/ex

FPCL seeks to supply electric power {>01 MW) to the following new Bulk Power Consumer
{BPC) under the regulatory framework of the National Electric Power Regulatofy Authority
(NEPRA):

* FonGreen Silicon Technologies Limited (FoST) via the existing 60 Hz generation facility.

The proposed modification does not involve any enhancement in current plant
infrastructure and is based on the optimized reallocation of power from FPCL’s existing
turbines. This adjustment aims to enhance system load efficiency, reduce idle capacity, and
improve financial viability — all while remaining fully compliant with applicable technical
and regulatory standards.

---ﬁmrfi:'i = guww*‘#‘"’ =T | B i oo g 5y -m,-w pited mr‘ﬁ{:’

BITSITE”
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The project site is located within the existing fertilizer complex of FFC in the Eastern
Industrial Zone, Bin Qasim, Karachi. The site coordinates are 67° 25’ longitude east and 24°
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50’ latitude north, approximately 45 km east/southeast of Karachi. The selects
the essential criteria for site selection, as outlined below:

The facility currently consumes 500,000 MT of imported coal annually (primaril\)
3, ICi-4, and ICI-5) with the boiler operating at full load.

The site benefits from reliable access to power and steam, which are cr
project’s operations.

Water and other essential utilities are available in close proximit
infrastructure development costs and ensuring operational efficiency.

The site’s proximity to the seaport facilitates the import of critical mater
rock phosphate, and ensures cost-effective logistics for equipment and ray

The site is well-connected by existing road infrastructure, ensur
transportation of materials and personnel.

The site’s topographic and geological conditions are suitable for di
minimizing site preparation costs.

The project will have minimal socio-economic and environmental impactd
no requirement for displacement of communities. Additionally, the site h
space for effluent disposal,'ensuring compliance with environmental regul

I
FFBL Power Company Limited (FPCL)

d site meets
tical for the
y, reducing
ials, such as
v materials.
ng smooth

bvelopment,

. as there is
s adequate
ations.

a mix of RB-

ICI-5 coal will be utilized, with detailed specifications provided below. To acconjmodate the

increased demand, the existing coal handling system will run at full load, ensu
operations, optimized utility-consumption, and cost-effective efficiency.

ring smooth

To ensure a consistent and reliable fuel supply, the Company plans to establish
long-term arrangements with selected suppliers as per operational requiremen

LHV 3000 ~ 3400 Kcal / Kg
MOISTURE 45 %
ASH 4%
VOLATILE MATTER 26 %
SULFUR 0.4 % 1

!

medium- to
ks.

<

&
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D7 INTERCONNECTION AND POWER EVACUATION =+ -

FFBL Power Company Limited (FPCL)

The facility is presently connected to K-Electric’s 132 kV néetwork via the 132 kv Dhabeji-

BOC transmission line. Electrical power is generated at 11 kV / 50 Hz with a 1

ated power

factor ranging from 0.8 lagging to 0.9 leading and is stepped up to 132 kV for evacuation to

the grid.

Under the Licensee Proposed Modification (LPM), FPCL proposes to supply electric power to

a new Bulk Power Consumer (BPC), FonGreen Silicon Technologies Limited
power supply will be facilitated through a dedicated feeder operating at either 1
kV, originating from FPCL’s existing 60 Hz system, which is shared with FFC.

(FoOST). The
1kVor13.8

This arrangement ensures that FoST will receive power at the required freguency and

voltage level, independent of the 132 kV K-Electric network. FPCL has engaged
consultant to carry out detailed interconnection studies to ensure system comp

a technical
atibility and

adherence to all applicable regulatory and technical standards.

E.. " ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT -

The proposed modification to FPCL's existing complex aims to enhance power|distribution
efficiency by integrating a new Bulk Power Consumer (BPC). This strategic adjuistment will
optimize existing generation capacity ensuring compliance with environmental regulations
while improving power reliability.

FPCL has conducted a detailed Environmental Impact Assessment Study (E1A) through M/S
Hagler Baily, in line with World Bank/International Finance Corporation standards and
National Environmental Quality Standards (NEQS). The study was submitted o the Sindh
Environmental Protection Agency (SEPA), foliowed by a.public and technical hearing, after
which SEPA granted NOC approval in September 2014,

The EIA Study includes an Environmental Management Plan (EMP) to effectiviely manage
mitigation measures, ensuring that the Project aligns with global environmentdl standards.
The EMP focuses on:

»  Compliance with
environmental standards.

legislative requirements, industry’'s best practices, and
s implementation of a monitoring and mitigation plan to minimize potential impacts.
= Defining roles and responsibilities for FPCL and contractors.
*  Establishing a structured environmental monitoring and reporting mecha%nism.

s Providing HSE training to project personnel for impact prevention and mitigation.

»  Defining the mechanism with which training will be provided to the Projedt personnel.




AFPCL FFBL Power Company Limited (FPGL)
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This modification involves redistribution of power from FPCL's existing 60 Hz shared facility
with FFBL and optimizes turbine operations. As a result:

&= No additional emissions beyond current levels.
= Grid stability is enhanced by balancing loads.
= Operational efficiency improves, reducing strain on existing infrastructur

(1%

The project will also contribute to economic and social benefits by:

= Enhancing industriai reliability through a stable power supply to the Data Center.
»  Encouraging local business growth by providing a dedicated power source to an
energy-intensive industry.

Additionally, FPCL remains committed to corporate social responsibility {CSR) initiatives
under the Fauji Group’s community development programs, focusing on:

»  Social Mobilization

»  Health and Hygiene Awareness

v Education and Skill Development
*  Environmental Sustainability

" Economic Empowerment

By ensuring efficient power utilization while maintaining environmental |and social
sustainability, this modification strengthens energy security, reduces |operational
inefficiencies, and supports Pakistan’s digital infrastructure growth.

P2 PLANT CHARACTERISTICS & TECHNOLOGICAL CONEIGURATIONZ:-:
[rie O it RS (o e - Rt p v wuliotieg g, w314

T e vy P TR

The Plant configuration consists of 2 x 250 TPH, 92 bar and 515°C high pressure/temperature

Circulating Fluidized Bed (CFB)} boilers that are being procured from Hyundai Heavy

Industries {HHI) — Korea following a recently executed contract. CFB Technology for boilers
is being employed due to its ability to provide improved thermal efficiency and |ts excellent
ability to burn a wide range of coals from international to local as well as bituminous to sub-
bituminous coal through the-same boiler. .

F.1: Key Features of CFB Boiler: CFB boiler technology allows improved thermpl efficiency
and is highly adaptable to burning a wide range of coal types, including imported and
indigenous coal, as wel! as bituminous and sub-bituminous coal. The system will have proven
technology with the following main features:

“yf" Fai
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FFBL Power Company Limited (FPCL)

Elimination of separate De Sox system requirement as desulphurization take place

within boiler.

Low NOx generation due to boiler operation at low temperature i.e. 850 4900 °C.

Low Furnace Temperature.

Low furnace temperature and excellent turn-down capability (40 to 100 % Operation)

No Ash Slagging.

Simple Bottom Ash Removal System.

F.2: Key Features of Steam Turbine Generators {STGs):

Two (02) 24 MW condensing STGs for primary power generation at
maximum continuous rating at 13.8 kV generator terminal.

b0 Hz, with

One (01} 10 MW back pressure STG for auxiliary power to support plant operations,

One (01) 60 MW condensing STG for power supply to K electric.

Steam conditions for both STGs: 89 bar(a) & 510°C, ensuring optimal energy generation

at 50 Hz and efficient conversion of steam to electricity.

For the modification planned, the Bulk Power Consumer {BPC) will be integra
existing FFC system using the same infrastructure. The interconnection studies a
evaluations confirm that the existing system can handle the additional load
constraints or adverse impacts on the FFC network.

Other key components of the existing Facility include:

Coal handling system with a capacity of 1,500 TPD, designed for efficient
operation using internationally recognized equipment.

ted inte the
ind technical
without any

and reliable

Sorbent (limestone) handling system with a 50 TPH capacity, ensuring optimal

performance with high-quality international brand equipment.
Mechanically induced draft cooling water system with a circulation rate of
ensuring efficient cooling operations.

18,000 TPH,

Advanced ash handling system for reliable and efficient disposal and management of

combustion by-products.

Comprehensive civil works, including equipment foundations, control rooms, buildings,

roads, and stacks, executed by local contractors to promote local industry p

articipation.

State-of-the-art instrumentation for both local and remote monitoririg, ensuring

precise operational control.




BFCL FFBL Power Company Limited (FPCL)

PUNLIHE POSBIAILIT

*  [ntegrated plant control and safety system for enhanced operational reliahility and risk

mitigation.
»  High-efficiency electrical equipment and devices to support seamless plant

operations.

The Project is primarily based on well proven European/ US / Chinese / Koreary / Japanese

Technology.

Main Components of the Circulating Fluidized Bed Boiler

'Stemdmu_____m
~ Steam outlet
Combustion chambe
Econornizer
Salkis sepaator |

£ur

.
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Main Components of Coal Handling System
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AP=CL FFBL Power Company Limited (FPCL)

E__OVERALL PLANT.AND. ENERGY BALANCE

-v-‘-*i—- e

Each unit is designed, manufactured, installed and commissioned as per int

accepted practices and standards. The Project's key performance data and ene
is set out below:

I i g e e b
g o

i T -‘brv«-w'&‘-r fdn—

< b ek Bsoca o “! ey g =Ty

i g e e

ernationally
rgy balance

Power Installed Capacity 118 MW

Instalied FFC Power Capacity at 60 Hz 58 MW; for FFC and New BPC

K-Electric 60 MW
Days Operation 310
Net Plant Efficiency % - 29.2

% 2E TRAININGAND DEVELOPMENT:

As To ensure long-term operational efficiency and optimized performance, F
committed to investing in continuous training and development for its

Structured training programs, including technical workshops and certification ¢

be conducted in collaboration with recognized national and international institu
programs will focus on cross-functional training, enhancing workforce capa
keeping employees up to date with industry best practices.

PCL remains
employees.
ourses, will
tions. These
bilities, and

FPCL prioritizes safety in all aspects of its operations, ensuring a secure and envi
responsible workplace. The project will adhere to internationally recog
management systems, integrating stringent heaith, safety, and environm
standards into daily operations. FPCL is committed to achieving a zero
environment by implementing proactive safety measures, regular audits, and
training programs for its workforce.

In addition to workplace safety, FPCL actively promotes a culture of safety aws
extends beyond the workplace and into the community. Through structured
rigorous compliance measures, the company will ensure that all work practices

onmentally
ized safety
ental (HSE)

-harm work

continuous

reness that
bolicies and
are aligned

He
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FFBL Power Company Limited (FPCL)

with international safety standards, fostering a healthy and sustainable working

environment for all personnel and stakeholders.

Ks+~  PROJECT AGREEMENTS "
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The Company is expected to enter into, amongst others, the following key agteements as

part of the Project:

. Power Purchase Agreement with New BPC.

*  Key Equipment Supply/Construction Agreements related to amongst othets:

v Frequency Converters

v'  Transformers

v’ Feeder System

L~ _SPONSOR

19

In relation to the proposed power supply to new Bulk Power Consumer (BPC), t
sponsorship scheme applies:

The investment required to serve FonGreen Silicon Technologies Limited {Fo3
funded by the Fauji Group, with 100 percent equity contribution and no reliancg
debt.

he following

T)is entirely
on external

ME+-MANAGEMENTCAPABILITY - -~ @ = “

43 .

The Management Team of FFBL Power Company Limited supported by FFQ
energetic, highly qualified and experienced professionals. They excel in g
leadership, collaboration and project management etc. They have experience |

ke e 1 = & rru"?:;.;’a o 2 B
: S ST

consists of
ualities like
n managing

the large industrial projects and commercial businesses. These Professionals afe proficient
with technical and entrepreneurial skills and are confident, dynamic, creative gnd ready to

take future challenges.

e

N.

PLANT.DETAIL 7" -

W b CRr——

Name of Applicant FFBL Power Company Limited (FPCL)

- )
Registered Office SONA Tower, Plot No. C-1/2,

Sector B, Jinnah Boulevard, DHA-II, Islamabad, Pakigtan

- ¥
Business Office SONA Tower, Plot No. C-1/2,

Sector B, Jinnah Boulevard, DHA-II, Islamabad, Pakistan

Plot No. EZ/1/P-1 Eastern Industrial Zone,

Plant Locati
lant Location Port Qasim, Karachi 75020




AFPCL FFBL Power Company Limited (FPG

FURLING PO IBILITIEST

L)

Type of Facility Coal Fired Power Plant

Existing Buyers FFCand K.E

New Buyer FoST

Total Gross Installed

Capacity 118 MW

Plant Configuration 2 x 24 MW (60 Hz) & 1.x 10 MW (60 Hz}, 1x 60 MW (50 Hz)
Life of facility 30 years

: z5 Project Timeline . §:i-: . ¥

g s

The overall duration of the project is estimated to be 6 months. Key milestones arg outlined

as follows:

» Regulatory Approvals: 4 months
(To be completed in parallel with initial procurement activities)

» Procurement, Installation, and Commissioning: 6 months
(Commencing alongside the regulatory process to optimize the schedule)

s
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ATTACHMENT VI

CERTIFIED COPY OF ANNUAL REPORTS AND LATEST
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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"Muhiammad Nauman

_Younas '

Poélﬁon
Qilahf' t.'atl“qn ;

- Hsghlrghgqrsmus f

Kn'owie&gé & working

perienced in developing

airtenance. procedures, quaﬁty

ntrol procedures.

Undeérstanding 6f hazardous
rocess environment & wark

ermif procédures.:
nderstanding of IMS

;
i

H

gl

Chlef Qperatmg Cificer (Cad)

EMBA - SZABI&T-!sramabad
BE. {Mechamcalj UET Lahorer

perience of complefe Services'
nd Confrécts Management,

“«

mplementation & Gbmﬁﬁai'mé

(1SQ 800, 14001, 18004). -

APT I TEMA staridards

Teamwork, .
Good coiimiinication-and”
presentation skills.

Resource Management’ ‘ancf

Familidr with ASME / ASTM }

* | Bin Qasim, including over eight years as a. -activities.

" I'busirtess, .acumen, actively confributing ta. equipment. -
i | safely forums, risk assessinents, and

Jan 1998 o~ Mar

f Profegsional Summary 2008 Plantsite F&u li

{A seasoned professional w:in diverse FertlhzerBin Qasnm Ltd (FFBL.

expefience in  maintenance  planning, 5 o {

confracts management, field maintenance, Worked on Belancing, Modemlzatrorf and
project management, construchon, Revamp of Ammania pldnt for sustained &
turmaround maintenance, and ‘business increased progduction to 1570 MTPD from
process re-engirieering. Currentlyservmg as its existing capacity of 1270 MTPD {50
Chief Operating Officer (CO0) of FPCL, million{ dollars Prq;ec’t)‘ Carried out
7 leading the operations of a 118 MW <¢oal- Engineering, RFQ's’ 'preparatlon,, vendor
(based  co-generation power  plant selectidn, mspectxor: wsIts ‘t¢  verdor
Preyviously, held key roles at Fauji Fertilizer. worksh b and superv:s:on of erection’
L.ead the/team to camry out major
of anar;y Reformer along with
of two ajt;blowsrs (K-1001A/B).
design and engrneermg of variqus,

Maintengice Cpordinator, ensuring smooth . revamp
O8M exeoution. A resultsdriven end erection
disciplined leader wilh g strong technjcal and indluding

'HAZOP teams, Expetienced in CMMS, SAP,: Also’ wprkad ds Macmneiy Maintenance

Fand a!'gmng fechnical strategies w:ih Eng:neer in different areas ie. DAP,
.1 busittess ob;echves Thrives in ‘¢hallenging Baggmg. Urea, Amimoriia and. Utllities in
“environments, dny:ngépe:anonalexoeﬂence: ﬁiﬂerent capdcities, and ‘as area. head

- Currently serving as Chief Qperdting .
Officer (CQO) at FPEL, dversgeing the
|.. Operdtions and strategic growth of the
4 118 MW coal-based:co-generdtior power
plant. Prévioqisly led the Coal Power Plant -
(CPP) Project as Project Manager,
playing-a key tole in its development from
Theeption to execution; Expertise includes.
sfrategic ~ planning, regulafory
| compliance, cotittact  negotiations,
. technology selection, finaricial modeling,
and teanr building. Manages overal] plant
performiarice; operational efficiency, and
.business expansion while ensuring
. compliance with industry’ glandards’ and
egyfatd;yrequ:remants

Mar 2008 < = June 2014) Head Office Fanji
Fertilizet Bin Qasim Ltd.
Staff Mapager —~ New Businsss Ven‘turés
Job Assignment Includes:
- identification of the. new pro‘ecls for
strategic: Investment, business-expansion
: and diversification. The spectrum-of new
- venturés not only includes projects at
| National level but also Direct Investment
- In foreigrs ventares as well, Monitor and
- apprise” management on
" performance i.e. FFBL plant af Bin Qasim
" Karachi and Phosphorie acid plant at
Morocco.
Supgest --improvement in  company
. business operations. Review of annual
business plans. Selection/ Hiring of
. Technjcal personnel, Support to other
departmens.

i

planf's: :

‘and efiiciency. : Iamrnoma machmei’jf 1o ;execute major
‘ - modifi jobs .lon  Sypthesis
Experience Detalls E Compre: sor A‘rCompresspr’i‘urbinesand-
. -ﬁmmozua COmpmssors %? ) .

Jnlyioﬁ Pfeﬁéﬁt et )
| FFBL Power Company Limited: May : f$93 ~ Rov 19.27; Pak-ﬁcral::

Fertilizer Ltd. Multarr _ : .

Wod(ed;as Area Engineer. in Compressnr

.and T—urblrle Depanment" resporisible for

the smooth running of -pver 100 rotary

“machiries. During the tenore worked on

‘revamplng of the Reforming Fumace af
onia plant in: coprd:natton with

K‘ELLOGGVSM, *_= EREN

Techmcél Ti'alnm o

: Auditing of IMS . sys’tem by Pakistan

 Institute of Quality Control.

Hands' oh “Training ‘on Flame Metalllzmg

'Iechmql§es for the lntemal repait  of

essure; vessels.; hy 7 DONEGAN[

ICROSSIONE, iTAL"Yg

- Aﬂem{led Workshop ! ‘on - . Alloying
Materjal for Fumnace Tubes i Kifala

. Lumpifrb? Schmidt & Clemens. ,

- Maiftenance Management

- HSEQ Mngt System L lntemaf Alidit
Cotirse. .

- SAP {Plant Mazntenance Academy
Training.

- Opculiatlanal Health ; ;& ‘Indpstrial
Hygene : L ‘gi

i
Ma nggement Courses, . i+
Problem solvirig and Decisfon makmg
Techmques by, Pak:stan Institute: of -
Management Sciences. -
Effective Presentation Skills by FFC
High Performance Manager
Problem Solving & Decision Making
QOccupational Heaith &, industriz
Hyglere s
Leadership Skills - pet
Mamtenance Management
Firtance for Non-finahce Manager
PI‘Ochf Mahagement i

-

[ LI I I




; Quahffcau_qa

' industrial-complex.
| permit procedures,

| working éxpetience in ERP
-1 ghviroriment (8AP).. °

| at  FFBL

Mahboob Ahmed

Professional Summary =
A professional having vast expenence in the

field of Power Plants, Chemicals. Process

Position

Sertiot-Manager- Mamfénance

BE- (Chemicalj- UET Lahura
|
H!ighrght of Skills

Résponsible dwareness, of
safety practices Inchemical /

Understahding of fiazardous
process environment & wark,

Knowledge, undenstaﬁdmg&

Understanding of IMS

.| tmplementation & compﬁante

(50 gbo1, 14001, 15001)
Pmﬁment in Technicaf
Reviews; evaluations, 3
Drawing )‘.échnlca&conc‘msfons

Understanding of Process -
Engineeting Calculations &
proficientin use of .
‘engineering software. likeé
Hyses / ASpen Plus./ HTFS,
Khowtedge and ;
understanding of Plant * -
Monitoring, controliing &
Troubleshoatmg

| Resource Maaagementand

Team wozk _ :

' Good corfimipication an,d ’

f presentatlon skills:
Cer‘bﬁcates &Trainmgg
-Wntmg for Resulty &
Commmlcatlon Skilis™ by
Institute - of Training &
Consultancy. t
~Integrated Mandgenrent
System . (IMS} S0

9001.2000 ISO 14001:2004
and OHSAS 18Q§f.2007‘ by
BQJ. I

Health, Safety & Environment
related programs and trammg
including ° Fire
Fighting, Emergency
Handling, Acid Handling, First
Aid and Dry Run activities.

-BAP Plant Maintenance |

Academy Training.

{ - Problem sohithg and Decision

making Techniques.
- Effective: Presentafion Skills
- High Performance Manager
- Leddership Skills”

;devefopment of basic concepls,

“Plants and their associated Utilities,
Basic
Engineering Design, Detailed.  Engingefing
Design, field execution, field . verification,
funictional. and performance test execulion of

- ftroubleshooting; testing, commissioning :and

projects handling. Highly motivated with 17
years. of diversified experierice in power and
fertilizer planis- in .jeading roles. Leading the.
Engineering team of Fauji Power Company
limited. (FPEL),” wholly owned- subsidiary of
Fauji Group, developing 198 MW Coal power
plant.  Resuit oriented and disciplined -

lengineer, an active team prayer along with'

limpressive  educational and  proven

[professional jrack tecord. Comfortable wilh
|business and technical perspectives and
Tundersfands their convergence. Member of

different safely forums, fisk- dssessment @nd

{HAZOP teams. Experienced in using CMMS &

SAP. Comfgriable with business and technical
perspectives  and  upderstands  their
corivergence,  Possess gocﬁ ledming
capabilities and enjoy working in a challengmg

Presently Assigned as: Semor"Manager -
Maintenance, FFBL Power Com pziny
Lithited
Currently leading the ‘aintenance division at
. [FFBL, Powier Company Limited, ovetseeirig the
refiabflity and performance of the-118 MW toal-
based cbgeneraﬁon plant. Respons:blﬁf 85
inélude!
-Mafiaging plnt mainferancé strategies to
ensure operational efficiency. © -
-Coriducting techinical evaluafiohs and ¥oof
F cause analysisof equipment fajiures,
-Overseeing  maintenance  planiing,
. budgeting, and-execution of shutdowns.
Mlmthg with multi-package oontmciow
and veridors for fechnical-solutions.
-Ensuring compliance with industry stardards
and best practices for pfan‘i rehab:i:ty

Experierice Detail

FFBL Power Company Limited (FPCLI
Serijor Manager'~ Malnitetnance fzm? -
Present)

~Leading the maintenance division of the 118
MW coal-based cogeneration power plant,

~Developing and implementiriy maintenance
strategies to ensure plant reliability and
efMlciency.

- Conducting root cause analysis of equipment
failures and unplanned shutdowns. .

-Managing maintenance planning, budgeting,
and execution of planned shutdowns.

- Coordinating with contfactors and vehdots to
optimize plani performance.

~ ~Prepared -

- cnmp!:anoe with

i

Mo i a g s o e

' Pro;ect Engi‘neer—Coal Power Plant

Installation (2014~ 2017)
-Piayed a key role in the instalfation and
c;:mglssrcnmg of the”I 18 MW coal power
.blan

aManaged englneenng%dwmw enstring

compliance with :ndu?fry standards and

p[o;éct timelines. .

-Coordinatéd with EPC contractors for
equ:pment procurement installation, and
ﬁtartup ) i §;

Eauﬁ Fert:llzer‘Bin Qas‘m Lirhited (FFBL)

Unit Manager - P?oces& (Jan 2007 Des

2013)

’{l‘...

—fLed ﬂie pmqéss engi;;eerfng tearn for
Urea, DAP, Ammonia, and Utilities plants.
‘~Manitored and | gptlrmzed plant .
b’erformance, resolving: technical issues
arid-improving efficien
-Evaluated ptant, rﬁodlﬁcanon requests.
nducted feasabllxm studies, and
Jmplemeﬁted process Immovememsx
-Conducted root | catige amalysis Tor
incidénts and ensured timely resolution,
.-Developed and’ implemented _process
packages and modifications o enhance.
lant perfarmarice,

- J\cfed as Depamnentsafetyédordmator, '

ensuring pompllancé with  safety
procedures. ¢ ¢ i

perfqmmnce reports,
bighilghhng key. operatto_nal’ indicatots,

Process Engméer‘ (Jam '&99’7 Déc- 2008)

-Worked on the »eng?neenhg, desigs,
éréction, and sfartup of the FFBL
Fem!izecCompfeﬁc, —%-3‘ :
-Evaluated  ehgineering - deslgns for
si‘andards and
contractual :eqmremen@

" -Led the revamp of the Ammonia plant,

Increasihg production from 1270 MTPD to
1570 MTPD ($50imillior] project.
»Conducted equipment . perfornfance -
evaluglions, process. wmulatiﬁhs afid’
efiicie: cygalculat‘bns G

-Mapaded process . Improvements, plant
modrﬁcahons. and implementation of new
technalogies. ¢ Y '




5 :Sgeii Sarfaraz Ahmed’

' Poaltwu

anager (HSE'& Asset
zitegnty}

ualification,
E. Chemicat '
ED-Uriiversity Karach;

‘nghllght of Skills

Sktlls inGoal Sefting & Wodg

l Planning.
| Effective presentation sk:lls

Communjcatiort skills.
Leadership Skills,

| Communication §Kills Traititig.

- o Prob]e'lﬁﬁul\lmgamfdemsion

: making, B *
Team Work. ;

cﬁmgaterutemcg

SAP, Letus Notes, MS Dﬁ' ce;
‘MS ;Access CTl, Pl"iﬁ'ahd

| Hysns software’s.

Cettificates & Trainin
LCooling Water E)perahbn

| Treafment Program.

Seminar on RO Membrahe
Chemica] Clednirig [
Buckman Gooling Water .
Treatment

Huckmarn Water Trsafniteht
Program

Process Hazard Analysis
{PHA) Techniques -
Strategic Time Manageinent
Ultrasonic Flow Meter
Trainthg - :
Communication Skills
Training :
Seminar-op-Reverse ”Osmosis
Technology by GE Dsmonics
Drew Ameriod Sitigapore-on
CWuWaste & Fuel Treatment

(Professuonal Summary

J 1 A professional having vast experience in the -

field of Process engineering, Utilities (water
progcessing, power generation; etc) Safety,
- Procurement, Projects  Handling.” Result
orienter! and disciplined _engineer, an active
team player along with impressive educational
and proven professional track * record.

.| Gomfortable with business and technical
| pérspectives.  ang
" -| gonvergence.

undemtands their
Posses good leaming
capabilities and enjoy worklng ima chaﬂengmg.

i env;mnment,

Experience
July.2017 -~ Present FFBL Power COmparlx

| Cimitad

Experienced In mandging HSE and Asset
Integrity at FPCL, enstring compliance, fisk
 assessment, and asset reliability., Skiled in
| safety. audils, preventive maintenante, and.
implemenfing HSE pbllcles fof & safee .work

Lenvironment,

Nov 2013 = Jimne 2017 Fauji‘ Fezﬁlmer Bin
Qasim Ltd {FFBL}, Karachi
Lead Process A& Balance of Plasit (BoP)

"| Worked: as Lead Process & BoP for new Coal *

Power Plant {CPP} Project uridertaken fo
ensure. continual of FFBL fertilizer complex by
curtajling Natutal gas as foel and supplr of
power and sleam reguirerents of FFBL
fertilizer conplex.

CPP project consist of coaf biased Cercz:fatmg

| Fluidized Bed ({CFBJ boilets and Steam Turbine
- Generators and stafe of art coal, sorbent and
ash handiing system as well as batanca of
plahls .

Oct. 1996 ~ Oct 2013 Fauji Fe:‘ﬁlr@ér Bin
Qasin Ltd {FFBL), Karichi

-Staff Unit Mandgee - Process

(Worked as an Incharge Process / Utilities
Opetations / Safety / Proctirément)

FrBLis a large Amtionia {1570 MT!D)‘:" DAP
{2230 MT/D) / Urés (1920 MT/D) fertilizér
complex possessing own power generation of
52 MW (02 Gas Turbines), Company Is IMS
(Quality, Environmient & OHSAS) certified. Al

" majbr processes of the " organization kré

managed thru ERP (SAP) system modufes.
vowi: fibl. comy

Process Engr.

“Worketl  with El!gmeenng Group  durig
engineering design, erection and start-up of
FFBL fertilizer complex,

-Review and evaluation of enginsering design
wrl codes & standards and compliance with
Contraciual requuemems’for EPC side of FFBL
fertilizer complex i.e. Urea, DAP and Utilies

units..
-Worked as various capacities as Process

| Engineer mainly focusing on Utilifies and DAP

ﬁnd worked as acting' Protess Englneenng
nit.

Following were job performed:-

-Evajuate reduests for plant modrffmhon,
tecommends  appropriale  solutions and
proposes changes as necessaty; gather,
researches and andlyzé pertinent data and
information and prepares recommendafions

{ with supporting technical data,

-Prepare PFDs, Piping and Instrumentation
Diagrams.

ha 30 e AOILR Y b

!

- Perfotmance eva[uauon of compressors; heat
exchangers, gas turbines, cooling tower, eto:
-Conduct quarterly | Technigal Monitoring
Program and deve!opmg reports

~Prepared  process . packages for plant
modrfjcatlon requirement, based on oo
saving, £nergy eﬂiclencx,safety relizability and
capacity enharicerent. . | ;

“Developing - producuon : ioas Téports  in
consultation with Opefation & Mainfenance:

--Deveiopmg weekfy.tfortmghtly & monthly

‘reports for Mahagement lr}formatnoh Chanpel
?indlcahng Key Performance. Indicators of

_Pranis,

J-Datl{s teghn!caf moﬂitomg%of plant opeml:ortl
upse
Corrective actions. . P i {f

-Worked; as UM—Safe & HAZOP. Actjvely
persuadé far actively ‘implementations, of
'safety procedures and instruments to ensure
incident 1
cmhplex.i SO 1

,Wpded Prccurement Engmeer in PMP
during;  Secondment ;alnr;g with  Progess
Engirieer. as well ‘a8, perforimed role of
Secretary for PMP Marfagement Cammitfes

rporinglo BoD. !

Staff UH— Utilities (Operatfbns,)

~Erisure gafe and quality supplies of utilifies fo
the ‘Ammionia, Urea, DAP, PH&S and sffsite
facilities, {mamtam proper perfomarrce track,
and qualify-controls, e*nsureacons‘Stentsappiy
of steam, power, codling* water, industrial

" water, chilled water, potabre WatEr plant ahd

mstrument air:

Malnfenance of pla‘nt HVAG» Contro) plant
effluent - discharge. and emjssions  within.
hational ehwrpnrnental quality standards in
order toi provide utilities :as per defined
parameters and standards; { -

+Martage Operations of I:hlltlas ulfit, prepare of
themical { requirement reports, review
Process/Mechanical packages developed by
Technical;  Services | Department for’
thodifications aind improveiments, ete.

-Ensure: the mpleméntation; of IMS policies -

and pmbedures pperate the plant ¥5 per
standards for external and infernal audits,
April 94 - Aug B8 Gatioh Polyeater. Karacht,
~Joined Gatron Polyester’ ln1?994 as- Shift
Engineer | °

‘A leading ;po!yestgr company, which
manufactg;és polyester. cﬁupﬁ and polyester
yam. The raw matenal;iosed in fhe
mantifactyring is Mono-Ethyléne Glycol (MEG)
and Pure Teraphatic Acid (PTA).

nlob was yelated fo arrangé :shiff and note
down the featyreg of the ‘pievious shift. To
m:mn;,nzafwaste generatlon of, pql;menc waste,
in Spmnmg section dunng ﬁle shm,

Heviations and : §uggest|ons for .

work :env:ronment at the fertilizef -



- Muhammad Kaghif
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Jamil

rec‘tjorti ?re-wmmtssmmg
. nd Cormissiofing of Bdal
Powgrplant. ;
erience of Ammonia Pla.nt
radfon Pre-¢9muu$slo’nm,g
nd Cpmm:ssioning a:;bv es,
_ Cfpegat:on,}al Expériente Qf
. .Ammoma“P!gnf for 15 yeam.
Experfehc‘e'of Ammania Piani"
' BMR actmhes for capacflfr
enhanceméup .
Man,agen‘al Expéfignce of o7
years ‘atAmmorig Plart. .
Total Expefience of 15 years in
Plant Operaltonsn ;; §
Project Experierice of Coal
pased powsr plant‘{!ﬁ =
__ngress} ‘[ 3
g N

3

g

Professional Summary

| Aprofessjonal having vast experience nthe

field of electrical Power generatidn,
maintepance  execution,  troubleshooting,
testing, copmissiorting and projects handling.
Resuylt oriented and disciplined engmeer an

1active team player along Wwith -impressive
‘Feducational and: proven professional frack:
. |record. Comfortable with business and

| technical perspectives and undersfands their
| convergente.
| capabiliies and énjoy-working i a challenging

Posses: good lgaming

environment.

Experience
| July- 2044~ Present FEBL ?owef cqrrtpahv
Limited

d Expenenced in power plant qpembom

pverseeing  efficiency, mrablﬁy,

 compliance, Played a key role in the ezecton
dnd commissioning of FPCL, ensuring smpoth
starfup and operational excellence. Skilfed in
firocess Opfimization, troubleshoofing, and
team leadership to enhdrice plant pErfonnanca,

Ja’n. 2005 - Jurti 2014 ~ Fa‘qu Fﬁrﬁluer"ﬁin
| Qasiim Ltd (FFBLJ, Karachi, Pakistan

[Ae Deputy | Unit Manager, Ainmoma Unit, at

Faujf Fetlilizer Bin Qasim 1td,, Karachi,
Pakistat x

Basic Résponsibilities:

~To handle; all the admm:suﬁu\ré témmﬁél
issues of the unit, ]
-Ensury safe opetation of the plant’ through
audits, safety talks and EHP discussidns.-
~Execution of rutirie joba. irf cobrdingtion with
 plarining and maintenarice depariments.

“BMR activiies during 60 days of Tyrmaround
to increase Production by 300 Met.

' Erection, Pm-comfhi%sfdning and
| Commii¢sioning of FFBL, Aminonia Plint,

7 Relocated from Lake Charles, USA: -
| Dufies And Responsibilities:

~Setling up of Techriical Training Cem :
-Prepidration of Area Gefieral and Atea Specific
courses

-mparting:lectores to apui'ating staff: -

| .CHecking anid verifying Hydrotest Packages.

' -Preparation of punch lists vegarding plant

completeness study,

-Praparations of pre-commissicning packages
like chemical ciedring, Sfeam blowing, &ir
blowing and water flushing ete,

~Alr biowing of progess gas and i fuel gas circuits

1using portable and process aircompressor,

-Steam blowing of high, medium and low-
pressure steam networks with copper farget
plates,

r'-Preparabuné of log sheels and checklists.

Aoading of Ammpnia Plant catalysts.
Verification of logics as per configuration in.
PCS and in field,

-Hands on working experience. an the
Distributed Control System (DCSJ of Elsag
Bailey "Infi 90” USA

-Startiip of Ammonia plant and bringing it fo

normal prodyctiof.

.o ‘especla[ry during off hrs,
-Coardinate with ‘Qperatnons Managet and

b i
2 i
. ! . ? .
" Mar 2003~ Dec 2004 ~ Fauji Fertilizer Bin
Qasim Ltd (FFBL), Kam:hl, Pakistan,

‘As Cg—ordmataon Engineer.at Faun Fertifizer
Bm Qasm Lid,, Karacb:, Pakxstan

BasneRespons‘bslmes,, i

-Establishment -of- “efficient * coordination
among § $hift lncharge of various units during
plant staﬂup, shutdowrf doad thanges,
upse‘t in nomlal operation and emergencies.
~Coordination with mamtenance for prompt
“rectification - of :def we equipment

respective unit lncha::ge 4 dm:ang plant
abnormaliies, |
-Act as ?re chief dunng emergemnes,

Sep 1996 ~Feb2003 .|

Fau]l Fertilizer Bin- Qasu%x1 Ll (FFBL),
Karachr, Pakistan ~; :{.

As Ammonid plant™ “Shzﬂ Inchargé” st Fau;r .
Fertilizer Bin Qasim! Ld, , Karachi, Pakistan.
Duties:and Responslbilities*

~Ensuring safe and efﬁaent operation of
FFBL Afimonia plam
~Monitoting “of Dper‘ab
’equment machines and’j
-Rewew of operahng Ha
hasis. - 5

-Handlmgﬁof all prant emefgenmes -
£npew|sgon and fgllb\v u%: of maintenatice
jobs. |

-Preparation ‘of pIant é‘me!‘g’éﬂw hardling
prucedures

-Prepara;:on of tum arnund packages.
-RBVISIQ?S of plant »startub and shut down

[ of all plant
strumemé _
on two haurly

~Conduct emergency hangdlmg talk. among

staff employees,

“Condug{ safety takk to urierease safety’

‘awareness among the sta?f employees

-Trammg of the staff, .

’Energy éonserv%tsoﬁ and %01&1"1‘1‘011 cohtrol.
1 f

‘Ceﬂfimfes‘&-?m‘inings‘ b

rCo’bl:ng§ Water Treatmént Tecﬁnology,

conducted by BUQKMAN?Labofatones At

SINGAPORE HY i}

-rPrqblem Sclving & Decus:on Making,

conducted by Pakistan:  Institute of

Ma_nagem,ént sciences (PIMS)

-Efrective, Presentat;on Skills vonducted by

FFBL ,

-!mroducfion and | Operatlon of DCS

conducted by Descon l.:mlted,, on behalf of

BALEY O Ii

Compptgr LiteracyN

-SAP, Lu%us Nofes, M5 ofrce MS Access,
lnterne’t’ q other Soﬁware,



" Muhammad KHalid .

Jalil

‘ IPosttion '

ngh!;ghtbf skig |
Effecnve Presentation: Skul"s

: L‘orﬁmumca{m Skilg . ¢
‘Effecﬁ've Delegation Sk:lls
Effechve Meeting Skills |

‘Leadershlp Bkills

r
out
O o b G e S

z

| convergence. Possess. good
 jcapabiliies. and enjoy workmg in a
' - | challenging envirenment, o

 Power

| (Worked as

Professional Summgﬂ ’

| A professional having vast experience in the

field of Mechanical engineering espetially
maintenance of rolating eguipment in
computerized SAP environment. Resuft

| ofiented and disciplined 'engi_neer. an active.

team player along with impressive
educational and proven professional frack
record. Comfortable with business and
technical perspectives and understands their

leaming,

-+ { Experience -

Manager Technical L&D | 2022 - Present
Leading techinical leatning and development
inifidtives to  ephance  engineering
capabilifies. Responsible Tor designing dnd
implerhenting fraining programs, conducting
skill assessments, and egsuring knowledge:
fransfer actossteams o imptove opergronar
efﬁclent:y and rehafnhty

! Lead Engineer Mechanical & Soliu
| Handling | FRCL ] 2014 - 2021 . .
.iManaged the engineering, desigh, . ahd

supply dof alt motating equipment and solid types
handling systems for the 118 MW Coal
Plant  project. Overgaw tha
installation, comidissiohing, and opetatignal
readipess of coal, sorbent, and ash handling
systems, Collaborate’d with EPC contraciors,

erisured compliance with industry standargs,
and optimized system performance for plant

reliability and efficiency.

{2 Sépteniber 1996 — Ogtobef 2013 |

Fauji Fertilizer Bin. Qasim Ltd 4FFBL),
Karachi, Pakistan

Staff Unit Manager —Mechanical
Projgct  Procurement,
Construction, Machinery Enginéer anid SAP
Plant Maintenance Module Implemeniation
and Powér user and Lead Machiriery and
Sof'd Handling i CPP Project) .

FFBLisa large Ammonia (1570 MT/D) IDAP
{2230 MT/D) / Urea (1920 MT/D} fertifizer
complex possegsing owrp power generation
of 52 MW (02 Gas Turbines}, Company is
IMS (Quality, Environment & OHSAS)
cerfified. Al major processes of fHe
organization are managed thry ERP {SAP)
systemn modyles. www.fibl.com

SAR Plant Mamtenanca (PN} Module
Power User

Warked as core team member in SAP Plant
Maintenance Module implementation guring
Information Technology Enabled
Organizatiomal  Transformationr  {ITET)
Project. Followirig'werd job performed:

. -Evaliiate the "As i3 Mainfenance Process”

 for process reeéngineering. ] A
Design the customized theé Tnew
maintenance  process  [ke  normal,

praventive, refurbishment amd 4um -around

_ | mairitenance and fleet managemenit.

'-Dresngni and prepare the master data fike

equipment, fupctional locations, measuyring
points for PM module. - |
~Train the SAP Gq—l.lve Téam for smooth

-Jmplementattcm

~Provide support ﬂunng and after SAP Go-
Liveln Apnl 2010, - tH

-Design; different reports for Business.

Infefligence  Module for
departmient. wo

Machinery Mam’benanca%Engmeer ’

mairtenance

Worked| | es Machinery - Ma‘nterﬁance
Engini in different areas  ie. DAP,
Bagging, Urea, Amsmonia. and. Ufilifies in

ﬁ“:fferent? capacities - and ‘as: area head
utilities; machmery Mam ass:gnment& are.
as fcllows P

-Méinterjahce ard spare parts management

of all rotating equipment of' assigned area.
of rotating |

~Preventive mamtenance

equipment of assigned érea.

~Cost. $aving and. overall machmen{

maintenante budget preparat:orr

-GE frame 5, 26.2MW, Model MS5001P

Gas turbine major. overhauiing in FFBL

difting “Tumaround . 2008, 2007 and 2012,

and in FEG-GM i TA;2006: 5

Vst ex;:énence of maintenance of varioa§
32 rotating 'equlpment includirig

pumps ntrifugal compressors, insttument

air wmb;essw steam gur’bmes gear boxes,

fans & blowers, conveyoi bells, crushers,

bucket elevator screens and feeders efc.

Project Procuremnt Engineer

Dudng EFBL erection phase wor‘ked as

Projéct Frocurement Engineer in Teghtiical

Construction Services. Main assignments in

that phase wera as follows: - '

-Review pf mechanical drawings of pumps,

turhznes.,compres.%ors heat exchangers,

- reformer, ; piping plan$ and isemetrics and

p,repal‘ahpn of B:Il ofi ‘Matenals for

procuremient.

-Project phase procuréme‘nt and nspeédtion

experience of mechédhical parfs and

aceessories-of worth Rs. 43 8 million and

US $3.31 million. - %ﬁ

Certificates & Trainirigs: ;

Mam‘lanance Management

HSEQ Mngi System ]ntegna"[Audlt

Course - |

SAP Plan’l' Maintenance AcadEmy Traitiing

Occiipational Health & Industrial Hyglene

General Corrosion ¢ -1

Project Management -¢ -

Problen Salving and Dectsron Making

Time'Mariagement - | :

Team‘Work

Coaching; Mbﬁvaﬁng And Delegét‘hg

High Performance Managen:

People Management bes

Role: of Manager Dunn@ F’erfonnance

Appraisal | tal

Conflict Mandgement | *

EQ,-sEmotlonal intelhgf.-nce: ‘

Comwter Literacy: . :

SAP, Lotus Notes; MSDfﬁce ‘Power Point,

H
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Farhajt Ahmed Mazari

Pos:f.ldrf
Umt ManaQEr Erefctrfcal

Qualification.

Bachelors gf Engineerifig
(B.S.Electranics)

Fighlight of Skills

" |GE Frame-5 Gas Turbines
(MS5001) with Speedtronic
Mark-V control system. -

Convéfsant with Matk-V confrol
ystem hardware and software.
Carried oyt major overhauling

machines inahnual
hutdown,

pdating of diffecent HMI;

WVibration monitoring system,
 Logie modifications in CSH and
downloading in different .
processars.

Rectification of dcagnostﬁ: arid
“process. alamms.

Exposure io firg suppressiot
sterms znd ifs varioys aTafms
cfification.

as turbine and Mark'V st are :
parts ordering, inspectiory aﬂé
nventory gpdating. i
ime Management Skills.
ffoctive-Presentation Skifls.
istributed Control Syatem.
B Bailey INFI-50 Open;

ABB symphony PCP Tenura.:
ABB Industria! [T 800xA Ver-
.0 /' Composer 5.0k .
IMA H51-HS. o
llen-Bradley PLCS & Flex
ogix 5000 Seres.
urbo-Machinery Confrol

E BpeedTronics Mark¥

Ohmart-Veda Nuclear Density
Meters.

alyzers.

ransmitters & Switches-

5 B

alibtation of servo r@‘mafbts‘. .

: f}esjgnﬁﬁon

umer Management Systems. |

Professional Sumimary

A diverse experience encompassing 18
years In the field of Instrumentation and

.| Controls jnciuding Engineering, Design,
| Erection, Commuss;omng and Maintenance '
T oat chem:cal plant af various posﬂ'ons

i  Experionté

July 2094 — Present

t FFBL, Power Gopipany Limited

+ Cugrently. leading the 1&C-Team, overseeing. |
]-design reviews, budgeting, and planning for .
| the Coal Power Plant (CPP). Experienced ini
4 project execution, tontracior stpervisioh,

and techmcat?commercnal document

[evaluation. Skilled. in equipment installation, .

froubleshooting, SAP  work  ‘drder

maintenence ~ ‘schedules. Focused orf

operational efiiciency.

Bin Qasim Ltd (FFBL), Karachi, Pakistah.

Deputy
(Instrument & UoﬂtroII

FFBL is one of the lsading and sole granuia‘r
Urea and granular  DAP  fedilizer

also hvas a Joint Venture with OCP-Group of
Morotgo, for the production -of ‘merchant
grade Phosphafic acid in Moradco, which is

ferlilizer manufacturing, but also marketed

| ififefnationally,

management,. and developing preventive .

optimizing inventory, ensuring critical spare © - :
availability, 4nd training staff for eghanced .

| Aug. 2006 — June 2014 - ‘lfauji' j!?erﬁl?ze,r -

Ma o

manufacturing compary fn Pakistan. FFBL «

not only fransported to Karachi for DAP -

O T Ty e e

e

Cer_hf" ca;gs & Trammgs

Wntmg forResults 3 Commumcatlon Skills
bﬂnsﬁtute of Training & Consultan'cy

-tntegraied Management Systeny {IMS)I
"ISO :§001:2000, 1SO :14001:2004 and
OHSAS 18001:, 2001" bv BQI

-Health Safety & Emnronme*rﬂ= related
pfégran‘ts and training at FFBL including
Fire Fighting, Emergency Handling," Acid
j-]andimg First Aid and ny Run activities,

<I
¥ gt
o » * §

t:om

MSOﬁiC , MS Access,

. mmm

' SAP, Lotus } Noles.
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" Ahmed Naw‘az?

. Position’ ’
Umt Manager{lnspequonl

Qual"ficaﬂorl

BACHELORS OF EHGINEERlNG
{B.E, MECHANICAL}

~+l|ghl|ght of Skijls

/ Heaf Exchanger Des:gn:ng
Soffware}
ALGQRfPlPE PLUS (Ptpm‘g

JAUTO PIPE (Piping Design '
nd Analysis Softwarg). -

7 ma.n PRO(Structure

2R ey e e ey ey e

S e W e W mmeereemm————— e
o

-| more than Sixleen
- Project Management,

COADCALC {Pressura V&sssi .

Design and-Arialysis Somare:)_ ]

| ~Ensured  successful
. | through techiical assessments, materal

| Professional Summary
 Present working with Fauji Fertilizer Bin

Qasim Limited {FFBL), one of the leading
ferfilizer manufacturers in Pakistap, with
production capacities of 1570 MTPD
. Ammonia, 1570 MTPD Urea and 2400
-+ MTPD pAP plant, as Secfion Manager with

-1 Experience

: Inspection Department | FPCL | 2022 -

Present

-Overseeing irispection and condition

~Conducting nori-destructive. Iesﬁng (NDT,
vibration analysis, thermography, - and
Hydrostatic testing.

-Performing root cause failire anafysis
(RCFA}- for equipment breakdd\’ms and

.} unscheddled shutdowns.

-Ensuring compliance with mdustrs? QNQC
standards,  safety rieguiahons and
-operational refiability.

- | «Aptil. 2000 — Oct 2013 - Fauji Fegﬁll:tef Bin.

Qasim Ltd (FFBL), Karachi.

Préject Engineer | FPCL [ 2014 = 2022
~-Key role in the . installation and
commissioning of the 118 MW FPCL Coul

‘ Piwer Plant.

~Oversaw engineering desigm, pmwrememu
and construction supervision for major
mechanical Systends.

-Managed inspection arid quality control of

bdilers, turbines, coal handling systems,
and auxifiary equipment.
project  execufion

inspecﬁgns, and contraclor ooorﬂin_aﬁon.

| Ammonia Plant Brr Project | :
Hrvalved in BMR {balancing modemizafion

and revamp) of Bechtel Ammionia Piantas a
cora team meraber fromi 2004 1o 2008 Major

| responsibilities includes:
| -Engineering, Procurement afid installation

of Nafural Gas Campressor along with civil

" | works and associated piping.

~Revamp of Old Primary Reff)mwer {1965
vintage), Foster Wheeler design, It includes
installation of new 432 ‘micro-alloy catalyst
ubeg with larger diameter for tefiability and
capacity enhancement.

-Procurement, replacement & repair of
Secongary Refonngr (C-102) High Inlensufy
Burner.

»Piocurement, Engineering rewew ard
Installation of Amnionia Recovery Uhit along

with civiFworks and associated piping.

-Procurement, Engineering review and
Installation of BFW Pre-Heater (E-205) along

'with civil works anti associated piping.

-E’ng]n

| monitoring of boilers, steam turbines, .
1 balance-of-plant {BOP) eqmpment and
{ criticat totating;machinery.

" Procurement, Engmeenng review and

Installaifon of . Low, Pressure Sfeam
Geneﬁof (E-2002) along with civil works
and associated piping. . .

-Procurernent Erjgmeenng review and
Installation of Ammonia Converter Effluent
Cooler (E-302A/B); along ‘with- civil works

~and associated piping. ¢
ars of experience in
- “of New i:ooﬁng Wagér Pump alohg with civil

Engineering, Procurement and instllation

works aind assoctateg p:plng

. Join Fauji. Fét:hllzé’ras -a Pro;éct Engmaer

Jn 2001 and .worked
ring  Unpit. &ll-
respon?ibi!mes "mclude

in Project
2004; Major

i

?

-Preparénon of engmeenng packageg for
plant . modnﬁcat:on riJcl:«s as per codes &
standards & ensuring the execution ofjob i _
the are% as per engmeenﬁg package.
-Des:gnlpg and anaJys:s of existing as well
‘481 new; stryétures: plaiforms and puplng
supports B

Designing ‘and am!yms Qf ‘pressire:
vessels ¥l

-Demgn'hg and flexibility analysmf existing
as'well as new plping system.
~Davelopment . of weldmg procedure
specifications for various jobs. L
Desngn‘ng of- on Jipe box-up 10 rectify

g Ieakages withott shutdown of plant.

-Arrangement / procuremerﬁ“o materiat.

L

lnspec’tmn Unit i g

A&a partdf choss trammg prbgram [ warked
as inspection Enginger from 2008 to 2013
with followirig job-redponsibilifies:

-Internal;  extemal; and  on-sfream
inspections of plant. equment including
pressure; vessels, .columns, - fumac‘es,
‘boilers, e}tchangers, tanks ale.
-Preparaﬁon of inspettion reports to retx}fd
0bservat|pms and recommend repair work in
equupment. Mamtammg eqmpment history /
recrds.

-Hydrostatic and leak testing of all types of
heat exchangers, piping & vessels. -
mplementation of 14 ! yedrs “Piping
Thickness Monitoring Plan® by tsin
ultrasonic technique:of -all. the major pia
piping cireuits ‘as per APl 570,

<Skin femperature measurenient of high
temperatyre refractory lined equipment of
ammonia! plant using u;frared temperature
meters & memography‘

-Material verification of i mcom:ng warehouse
inventory hgamst MTCs. =
-Material jdentification’ us:nxg alloy analyzer
& Iaborafory analysist ; . ;

-PSYV calibration & record keeping
-Pressurg testing of. all of new &
refurblshed valves as per A 1 598,




’ "I plant
: siructﬂr&sa.

: ;,schedulmg and mﬂmtcnng of
fhechanical projects. .'

L-Dalde: O

Asifa Engineers & | .
Contractors Karachi.
Estimation 7 Planning /
Project Engineer '

I worked with Mechanical
Engineeting contractar *Asia’
 Engineers. &  Contragtors®

" dealing with the fabrication,

1 erection and repajr of pressure |
+<To. ensure execution of job Iit- accordance

vgé%eis shall & tube. heat
exchangers, sforage- fanks,
piping and steel

Job Responsibififfes: . ;
plannmg,

‘~Preparation of bids Yor all
types of mechanical projects.
_~Preparation of oonstmc’l‘on
schedule for various prdjec; f
fabrication activities.

| ~Designing -& - development. of

fabricafion draw:ngs « of

- méchariical equ‘pment. >
 ~Supefvigion of * fabrication
‘ ,ac!mﬂes»vf{anks and vess"elg

Major ijec& Handng,r
~BP  Pakistar  Exploratiorr

{Formerly.  Unfon  Texas
Pakistan Inc.).
| -Febrication / repaiiof fanks &,

| ‘vessels ‘at site ae well as it

workshops.

iBanaspaﬁ
{UniLever Pakistar Ld.). |
-Supply & Tabrication 6f 02 ios
Oil Storage tanks. .
-Supply & fahticafion’ of
Stainless Sfeel fanks' for
Margarine piant. s
<Llipton  Ted Companw
(UniLBver Pakistan Ltd ). |

working - platforms  for ‘the
‘_mspecﬁbn of Tea Corveyor..

‘Nov 1999:- April 2000 | .|
|M84  Engineering - Ltd |

Karachi. .

Assisfan’t Engineer /

L1 worked with Mechanical
- Engineering Gontractor "M&J

Engineering Lid"  Dealing

| with the-Fabrication & Eréction
' of Power Plants, Chemicel, &

Plants &

Petrochemical |
Mechanical

various

Equipment's
Vessels, Heat Exshangers,
Storage Tanks & Qver Head

[ ‘May 2000 —March 2001 -

~Supply & fabrication’ of |

ke Pressure |

Job Responsibllmes

~Prepardtion. of constroction schedule for

- | various projects.
‘| -Frepamation of daily progress. report for

varicus jobs in hand.

-Coordinating betweers different job sifes: &
aiso with the client sp as to facilitate: imply
completion of the project.

Developmem of fabrication draWJngs of
mechanical.equipments.

with the drawing, design & constrclion
schedule dunng fabrication.

 June- 1997 — Now 1999 Sagri Assoclatas
Karachl.
Design Engineer:

| woked as a Desigh Engmeer w:th
Mechahical Engiriéenng Consultant *Sagri
Associates” dealing with ‘the Desigry of Of
‘Storage Tanks and Terminals at Po?iQasm
Job Responsihlijties:

[ :Layout planning for oil sforage" ietm:riafs
-Design of oil storage tanks, 1 o
-Deveiopment of faprication dr‘amngs of vii

| storage tanks,

=Development of pigeline- key p!an :ntema!
piping layouts gnhd. Isométric drawings. -
~Detailing of méchanical, electrical, & civil
“Works. on AutaCAD.

| -Preparafion of bills of ntaterials for van‘ous

dctivitigs.

-Preparation of tender docuriients ?anarysas
-and evaluation of bids.

-Monitoring of the schedule subiiiitted by the
¢ontractor and development of progress
‘sheets for various activities.

~Contractor’s bilf vefification. .
~Developrent of As-built drawings: . -
-Generdl  site jnspechon Bspetially -of
mechanical wotks & rectification of site
ﬁrobiems, :

Cranes.

Py

]

; X
{ :

E

§

. !
Cerﬂﬁc‘ates & Train’lngs‘J

—ProjectManagement by PIMS

-]T_mble? Sdlving arid Decns:on Making, by
TLO

»GUNGHG" Team } Bun!dxﬁg by Navitus.
-Cﬁange Management . Workshop by
Nawtus.a

~Goal Setting &Woi% P!annlng. by Navifus.
-Effective Presenlatldn Skils, by FFBE,
Tralmng’“Center o

-Effective C‘ommumcahorr Skms. by PIMS
—'Strateg[c Management by 1. & D FFBL,

~Sfress land Tlme%' Manégement by Mfs

Octara.

*Conﬂ:ctManagement by Mls Octara:

~High Performante M'anager by M/s Evolve
-Fmanoq for non:fi nance Manager by
Pakistari Socjety ! fdr”‘l'rammg‘ and
Development, i

-Basic. French Languaye course  from -

Alliance Francaise, Karachi,

<BGeneral Corrosion by E‘x- Corros:on expeit

"ot Stamn*arbnn BV,
~Cojtosidn j Cooling and Bmler Water -

Treatment by-M/s Buckman. -

‘APE-510§ Pressure:! Ves‘sel lnspectlon dnd

Rerating, ~ -

-AP}-580] _ APl RP-581stk Based
Inspectiop Technoiogy.

-API1-653] Above Ground ‘Sto?‘age Tanky
Scdpe & [nspection bySGS PaKistan.. _
-Basic Vibration Monitoring course by SKE,
-IMS Audit Techmques by SGS Pakistar.
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* . Ariees Afzal

Pdéiﬁﬁn
(li’[echamcal Engmaerf

Quallﬁc,athu

B.E. MECHANlGAL
' UET, Peshawar

nghllghtof Skills

E’Iayetta key rofe iy Erectioh,
“Pre Commissioning and
[ c‘ommissmmng of Cpal Powér
[ plant. - :
| Cartied gut pant of
engineering. in hoise. o spegd
"| uptheengineering ¥
procurement phase and abler
to cormplefe the Ammortig -
BMR project itk tu:ne,and
within budget. ]
Evaluate that it is safe to
operaté Ammonia Plant
Secoridaty Refortner e\rer'i
| after a humber of hot sjots
due to refractory failures, 82
million dollars were saved in
8.4 million dollars Seoondam_r
} Reforiner rep!acemeni
project,
Cvernight designed of bundle
pulling siructure for Low,
Pressute Corbamate
Condenser vqh:&l‘l:ednced the
downtime by 05 days as
crang of such capacily was .
fiot available ih the vicinity.
Canversion of data frorit |
legacy systeri to SAP !
requirement in five days !
against estimafed time onZ
months, by MM teain
thembers gnd make SAP Go-
 live on time. All thisbecome: -
possible by the helpof !
Almighty Allafi ahd my
exceptional £ unmatched %k!]fs
in MS Exce),
4 Got First Position jn Final
¥ear Mechartical Engineering
with Highest ever marks irt
Techanleal Deparlment. y

i
.

1
1
I
I
I

| execytion,
1ensuring ©  compliance
1 standards. Skilled in AutoPIPE, STAAD Pro,
1 AutoCAD, and MS Office; he exceis in cost
{ estimation, hid evaluaﬁons and engirteering
4 tnanagement, 5

Professional S;ummpag{

With over 20 years.of experience, Anees.”

| Afzal specializes in piping and mechanical
-t equipment design, project exewtmn and
't pfant pperations. He spent over a decade at

FFBL Fertilizér Gomplex, focusing on piping

- {design, structural analysis, and mechanical

" [superiision. After 2014, he played a key role
| i the erection and commissioning of &, coal
-{power plant. Currehlly, as Manager -

Projects. at FPCL, he leads project planping,
and “téchnical heyaluatipna.
wit

4

| Expérience
June 2014 - Present

| FFBL Power Company Limited:
Rolé- Manager Projects Departivient -’
Cumently working as Manager — Projects at

| FPCL, oversees project planning, execution,

and cohtractor management. Pjaye&a key-
role in'the erection and commissioning of the,

| coal power plant. Responsible for technical,
' evaluations,

cost  estimation,  bid
asﬁeSSmentsf and ensuring compl‘ance witht.
industry  standards  for larg&scaie
enginegring projects.

March-2009- t6 June 2014- Fauji Ferfilizer

Bin Qasim Lid. (FFBL}, Karachi, Paksshn

-Role: Project Enginedr

-Areas of respons:bshty

-Project Docuntentation Manger

-imipleriented Project System, Investment
Management and DMS modules

Balutions includes CAPEX, Tumaround
Ducument Management.,

| Jan-2008-Feb-2009) [T Eriabled Bdsiﬁm

Transformation Froject. Fauji Fertilizer
Bin Qusim Ltd {FFBL), Karachi, Pakistan

Evalyationr of Ammonia Plait Secondary
Reformer for its safe and continued
operation. Engaged M/s Hador Topsoe for
grigineering. (8.4 milion dollats pioject).
‘Equipment was techinically found safe forits
continued operation and prpjec! was closed.

industry-

’ Mar-2005-Dec 2007 Falul Fertilizer Bin

Qasim Ltd (FFEL), Karachi.

Worked: ot Baiancing, Modemization and
Revamp of Ammonia plant for sustained &
mcreased production to;1570 MTPD from its

‘existing:capacity of 1 270:MTRD (50 million
doIIars l-i'mject) Doty

Key . r?ponsm;lmes of Ammoma BMR
. Include:

HEAT EXCHANGERS sAND VESSELS
[AMMONIABMR) - : ~ i}

~Carded  out Ehgtneenng RFQ's

preparation, vendor. selection, mspecuon
yigits to vendqr workshaop and supewigion of
erection activities. * * %

fThe séope incudés for “the - folfowing
exchangers and vessels:’ |

<Tim" Heater; E'212 ;(gas~gas heat

“exchanger} -

-DMW| Pre}reater E‘201 0{ * =
-Syr Gas Chiller, E20111 £

" Methanator Feed / Efﬁuen; ex:;tmngers’ E-
209AB |

S
-Bdck End Steam Generators. E—§22NB
~Methanator Knockout drum {G-2011}
AR BLQWERS (AMMONIA BMR)
-Erection of two air blowers (K-1001A4/B}
Inciuding design ahd ‘engineering of the
foilowing associated equipments:
~Suction: filters, L-1001A/B
-After cuole’rs‘ E-1002A/B*:
-Knpckot drims, Q—‘iQOQNB ‘
~Methanator Knockait drum, G-211
‘This project offered a great challéhge:due to
area limitation in extst:ng -ammonid plaht
Ia’You’t % ,

£ i Z.
R "i .»?
-Devetopment of Iayout plping ispmetricy
apid support structure design; ordering of
piping miaterial for Benfield (CO2 removal
sysi*em.jirevamp {about 6U process bas and
solition Jines). Reviewed ~and finalized its
piping- ﬂexibillty ana?ysis at M/s Ghemprod:
offic, Milan Haly (02 yisits). «
~Engineerng and execition of Low-Heat
system. for. energy :efficiency of Benfild
‘system. A Benfield -solution Flash' Vessél
was mstalled 5t 20 meters frotn FFL along
with four Steam Ejectors. « .
-Modiﬁca‘tzon in a, Enumber: of wvessels
inciu’dlng,
-Conversion of Uay system in Benfield
towers 10 packed bad with ‘addition. .of 09
new nozzlés and man-ways followed by
localized heat treatment ofvessels
06, knockouis were, modaﬁed with ‘entarge
rmzzles and newmtemals .
:04 ‘Heal exchangers were modified with
enlarge nozzles and 01 heat exchanger was
elevaleqtzor better peﬁormance
-Flexibility analysis of exiting pracess eir
compressors (K-101 Na)suctton dlsohgrga
and mterﬁonnectlng piping.
—Prepared as-built Iso‘meinrz contract of
ammoma;glant required for BMR.
Cost estimate of Urea Plant BMR'(€ 40 MM)
based on study 'conducted by M/s
Stamicarbon to incréase producﬂ:;n from

1760 MTPD to 2400 MTPD.



Oot-1999-Feb 2005 .

1 Faujf Ferfilizer Birt Qasim-
Ltd (FFBL), Karachi, |
-Stress afialysis of ctomplete
| Benfiled piping circuit! (CO2 |1
nemcvaj system in Ammotia
‘Plant), its piping Terouting,
design of new structure for ifs
| supports. The circuit confains
| 06 purmps and 02 HPRT:
~Flexjbility analysjs of Sfeam
Export -circuit frony. Ammonia

| Plant 16 Urea Plant (70 Million

Rupees /yr saving project)

o | -Design of expansion Joop for

-BFW pamp (G-106A/B) 1o
dliminate existing damaged
expansion bellows. | -

. -Stress analysis of néw ZhQ:
Desulfirization project plpang )

| System.:

: -Excess vibration felnﬁvai;qf g
| NPS - line . fromr  Stripper fo
| rectifying colugmi, -
J~Rectification of " v:b&mm

" .} problem and'provision of Y-

| type' suction straifers at high
pressure’ BFW' supply pumps
.| (G-403A/B) and BFW pumps
' to MS header(G-418A/B). -
Structure. design. "wsing
STAAD-Pro incliding
Monprails, Jih <rines,
platforms, walkways' (74
MeT of steel structiire. was

analyzed and d,eslgngd),'

including:

-Rigging ‘stfucture for fm’i'ldlb’
pliling structure: (11 MeT) for
Low Pressuré Gorbamale
Condenser (UH-271).
-Intercofinection’ of Urez Wet
with Lifea aranalancﬁ pIams
| (3.0 MeT).

~interconnections of desomer
witty Ures Wet (4. 8 MeT).
-Monorail at Urea fop, a Jdrge

porfiori of existing 'structure of |

urea- wet was analyzed lo
check its safety for additional
Idadmg (27 MeT): - i
-Rigging structure for biindle
pulling structure (05 MeT} for
| Reflix Condenser (UH-411).
~Suspenided mainteniance
platformy for Urea’ granulatiun
screens {7.5 Me‘i’)r

| Other Mechanical
| based on Service Reguests {(PCRs)

 -Design

Design - Pﬁékag‘es

-Mechanical Design Package for salfuric
acid dosing system fo cooling towers,
intluding design of new sulfuric ac:d day
fank; its associated piping.

Jnvolve in erection of new HRSG,
{Repiacement of existing 80 Mel/hr
problématic HRSG with new M’acdy boiler of
130 MeT/hr capacities).

review and :mp!emenfatzon
packages of several major piping and other
plant. modification and improvement jobs d
Including piping, pressure vessels ianks &

| structure efc.
-Weld ahd other repair prooedures for
various plant proBles including a Chart for

welding piocedures of common fnatérial
used jn FFBL, . '
inspection Engineer - :

A, nufnber of visits to vendor mfkshop for
inspection of heat exchangers / pressure.

1vessels fabrication, including inspection of

Backend Steam Generafors at, Mts Bors:g
Gemany.

-Pressute vessels inspection of over 1weng¢ )

vessels ih annual fumarounds. 5 o
-Inspection of boiler; heaf exchangel‘s and
Piping systems,

-Hydro, testing of piping, vessels and heat
excharigers.

-Experience in thickriess monitoting, Dye
penetrant festing, ste.

Good knowledge of tommosion pherimnendn
and ofher testing techniques.

Jhha-1998-Sep %999 Fauji Fertlilzer Bm
Qasim Ltd (FFBL);, Karacht.

Worked as a plannihg engineer durihg
erection. 6f Pak Arah Refinery Project with
Dascorr engineering. .Assignments include

plarming of manpower & cohisumables: and

production-of progress repofts & Invoiding for
piping erection job. Most of these jobs were
haridlies usihg Primavera Project Planner
and other saftware developed by D&csom

Maheﬂals Warehouse

“Worked as a matenal& engineér wrtri local &
foreign ordering

-Experience of warehotse operaﬁoﬂa
Safely, Health and Environment .

~Safety Coordinator-for Projert Engmeerlng
at FFBL,

-Conducted” weekly  safety talks and
numerous safety-training sessions.

-Review of FFBL safety manual.

Integrated Management System
-Developed a number of Procedures and
Work Instruction for Project Enginegring
based on IMS (ISG - 9001:2000, 1SO
14001:2004 & OSHAS 18001:2007}.
“Trained as IMS auditor by M/s Buréau
Veritas with @ nuinber of refresher courses.
-Conducted a number of IMS interhal atdits

1 of different sectien.

¢ i
|
i
i
i

Cerhﬁcates & Trammgs

-High Peﬁormance Managers by Mfs
Nabitus {02 days). .

-Compuler course for AutoCAD and M$§
office (15 days). . 1

-Primavera Project Planner (3(1 days),
<Piping Fes:gn and ﬂextblhty analysrs {03
days), at gt
-Manag%ment Skills’ {02d ays).

;Pfg)hle Bolvirig QfDeclsmn Making (01
3z ) a
-Worksfﬂdp‘ on Communica;jon skills (01

~Time Managements (02 d sys ’
«antegfated Management’ tem {QHSE)
Auditor Course alang Jmth 03. refresher
‘workshops{(04+04 +. 01 £01 +01 days).
~Safety Training (01+;0f{ days).

~Safe driving course {01, +0% days),
~Medigal first-aid trajning course (01 day).
-Effective Preseqtation Skills; (02 days),
»Managemen_t course for Junior. Exectmues
(03.days). IR

-High Peérformanice Man@gérs (02 days)
~Goal selfing & Work Planning (02 days).
~Levekllh"a;nzng o SAP PmJects Systems,

6mggtbr L:terag L
Major working expenence jn fq!!nwmg
General'Software: 1 i }10
MS Ofﬁcb e :
MS Proect - i
anavera Pro;e::iPlanner T
Vistial Basnc :
Lotirs Notes .
Major. working e)tpenénce in following
Engineering Softwares: |
-ﬁiutoP!P}E Plus, Fﬁpmg des:gn and stress
analysis, :
—ALGOR-PlpEplus, Plplng deslgrl and
stress analysi‘s Ko B0e
~STAAD; Pro, Structure, des‘ig“n and
Analysis. ' Ty
-AutoCAEr Draftmg soﬂwaré .
-GODECALC, Désigning. and evaluatiorrof
‘gasket, ﬁaﬁga. pressure vpssel-etc.
-STAHL, Key to steel., ; '+
-CADWQRX-PiPE, BD modeling of piping -
with lsoden. : _
-TENA Tibesheet, Exchanger Tubieshest
designer,
-Compress,. Pressure Vessel deslgning
Develop: Engmeeﬂng Sofbvare’s for
Project Engmeering.a : %

e

£ “ 3
t ? . * ¥
:

-Soﬂ_wrare for preparatron of Welkfing
Procedurs Shecifications }n MSAGCE$$
with Visual Basic.

~OrfLine’}Box-up for, ﬂange Ieakagtss with.
complete, database

-Pipe thickness design basbd on B313
Piping 1branch / Vessel opening
reinforcement design’ ba;;ed on B313 f
ASME Sec. IIVDiv-l.;

Insulatioh & Painting system, with BOM
generatlon

e e R T



 Muhamniad Ayaz Butt

Position ;
: |

Unit Manager -Instrument .

huaurcatmn ,
I

o Bacha”!ors in !nﬂustrla!Elactmrﬂcs

Engmeenng

hnstititd of nelistial Eiéc{fqmlcs
. Engine’eri‘ng’ oo

Highlighto?Skllh 1:

”P:awcai Knowledge &
experience of ’Installaﬁon.
Engineering &
Compissiabing of bath |
[ _sefver based & Hybrid Des
. and PLC based systems in”
- -various Processes. i
Practical experience in O&M
activities in Power plants dod
* Dil.& Gas field including ;
- troublgshgoting of controf -
system hardware and HM}
issus and configurationand
tlining cfcontrol logps. |
Experience of reading and
development of loop, :
Electricdl & Tepniriation :
. drawings for Controf System.
[ projéctsn AWCADS 3
. Visio. -
. Experience in Pre,Pro;ects )
DCS& PLE design aftd
reading P&ID {o segregale
process variable tags far:
system designing.
Skills to martage.& leating
projects ard experitice i in
supervision of confractor -
during installation Juks i L
projests.
Good hands orr exneﬁenue
' on progess itistrument
installatiop and calibration
and actuation system. ¢

= Acceptance Test) & SAT ;
(Site Acteptance Tesf) i
DCS& PLC projecfs. * °

- Experlence' nf
Cofhmissioning of Mo{or
Drives {AC & DC Dtives) in
various.industries. i
Gond Cofgmumication Skllls
‘and good speaking and
wriling ability in Urdu and -
English.

team of more than one
depadment,

" 1plant
| execution,
“ma:ni’enartce planhing,

- Experience of FAT (Factofy | <logic & HRI development,

Experience to Mmanage large

Professional Summagy_
Experiennced in managing hstruméntation

and control {I&C) systems for power plant
raperations, ensuring teljability, efficiency,
and compliance with industry standards.
Skilled in project execution, maintenance
planning, troubleshooting, and calibralion of
instruments. Expertise in automation, control
system optimization, contractor supervision,
and teghnical evaluations to enhance plant
performance and operational safety

Egp_enegt.‘e

July 2014~ Present. .

.| FFBL Power Company Limited

| Responsible for overseeing instrumentation
and control (1&C) systents, ensuring refiable
operations.  Mariages  project
technical evaluations,

and cqntragtor
supems:on Experieniced it froableshooting,
testmg, calibration, and installation of
Instiuments while enisuring compliance with

.| séfety and- industry standards. Skilled in

ophm:zmg plant performance ‘through
automatiofi and control : system
EHhancants

: ﬁBB PVt. Ltd, Pakistan

| 1nf May, 2008.fo 30th May, 2014:

Senjor Project Engineer Process

Automation (Project Design & Execution).

Server based DCS {§00xa System),’

« Engineering & Gommissioning of Vertical
CementMill in Al-Abbas Cement Lid.

» Job Seape , S
logic & HMI' development, System
. conﬁguratlon Commissioning,

Networking of server client baséd DCS
. System, Starfup & SAT of System for
. Vertical Cement Nl Process Contral,

= Engirieering & Commissioning of Rope
* Dyeing Machine in Mekotex Karachi. ,

| = JobScope:

- Logic & HMI developriient; - Systerny
cénfiguration,  System
: Commifssionting, Startup & SAT of System
for Rope Dyeing Machine Automation.

| ~ Engineering & Commissioning of BCS for

. Station Control & ESD System for
Lompression piant in Qadirpix Gaa Field.

~ Job.Scope N

configuration; Commissioning,
Netwarking of server ciient based DCS &
- ESO  System, MODBUS  TCP
communication of 14 Aliep Bradlsy PLCs
orcompressors with DCS, Startup & SAT
of System of 14 Gas Gompressbrs*,(:ontml
for 150 mmscfd Natural Gas expansion
project In Qadirput Gas Field.
~ Engineering & Commissioning of ABB
800xa DCS for HRSG, Balance of Plant
&ESD of CaGen Powef Plant in Lotte
. PPTA,
- Job Scope
- Logic & HMI development, DCS hardware.
Panel design, FAT of hatdware, MODBLUS
TCP cormunication of DCS with Natural
Gas-Compressors PLCs, Diverter Damper

Networking,

PLC end Gas Turbine PLU, tesling & _

'i '

[ S

" Hybrid 6cs (Fme]anco 2ooo System).

- Engmeénng & Commrssnonmg of Data

CTenter! . in  Islamabad  {Building
Managément System). ;_ :
- Job Scdpe P

< Logic design and: develownent Des”
Pane] -i design, . HMI}, qevelopmenn
installation of lnstrumenl for building
automafion; Netwoiking of System along -
‘with MODBUS {R$485) contiunication of
ABB DGS with third party equipment and
ABB LV.Panel and commissioning of ABB
LV panél. Supervision of contragtor was.
+also part of job scope in Pangl‘ and
instrumedt installation. k.

~ Engineering & Commissioning of Bumer&
Fumacé Control Loop for584 tons bailer in:
Nationa] Refinery. : * - ; -

-Job Scppe :

- Logic’” creve!opmenf HM: dgvefopment,
Networking of Systefh -along with
‘MODBUS (RS485) - co‘mmumcat:orr of
ABB DGS with ABB Bugner‘ Management
‘System {PLG AC31, (:ommassmnmg ang ’
start up pf 84.tons Bo'ler P

« Up gra;fa%non of ifront? end of ABB
‘Freelance 2000 QGS from’ old version o
latest version in;Pakistan Petroleun -
Limited {(PPL) Mazaram G’aa Field.

-.JobSco il

-'l)‘pgradgboh lndtxded Repla’demerit ofold
workstafions with: new ‘workstations - with.
latest versmn of Freelance 2000 installed
(Windows 7 Compatible); Networking of
system with DGS hardware, Modification
in !hel& existing :control lcops and
modfﬁcahomn ESD Ioglcsjn ABB Trigaurd
PLC (SILZ System). Whole activity was
done in ittieir 4 days Anpuai Shutdowr
per:od. § §. i
fn'ﬁSU & 800%a Hahﬁony! 3

- Communication of CM50 oontrollers withe
Infig0. DCS vig MODBUS R$485 fayer .
PPL Sui pas field. <% ;| z, :

- Job Seope G B

~ Corimunication of 4 CM50 sindle Ioop
controllérs (Slaves) wsth BRE400 ( Master)
via MODBUS RTu on RS485 layerin PPL
Sui Gas Field. .

-Up grad ion cffmnt end' of ABB [nfisC -
DCS with 800 Harmvny Sys{em of Lirea &
‘Utilty Plgot in Fauji, Ferhhzer Bin Qasim
Limited, | . 9 \

-Job Scope ik

- HMI deve[opmlant, tnstalfatlon of Setvers,
Net%rkl?g -of PCUS (In‘ﬁSO firik) with
BOOxa | sewers, - BOOxa system.
sonﬁgura’l!gn for inﬁQU ‘control -system
Commissjoning and start. ﬂp activities of
Ureg &Uilrty Plants i

Telemet:y System

- lnstallation Cahbration *and Data logging
conﬁguraﬂon on GSM‘ of Electrormagnefic.
insertion \type Flow.metefs (ABR Aqua
Probe 2)iin WSS13 project for Karachi
Water & Sewerage Board (KW&SB).




commissioning of HRSG, Balance of Plant

& ESD progess of Co-Gen Power Plant in
Lotte PPTA. Supervision of contractor was
also part of job scepe in Panel Insfallation.
Engineering & Commigsioning of ABB

Cointrol System 800xa for 8-Port Ratary -

Valve in Mglex Process Gontrel in Byco Ol
Refinery.

Job Scdpe .
Logic designing & development, HMI
FAT of hardware, testing process of-8 port

Rotary Valve Control for Moléx Process in
Byco OQil Refinery. Supervision of

contractor was also part of job. scope in .

Panel Installation. Commissioning fiot yet
started (On going Project).

. development, hardware Panet design, -
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| Professional Summary
| Expetiented  Mechanical Engineer with

Pasition

Unit Managef: (Prﬁje'(fia
Departmenq

Qnaliﬁcaﬁon

) nghllght of Skills

" Efficient Délegation

. Leadersfup & Team
Management

" A
o o0 e s o e+ oy e e e e o A e 1 Y

. Basit Iqbal Khart __.

MBA Matketing-O0K. (2"01“ 1)}
ME Energy sys-NED- (2008)
BE Mechanical-NED- {2004) :

€

. _Strong Presﬁnfatmsmnﬁ
" Effective Commumcahotv

!

Erodictive. Meeting Maﬁagmm

b ¢ R

o Ehe—m e SEEoo o

Experience,

 expertise in maintenance, pro;ect exgoution,
inspection and commissioning of rotating
equipment -in SAP-driven environments.
Skiled in  technical - evaluafions,

copstruction pversight acioss power plarits,
and fedilizer plants. A results-driven

. | professional with strong analytical skills,

teamwork, “and ‘problem:golving -abilities, '
ﬂmvang in challenging
environmerfts,

FFBLPdwerCompany Limifed .
Urtit Manﬁger - Projects (Sep 2022 -

| Presentj

~Leading project execption, planmng. and
stakeholder coordination. -
-Managing  budgets,
{imelines.for key projects.
Unit Head ~ Maintenance-{Jan 2022 -Aug

resgurces and -

"1 2022) .
+ - [ ~Improved plant rehabah!y and d“e\?elopeﬂ‘

initigation plahs fot i‘chmngfa:mres
-Conducted RCA, ppfimized maintenance
budgets, apd ensured machinery reliability.
Inspection Unit (2017 - 2021}

t-led vibration diagnostics, cendition

| monitoring, arid 'technlcaftrammgs.
| -Managed TA/QGfor boilers, bipiﬁg and
*1 pressurevessels.

-Dévgloped inspettion dashboardd and
 optimized shutdown planning.

Fauji Fertilizer Bm Qasim I”.lmlted (2014-
204E)

‘| Project Unit DM fSection " Manager-

 Project-GPP
;-Ff’ewéw and finalizatic of BOM/BOQ &
Invitation to Bid (ITBs} packages for

. Boilers,Steam torbine *gnneratots {STG‘S)

for vendor's proposal.

-Reéview and finalization of teg:hn;cai
proposals from all vendors.

nCDDfdlnaflon and follow-yp with Supply
- Chain fortimely procurement of ma’tenal I

" | services.

~Coardinated  with, package. supplfers
{Chingse, Korean, Eurapean.and Localy for
design finalizatior and interferencechecks
for mechanical and civil work. A

~Manage timely completion of Mechanical
. and Civil designing related to Boilers, STG
arid BOP. Ingluding piping, equipment,
structure, vessels, tanks, heat exchangets,
silos.. :

~Finalized Painting,. Piping,
Valves

Insulation,

ENAR Petrotech Services Limited {2010+

2014)

Project Marager/ Site Manager -

~led audits for BYCO Refinery, Aftock
Reﬁnery. and NRL for commissioning and

L upgrades:

procurement, vendor coordinafion, and

mdus’trial-

: Y
o

"-Managed' Work Opnmzaﬁon Project for

Penspén UK (White Oil Pipeline) and
'ppeparéd bid ﬂocumentahon
-Ovefsaw QA/QC. and | consultancy for
projects like EPRF-II, Sour Gas Plant
Dakhni, and Pirkoh Gas Plant.
-Ensuréd safety comphanw ihspection
: pians (QIPs) and quamy assurance; per
industry standards. - : *
~Reviewed BOQs, -techmca} specs, bid
: pvaluations, and® - coordiated  with
sfakeholders for seamless exetution.

E&gra ’Vopak Termma! Limtted. (2008-
0) .

Projecf Engmeeru- Ethy]ene Storage &
Hiﬂdlmg Facility {$35M Pro;e&t}
-Managed pressure vessels, tanks, piping

- enginedring, rocurement, and
constriction  with antemat:cmal EPC
consultants :

- Revtewed basnc ‘arid detalred engineering,
QARE! "documents,. ¢ sand maténai
specifications: . e

-Monitored project progress " conducted
weekly nrieetings with contractors {China &
Soﬁﬂand) and ¢} ensured APS-SZB
Qompll.ance» 3 i

- Presented monthly- progress reports’ fo thg
CEO. | and coordinated technical
d:scu‘ss:cms iwthﬁessghefs m China.

Eau;l Ferﬁllzer Bin Qas;m ]Limlféd {2005-
2008)

Project En’gmeer g Ammnma. Plant
Reyamp ($55M P!'djeci)

-Workej on s?rucfure analyms p?pmg strase
analysis, heat excﬁange(s. waste heat
buiters, and pressore vessels design.

*-Prowded ‘support “during 12006 & 2007
ma_;or piam iumarounda (BMR Phase-t &

- evievied EPC contractor documents,
vendor | prequalrﬁéahom and  bid
evaluations. Y

ﬂanducted " pipeline - ‘stress analysis
(Autopxpe) vessel design “(Codecal), and
structure analysis (STAAD Pro).

~GCoordinted with ‘vendors, contractors,
and copsultanis gp{ prbcuremgnf angd
constmqﬁon CE 4

E ' e" 1
Trammgs and exterhat sfemdés.;

-V"bratlogal Analysas i

- Pressure Vessé| Inspéc:xoﬁ

- Hydrostatic testing - -

»Entrepreneumhlp[Start-up

-at DHASuﬂ‘a i

-More: than 100 Machire ;

- Diagnostic Services to EPCL,

~KE and ENI :

~Technical Adviser at Suffa

-Unive:slty :

-E)demaI%Examlner & F’rolet;t

-adviser at NED Umverslty;

-Mentorat TQF
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FFBL POWER COMPANY LIMITED (FPCL)

e ]
| i
Records of Engmeermg and Technical Staff Proposed ta

be Employed

.

wa.« R PR——

FFBL Power thnpany Limited (FPCL) intends to operate the:propo‘sed di stantwn system
’thmugh its ‘ntema{ e‘ng’héermg and technical resoutces, le,veragmg its ex:sting eXpertise i
the operafion qt;utmiy -stale powar infrastructure. The staffmg Iptaa for! the distnbutzon
function is currently” under development, and the assignment jof roles, deploymenf of
personnel, and fofmahzat;on of team strugture is fnprogress. .| . . : g

The Cér"apanywdi énsurethattl'i"emsrr bution operations are. staffédwuh quahﬁed electrical
engmaezs operations personnet, and support technicians, drawm'g ‘from;ts establ;she& in-
houise talent pqal that has been resporisible for the operation anj mam’tenance of FPCLs

§118 MW coal-fi red generafaon facility and associated transmlssion ;mfrastrucgture,g
£ i

" Mdrtﬁa{ record oT the dssugnated techmca[ team, alongWJtthdlylduaL qualufrgat‘ ons and
dapa?‘ttngntaf resrionSIb:litles, will be submitted to the Hono'urabt;Anthonty ata iatef stage,
i accordange wn&h NEPRA's compliance: framework and upon Tahzatuon of operatzonal

!
_A,f
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- AFFERGUSONE:CO,

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of FFBL Power Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of FFBL Power Company Limited (the
- Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2024, and the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity,
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including material accounting policy information and other explanatory information, and we state
that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge

and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or logs and other comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the
notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the
manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs
as at December 31, 2024 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity

and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2023, were audited by
another auditor who expressed an unmodified oplinion on those financial statements dated February

20, 2024.

.................

74-East, end Floor, Blue Area, Jinnah Avenue, P.0.Box 3021, Islamabad-44000, Pakistan
Tel: +92 (51) 2273457-60/2604934-37; Fax: +92 (51) 2277924; <wnw.pwe.com/pl>

*KARACH! *LAHORE 2ISLAMABAD




2 AFFERGUSONG&CO.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the directors' report, but does not include the financial statements and our

auditor's reports thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, on other information obtained
prior to the date of this auditor's report, we conclude that there is @ material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 {XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of infernal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concemn basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concem.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017),

the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income,-the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with
the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XiX
of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were
for the purpose of the Company's business; and

no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIIl of
1980). .

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is JehanZeb Amin.

A7 ﬁlﬁ-wvié

Islamabad

Chartered Aﬁ%ountants
|

Date: Februdlry 19, 2025
UDIN: AR202410083eGg0fJUxt
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FFBL POWER COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024

ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
intangible assets '
Long term investment

CURRENT ASSETS
Stores and spares
Stock in trade

Trade debts
Loans, advances, prepayments and other receivables

income tax refundable
Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY AND RESERVES

Share capitai
Capital reserve - Acquisition reserve
Revenue reserve - Accumulated profits

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term finance facilities
Deferred employee benefit
Deferred taxation

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long term finance facilities
Short term borrowings

Trade and other payables

Contract liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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13
14

15

13
16
17
18

19

DIREETOR

2024 2023
Rupees '000 Rupees '000
23,482,398 24,241,241
6,344 2,398 {
3,737,906 4,085,621
27,226,648 28,329,260
1,335,747 1,075,830
2,132,117 2,488,766
3,765,628 4,615,411
795,078 604,608
273,607 287,611
2,355,776 2,869,992 |
10,657,953 71,942,227

37,884,601

— 40,271,487

8,587,500 8,587,500
{452,059) -

19,510,123 12,005,055
27,645,564 20,592,555
- 8,845,429
204,594 190,607
732,516 687,998
937,110 9,724,034

- 3,341,549 |
7,063,665 5,536,840
2,222,490 1,052,041
15,772 24,068
9,301,927 9,054 898
— 37.88460T 30,277,487
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FFBL POWER COMPANY LIMITED

SLATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Revenue - net
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Insurance claim
Gross profit after insurance claim

Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses
Operating profit

Other income

Finance cost
Finance income
Net finance cost

Share of profit from associate
Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income / {loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Share of other comprehensive income / (loss} from associate

Related deferred tax

Remeasurement gain on employees’ retirement benefit plan

Related deferred tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

The agnexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

: C Ll T T

Note

20
21

20.4

22
23

24

25
24

26

2024 2023
Rupees '000 Rupees '000
29,506,821 28,057,476
(21,794,247) (20,017,128)
7,712,574 8,040,348
2,390,122 869,495
10,102,696 8,909,843
{169,1886) (152,980)
(437,918) {287,155)
9,495,592 8,469,708
615,983 71,153
(2,509,261) {4,213,765)]
73,937 || 14,377
(2,435,324) {4,199,388)
104,192 118,184
7,780,443 4,459,657
(276,904) (441,010)
7,503,539 4,018,647
153 {32,563)
(38) 8,141 |
115 {24,422)
1,498 | 2,249
(84) -
1,414 2,249
7,505,068 3,996,474

N
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?FBL POWER COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Balance as at January 1, 2023

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive loss for the year

Transactions with owners of the Company - Distribution
First interim dividend - quarter ended March 31, 2023

(@ Rs. 1.747 per share)
Second interim dividend - quarter ended June 30, 2023

(@ Rs. 1.747 per share)

Balance as at December 31, 2023

Balance as at January 1, 2024

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive Income for the year

Share in acquisition reserve of Fauji Foods Limited

Balance as at December 31, 2024

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

N

)

I1ssued, Capital Revenue
subscribed reserve - reserve -
; o e Total
and paid up  Acquisition  Accumulated
capital reserve profits
Rupees 000

8,587,500 - 11,008,581 19,596,081
- - 4,018,647 4,018,647 |
. - {22,173) {22,173)
- . 3,996,474 3,996,474
- - {1,500,000}){| {1.500,000)
- - {1,500,000)|| (1.500,000)
- - (3,000,000) (3,000,000)

8,587,500 - 12,005,055 20,592,555

8,587,500 - 12,005,055 20,592,565
- - 7,603,538 7,503,539
S S 1,629 1,529
= - 7,505,068 7,505,068
- (452,059) - (452,059)

8,587,500 (452,059) 19,510,123 27,645,564
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FEBL POWER COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax
Adjustments for:

Depreciation ) 4.6

Share of profil from assoclate 6.2

Provision for staff retirement benefits

Provision for workers' profit participation fund and workers welfare fund

' 25

Finance cost
(Gain} / Loss on sale of fixed assels 24
Operating cashflows before working capital changes

Changes in
Stores and spares
Stock in trade
Trade debts
Advances, prepayments and other receivables

Trade and olher payables

Cash generated from operalions

Gratuity paid
Leave encashment paid
Workers' profit participation fund paid
Income lax paid
Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to capital work in progress 4
Purchase of operating fixed assets 4
Disposal of fixed assets 4
Investment in-associate company

Net cash generated from / (used in} investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long term loan received 13
Long term loan repayments made 13
Dividend paid
Finance cost paid

Met cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents during the year

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

11.4

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The annexed no;eﬁ 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2024 2023
Rupees '000 Rupees '000
7,780,443 - 4,459,657
1,164,307 1,099,213
{104,192} (118,184)
65,965 55,192
368,258 232,915
2,509,261 4,213,765
{528,612) 569
3,474,987 5,483,470
11,255,430 9,943,127
{259,908) (348,358)
356,649 229,870
849,783 7,672,294
(190,470) 205,979
1,022,632 {(3,282,884)
1,778,686 4,676,891
13,034,116 14,620,018
{(21,183) (22,702}
(25,042) {20.235)
{223,941) {221,799)
(227,554) (227,754)
12,536,396 14,127,528
(362,117) (613,366)
{135,538} (54,044)
616,857 9,396
. {4,000,000)
119,202 (4,658,014)
- 4,000,000
{12,242,785) {3,150,594}
- (3,000,000)
(2,453,854} (4,170,923)
(14,696,639} (6,321,517}
(2,041,041) 3,147,997
(2,666,848) (5,814,845)
{4,707,889) (2,666,848)
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FFBL POWER GOMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

o
[ 8

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

FFBL Power Company Limited {the Company) is a public limited company incorporated on June 27, 2014 in
Pakistan under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act 2017}. The Company is a
subsidiary of Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited (the Parent Company / FFC) and the ultimate parent is Faujt
Foundation (FF).The Company has been established to build, own and operate a 118 Megawatt coal based
power generation facility al Port Qasim Karachi. The Company sells electricity produced to its parent company,
Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited {48 Megawatt) and K-Electric Limited (K-Electric) (52 Megawatt) under a
Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) having a period of 30 years. The Company also sells steam produced from
the facility to FFC, under a Steam Supply Agreement (SSA) with a term of 30 years. The Company

commenced its commercial operations on May 19, 2017.
The geographical location and address of the Company's business units, including plant is as under:

The registefed office of the Company is situated at FFC Sona Tower, Plot No. C1&C2, Sector B,
Jinnah Boulevard, Phase I, DHA, Istamabad.

The Company's land (measuring 100 acres) and power generation facility are located at FFC
Complex, P-1/EZ-1/ Eastern Zone, Bin Qasim, Karachi,

National Electric Power Regulatory Authority (NEPRA} awarded reference tariff for supply of electricity to K-
Electric Limited (KE) to the Company vide decision dated December 29, 2015 in respense to Power Acquisition
Request filed by KE. The reference tariff upon Commercial Operations Date was subsequently revised by

NEPRA vide its decision dated February 089, 2022.

The Company holds 15.87% equity of Fauji foods Limited (FFL), representing 400 million ordinary shares of
Rs. 10 each, acquired at a par value of Rs. 10 per share. FFL is principally engaged in processing and sale of
toned milk, milk powder, fruit juices, allied dairy and food products. The head office of FFL is situated at 42

CCA, Ex Park View, DHA Phase-VIll, Lahore,

During the current year, the former parent i.e. Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited (FFBL) of the Company has
merged into FFC.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of;

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017, and
Provisions of and directives issued under the Companias Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the provisions
of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.
Basis of Measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. The financial statements,
except for cash flow information, have been prepared under the accrual basis of accounting.
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2.4.1

2.4.2

24.4

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements of the Compény are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest Thousand Rupee, unless otherwise indicated.

Significant accounting judgements and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are

discussed in the ensuing paragraphs.

Useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the useful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment on a regular basis.
Any change in estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of property,
plant and equipment with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge, impairment and deferred tax.

Right of use asset

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. If the Company is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase oplion, the right-of-use assets

are depreciated over the underlying assets® useful life.

Provision for Taxation

The Company takes into account the current income tax laws and decisions taken by the taxation authorities.
Instances where the Company's view differs from the income tax department at the assessment stage and
where the Company considers that its view on items of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts

are shown as contingent liabilities.

Measurement of Expected credit losses (ECL)

The measurement of the expected credil loss ("ECL") allowance for financial assets measured at amortised
cost is an area that requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions about future economic
conditions and credit behavior (e.g. the likelihood of customers defaulting and the resulting losses).

Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgments and estimates include development of
ECL models, including the various formulas and choice of inputs, determining the criteria if there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and so allowances for financial assets should be measured on a lifetime ECL
basis and the qualitative assessment. The Company has accessed ECL on s financial assels and determined
that amount is immaterial to the financial statements accordingly, ECL has not been recorded.

SRR L-
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Provision for inventory obsolescence

The Company reviews the net realizable value of stock in trade and stores and spares to assess any
diminution in the respective carrying values. Net realizable value is determined with reference o estimated

selling price less estimated cost to complete and estimated cost to make the sales.

Provisions
financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to

settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessment of time value of money and risk spedific to the liability. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting

date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

A provision is recognized in the statement of
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events,
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Company, of the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodylng economic
benefits will be required to setile the obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with

sufficient reliability.

Revenue

ts of tariff is recognized on provisional basis using estimates based

Revenue against pass through componen
between billed and actual amounts of pass through itemns is later on

on prevailing market rates. The difference
adjusted by issuance of debit / credit notes.

standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which are
mandatory for the Company's accounting period which began on January 1, 2024, However, these do not have

any significant impact on the Company's financial statements.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been

early adopted by the Company.
Effective date {annual reporting
periods beginning on or after)

January 1, 2025

1AS 21 Lack of Exchangeability

IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows {Amendments) January 1, 2025

IAS 21 The Effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates January 1, 2025
(Amendments)

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and its accompanying January 1, 2026
Guidance on Implementing IFRS 7 (Amendments) ‘

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 1, 2026
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Effective date (annual reporting
periods beginning on or after)

IFRS9 & Financial Instruments — Classification and Measurement January 1, 2026

IFRS Y of Financial Instruments (Amendments)

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements January 1, 2026

IFRS 9 Financial instruments January 1, 2026

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting January 1, 2026
Standards

IFRS 18 Presentation & Disclosure in Financial Statement January 1, 2027

The above standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations are not likely to have
any material impact on the Company's financial statements.

Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) has also issued the following standards and interpretation, which have not been notified locally or
declared exempt by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) as at December 31, 2024:

iFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangement

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements

IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability; Disclosures '

iFRIC 4 Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The principle accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently appiied to all years presented in these financial statements, unless

otherwise stated.

Taxation

Current tax

The profits and gains of the Company derived from electric power generation are exempt from tax in terms of
Clause (132) of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 {ITO), subject to the
conditions and limitations provided therein. Under clause (11A) of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the ITO,
the Company is also exempt from levy of minimum tax on 'turnover’ under section 113 of the ITO to the extent
of receipts from sale of eiectricity. Minimum tax under section 113 and Alternate Corporate Tax under section

113C of ITO is leviable on saie of coal and steam.

However, full provision is made in the profit and loss account on income from sources not covered under the
above clauses at current rates of taxation after taking into account, tax credits and rebates available, if any,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax Is recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes, Deferred tax is not recognized for the following temporary differences:

The initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and

that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;
Differences relating to investments in jointly controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that

they will not reverse in the foreseeable future;
Taxabile temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.
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Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent it is probable that future laxable profits will be available against which they can be
realised. Future taxable profits are determined based on business plans for the Company and the reversal of
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that the refated tax benefit will be realized; such reductions are reversed when the
probability of future taxable profits improves. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profils will be

available against which they can be used on the reporting date.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they
reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date. The measurement of deferred
tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the
reporling date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are offset if criteria as per applicable financial reporting framework is met.

Il.e:ases
Right of use asset

Thle Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease i.e. the date the
underlying assets are available for use. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost less any accumulated
dePreciation and impairment losses and are adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

The amount of the initial measurement of lease Liabilities
Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received

i
| any initial direct costs, and
i

Restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a
stra:fght-line basis. If the Company is reasonably certain lo exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use assets

are depreciated over the underlying assets’ useful life.

Lease liability

The: lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments in the measurement of the lease

liability comprise the following:

- Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

- Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee;

The exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise,
Lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an

extension option; and
Penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to terminate

eatly.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the
Company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the
Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination opfion.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the; right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been

reduced to zero.

g
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Property, plant and equipment
work in progress are stated at cost less accumuiated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Capital work in progress are stated at cost less allowance
accumulated for impairment, if any. Cost of property, plant and equipment includes acquisition cost, borrowing
cost during construction phase of relevant asset, if any and other directly attributable costs.

Pro;:aerty, plant and equipment except for capital

tatement of profit or loss on the straight line method so as to write off the
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives at the rates specified
harged for the full month in which an asset is available for use and on
ceding the disposals. Gains or losses on disposals are taken to the

Depreciation is charged to s
depreciable amount of the property,
in note 4. Depreciation on additions is ¢
disppsals up to the month immediately pre
profit and loss account.

plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of the

embodied within the item will flow to the Company and its
st of the day

The cost of replacing a major item of property,
itermn’if it is probable that the future economic benefils
cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced item is derecognized. The co

to day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognized in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Gairis and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposals with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are recognised in the

statément of profit or loss.

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. It consists of expenditure
incurlred and advances made in respect of operating fixed assets, capital stores and intangibles assets in the
course of their acquisition, construction and installation. Transfers from capital work in progress are made to
the relevant category of property, plant and equipment as and when the assets are available for use in the

manner intended by the Company’s management.

Impairment

(i} Non-derivative financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial assets measured at
amortised cost. The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period

over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.
The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both guantitative and qualitative information
and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment including forward:

looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 60
days past due.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when;

the counter party is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company In full, without recourse by
the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held). or

- the financial asset is more than 60 days past due.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial

asset.
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efault events that are possible within the 12 months

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from d
ife of the instrument is less than 12 months).

after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected
|

Measurement of ECLs

Credit losses are measured as the present vaiue of all cPsh shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash
flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract jand the cash flows that the Company expects to

receive).

Credit-impaired financial assets

Al each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credil
impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the

estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have ocu:nl rred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the counterparty;

a breach of contract such as a defauit or being more than 60 days past due;

the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not
consider otherwise;

: it Is probable that the counterparty will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

.
Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the carrying amount of the
assets and charged to profit or loss.

Write-off

The gross carrying -amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonabie
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company individually makes
an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable
expectation of recovery. The Company expects no significant recovery from the amount written off, However,
financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the

Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

(ii) Non-financial assets

At €ach reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amount of its non-financial assets (other than
inventories and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such

indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

For impaimment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or cash generating

units, {CGUs),
The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell.
Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present vaiue using a pre-tax

discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset or CGU. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its

recoverable amount,

»
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Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying amounts of
duce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGUona

any goodwill allocated to CGU, and then to re
f goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss

pr:o rata basis. An impairment loss in respect ©
is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would

have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

intangibles

cost and subsequently stated at cost less accumulated amortization

Intangible assets are measured initially at
based on straight-line at the rate specified in note 5 to

and impairment losses, if any. Amortization charge is
the financial statements.

Investment in Associate Company

investments in associate where significant influence can be established are accounted for using the equity
method. Under this method, the investments are stated at cost plus the Company's equily in undistributed
eatnings and losses after acquisition, less any impairment in the vaiue of individual investment.

1

Income on investments in associate is recognised using the equity method. Under this method, the Company's
share of post-acquisition profit or loss of the associate is included in profit or loss, its share of post-acquisition
other comprehensive income or loss is included in other comprehensive income and its share of post-
acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves, These amounts are adjusted to reflect
adjustments made by the Company when using the equity method, including fair vaiue adjustments and
modifications for differences in accounting policy. Dividend distribution by the associate is adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Company and its associate are eliminated to the extent of the

Company's interest in the associate.
Stores and spares

Stores and spares includes primarily mechanical spares, electrical spares and chemicals required for the day
to day operational activities of plant and maintenance. Initially, spares were recoginised at cost. However,
currently these are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, less provision for slow moving and

obsolete items, if any.

Stock in trade

Stock in trade is valued at lower of cost, calculated on weighted average cost basis and net realisable value.
Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs
necessarily to be incurred in order to make a sale. Provision is made in the financial statements for obsolete
and, slow-moving stock-in-trade based on management's best eslimate. Materials in transit are stated at cost

comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon.

Financial instruments
Financial assets

{a) Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets on initial recognition in the following categories: at
amortized cost, at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) and at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI). Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial
recognition unless the Company changes its business model for managing financial asset, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period

following the change in the business model.

SV
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(b) Amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL: {i} It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to
collect contractual cash flows; and {ii} Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

{c} Fair value through other comprehensive Income

' A debt invesiment is measured at FVOC! if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL: {j) it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financiai assets; and (i} Its contractual terms give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may
irevocably elect to present subsequent changes in it's fair value as other comprehensive income.
This election is made on an investment by investment basis.

{d) Fair value through profit or loss

Al financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOC! as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This inciudes all derivative financial assels. On initial recognition, the
Company irrevocably designates a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be
measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces

an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liabiiity is classified as
FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is designated as such on initial recognition as it is a derivative
financial instrument. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains
and losses are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in
profit or loss. The financial liabilities of the Company includes long term loans, lease liability, creditors,
retention money, other liabilities, payable to employees provident fund trust, accrued liabilities, security deposit

payabie, unclaimed dividend and short term running finance.

Rebognition and measurement

Trade and other receivables are initiaily recognized when they are originated. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument,

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) is inftially measured

at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable withoul a significant financing component is initially

measured at the transaction price.

A financial liability is initially measured at fair value minus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

R
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Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

0 !

(if)

(i)

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method. The amortized
cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortized cost

Debt invesiments are subsequently measured al fair
value. Interest income calculated using effective
interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Other
net gains and losses are recognized in OClL On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI

are reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVOCI

Equity investments are subsequently measured at fair
value. Interest income calculated using effective
interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognized In profit or loss. Other
net gains and losses are recognized in OCIl. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI
are reclassified to profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend
income, are recognized in profit or foss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets of the Company include trade debts, other receivables, cash and bank balances,
long term deposits, trade deposits and short term investments.

Derecognition

(i)

(ii)

(ili)

Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred
or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset. '

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire. The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified
and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial
liability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value. On derecognition of a financial
liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the consideration paid
(including any non-cash assets transferred or llabilities assumed) is recognized in the statement of

nrofit or loss
Off-setting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financiar liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position, if the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities

simultanecusly.

AAFLL
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Staff retirement benefits

Defined benefit plan’

The Company operates a funded gratuity scheme under an independent trust for its employees as a defined
benefit plan. The Company makes contributions or records lability in respect of defined benefit plans on the
basis of actuarial valuations, carried out annuaily by independent actuaries. The Jatest actuarial valuation was
carried out as of December 31, 2024. The calculations of actuaries are based on the Projected Unit Credit
Method, net of the assets guaranteeing the plan, if any, with the obligation increasing from year to year, in a

manner that it is proportional to the length of service of the employees.

The interest element of the defined benefit cost represents the change in present value of scheme obligations
regulting from the passage of time, and is determined by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit

liability / (asset).
Gratuity is paid to the employees as per the last drawn basic salary multiplied by the number of service years
subject to maximum service of twenty years.

Past service costs are.recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Defined contribution plan

The Company operates a funded provident fund plan for its empioyees. Monthly contributions are made by the
employees at the rate of 10%, 15% and 20% of basic salary while the Company contributes at a fixed rate of

10% of the basic salary.

Deferred empioyee benefits

The' Company maintains provision for ‘deferred employee benefits consisting of compensation against
unutilised leaves as at the reporting date to all its permanent employees In accordance with the rules of the
Company. The compensation against leaves is encashable upon separation from the Company, However, the
Company revised its policy for compensated absences in April, 01 2022. No further accumulation of annual
leaves is allowed, however, annual ieaves already accumulated as of March 31, 2022 will be continued till the
time.these are consumed by the individual or encashed on current gross at the time of separation.

Provisions

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are measured
at the present value of expected expenditure, discounted at a rate that reflects current market assessment of
the lime value of the money and the risk specific to the obligation, Provisions are reviewed at each statement

of financial position date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.

Share capital and dividend

Ordfnary shares are classified as equily and recognized at their face value. Dividend distribution to the
shareho!ders is recognized as liability in the period in which it is declared.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, balances at banks, short term highly liquid invesiments
with orlglnal maturity of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in their falr value and shori-term borrowings.

*
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Revenue recognition
The Company signed its PPA with K-Electric and PPA ! SSA with FFC on :July 04, 2018 apd April 15, 2016
respectively. Under the PPA !/ SSA, the Company is obligated to sell and deliver all output of the Complex, as

defined under PPA / SSA, in accordance with provisions of PPA/ SSA.
he Company satisfies performance

e of electricity and steam is recognized when or as t ‘ .
g a promised good or service to a customer. A good or service is transferred when t.he
principally satisfies its performance obligation

Revenue from sal

obligation by transferrin
customer obtains control of that good or service. The Company :
in respect of supply of electricity and steam upon transmission of electricity and steam to K-Electric and FFC

respectively. However, capacity is recognized when due. Revenues from sale of electricity, steam and capacity
is recognised on the basis of rates determined in accordance with the mechanism laid down in PPA [ $SA and

notifications from National Electric and Power Regulatory Authority (NEPRA).

expedient under IFRS 15. However, there is no significant
of considerations is billed on monthly basis in accordance
with the terms of PPA / SSA. The payment is due in 30 days after the acknowledgement of the output delivered
invoice and capacity available invoice, respectively. Late payment surcharge, as per the PPA ! 8SA, on over-
due receivables is recorded on accrual basis at 3-month KIBOR plus 2%. All sales are being made within

Pakistan locally.

The Company applies the right to invoice practical
financing component. The individual components

atisfaction of Company's performance obligation, i.e. dispatch
expected. Provisional revenue is recognised
ised on an estimate basis and adjustments if

Revenue from sale of coal is recognised upon s
of coal to customers, to the extent where significant reversal is not
on items of tariff which are yet to be notified by NEPRA are recogn
any are charged to statement of profit or loss upon decision by NEPRA.

Borrowing costs
an expense in the period in which they are incurred except where such

Borrowing costs are recognized as
ruction or production of a qualifying asset in which case such costs are

costs relate to the acquisition, const
capitalized as part of the cost of that asset.

Finance income and finance cost

unds invested, deposit accounts and dividend income on
' bank deposits is accrued on a time proportion basis by
reference to the principal outstanding and the applicable rate of return. Income on investments is recognized
on time proportion basis taking into account the effective yield of such securities.

Finance income comprises interest income on f

Finance cost comprises interest expense on borrowings, amortisation of transaction cost, exchange losses and
bank charges and is recognised in the statement of profit or loss on accrual basis.

Foreign currency translation and transaction

s are translated into functional currency at exchange rates at the date of
nominated in foreign currencies outstanding on the date of
statement of financial pesition are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing on that
date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between amortized cost in the
functional currency at beginning of the year, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the year, and
amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at statement of financial position date.
Exchlange differences are included in the statement of profit or loss.

Transactions in foreign currencie
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities de

Acqliisition reserve

on reserve of associate on account of merger of entire business of
h effect from February 19, 2024. The reserve will be utilised as per
of the Company's investment in FFL.

Thisiresewe represents share of acquisiti
Fauji Cereals into Fauji Foods Limited wit
the instructions of the Board of directors of FFL or upon disposal




PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Freehold land - Leasehold tand -
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Building on Plant and Operational Furniture and  Other vehicles Computer Capital work Total
note 4.3 note 4.4 leasehotd tand machinery vehicles fitings and other  in progress A [
equipments -noted.5
Rupees'000

As at January 1, 2023 .. . .- - - e e e e e e e - -

Cost 191,176 1.449,050 5,875,488 22,305,867 405,446 88,077 141,228 94,887 214,432 30,765,651
Accumulated depreciation - (323,654) (1,020.136) __ (4,486.642) {75,163) {30,284) (69,210) {89,836) - {6.094,925)
Net book value 191,176 1,125,396 4,855,352 17,819,225 330,283 57,793 72,018 5,051 214,432 24.670.7@
Year ended December 31, 2023
Opening net book value 191,176 1,125,396 4,855,352 17,819,225 330.283 57,793 72,018 5,051 214,432 24,670,726
Additions - - - - - - 22,268 24,834 - 6,942 613,366 667,410
Transfers 126,124 645,108 - .- ) - (771,232) -
Inter class transfers - 2,160 - (2,160} - - = o
Disposals

Cosl S - - 228 27,172 1,100 - 28,500
Accumulated depreciation - - - (203) (17,233) {1,099) - (18.535})
S - o - 25 9,939 1 9,965

Depreciation
Depreciation chaige - 54,897 199,504 778,849 17.014 7.302 25,107 4,257 - 1,086,930
Transfers - - 1.892 - - 1.892) - - - =
Depreciation charge - {54,897) (201,398) (778,849} (17.014) (5.410) (25,107) (4.257) - {1,086,930)
Closing net book value 161,176 1,070,499 4,782,240 17,685,484 313,269 72,466 61,806 7,735 56,566 24,241,241
As at December 31, 2023
Cost 191,176 1,449,050 6,003,772 22,950,975 405,446 107,957 138,890 100,729 56,566 31,404,561
Accumulated depreciation - {378,5651) 11,221,532)  {5,265,491) {92,177) {35,491) {77,084) (92,994) - (7,163,320)
Net book value 191,176 1,070,499 4,782,240 17,685,484 313,269 72,466 61,806 7,735 56,566 24,241,241
Year ended December 31, 2024
Opening net book value 191,176 1,070,499 4,782,240 17,685,484 313,269 72,466 61,806 7,735 56,566 24,241,241
Additions - - “ - - 238 122,038 7,042 362,117 491,483
Transfers . §3,483 301,660 - - - . (355,143) -
Disposals

Cost - 100,900 - - 41,781 - 142,681
Accumidated depreciation - - {25,477) - - (28,959} - (54,436}
- 75,423 - . 12,822 - 88,245

Depreciation
Depreciation charge - {54,897) (205,710} (842,409} (17,014) {9,016) {27,273) (5,762) - {1,162,081)
Closing net book value 191,176 1,015,602 4,630,013 17,069,312 296,255 53,686 143,799 9,015 53,540 23,432,398
As at December 31, 2024
Cost 191,176 4,449,050 6,057,255 23,151,735 405,445 108,193 219,197 107,771 63,540 31,753,363
Accumtilated depreciation - {433,448} (1.427,242)  (8,082,423) {108,191) {44,507} {75,398) (98,756) o (8,270,965}
Net book value 191,176 1,015,602 4,630,013 17,069,312 296,255 63,686 143,799 9,015 53,540 23,482,398
Rales of depreciation
% per annum - 3.76% 3.3% 3% - 33% 5% 10% 20% 33% -
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Cost Book value Sale proceeds Gainifloss) Mode of disposal
Rupees’'000 e e— - -
Motor vehicle 1,932 290 278 {12} As per Company policy
Motor vehicle 2,040 986 296 {690} As per Company policy
Motor vehicle 1.955 684 1,007 323 As per Company policy
Motor vehicle 1,923 737 944 207 As per Company policy
Motor vehicle 1,993 831 972 141 As per Company policy
Motor vehicla 2,408 T 476 476 As per Company policy
Motor vehicle 2,408 - 476 476 As per Company palicy
- Motor vehicle 2,809 48 571 523 As per Company policy
Motor vehicle 2,838 1.041 555 (486) As per Company policy
Motor vehicle 3,130 2,143 606 (1,537) As per Company poficy
Motor vehicle 1.917 128 278 180 As per Company policy
Motor vehicle 2,459 - 481 481 As per Company policy
Molor vehicle 3,098 2,017 2,051 34 As per Company policy
Motor vehicle 4,084 3.063 3,198 132 As per Company policy
Motor vehicle 2,590 - 507 507 As per Company policy
Motor vehicle 2,049 854 508 (346) As per Company policy
Motor vehicle 2,058 - 401 401 As per Company policy
Total 2024 41,781 12,822 13,602 780
Total 2023 28,500 9,964 9,395 {569)

4.2

4.3
4.4

4.5

4.5.1

4.6

Buring the year two stators of STG 1
claim of Rs. 603.26 million has been recoginised in the financial statements.

& 2, have been disposed off costing of Rs. 100.9 milli

The freehold land is in Company's possession. however, legal title is not avaitable with the Company.

The agreement for leasehold land held by the Company contains an o
The management expects (o ulilize the option for extension in
Capitat work in progress

plion for further extension in lease term,
lease term in order to fulfill its contractual obligations,

2024 2023
Rupees '000 Rupees ‘000
Buildings on Ileasehold land o 46,801
Plant and machinery 63,540 9,765
83,540 56,566

This represents to the nel balance after transfers to building and plant ang machinery

The depreciation charge has been allocated 2s follows:

2024 2023
. Note Rupees 000 Rupees ‘000
Cost of sales 21 1,158,583 1,083,460
Administrative expenses 22 3,498 3,470
1,162,081 1,086,930

S

The cost of righ of use asset over th

Particufar of Purchaser

Ali Umair lmran

Syed Adeel Ahmed
Karrar Hussain Naqvi
Basit Igbal Khan
Farhan Ahmed Mazari
Shabbir Ahmed Memon
M. Kashif Jamil
Mahboob Ahmad

Syed Sarfaraz Ahmed
Bashir Muhammad
Waris Ali

Shahid Saud Ui Hassan
Soban Bin Zafar

tmran Hyder

Abdul Khatiq

Sumair Ahmed Khan
Ahmed Nawaz

v (e
Relationship with the Company

Executives
Executives
Executives
Executives
Executives
Executives
Executives
Executives
Execulives
Executives
Executives
Executives
Executives
Executives
Executives
Executives
Executives

on and having book value of Rs. 75.4 million. The loss on disposal amounting to Rs, 75.4 million and insurance

e extended lease term cannot be reasonably ascertained.
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6.2

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

SAP Software

Cost

Balance as at January 01
Addition during the year
Balance as at December 31

Accumulated amortization and Impairment losses

Balance as at January 01
Amortization during the year
Balance as at December 31

Carrying amounts as at December 31

Useful life / amortization rate

This represents cost of software acquisition and im

Laser Software and SAP S4 HANA.

The amortisation charge has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales
Administrative expenses

LONG TERM INVESTMENT

The Company's interest in associate is as follows:

Fauji Foods Limited (FFL) - Quoted
Carrying value at year end

Fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
Quoted market value
%age shareholding

Movement during the year is as follow;

Balance at start of the year
Investment during the year

Share of profit from associate during the year
Share of OCI from associate during the year
Share of acquisition reserve of FFL

Balance as at end of the year

SRATLL
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2024 2023
Rupees 000 Rupees '000
5,344 2,398
50,678 50,678
6,172 -
56,850 50,678
48,280 35,998
2,226 12,282
50,506 48,280
6,344 2,398
33.33% 33.33%

plementation for SAP, SAP SuccessFactors, QlikSense, 3D

2024 2023
Note Rupees ‘000 Rupees '000
21 2,226 11.162
22 - 1,120
2,226 12,282
6.2 3,737,906 4,085,621
4,000,000 4,000,600
7,172,000 4,456,000
16.87% 15.87%
4,085,621 -
- 4,000,000
104,191 118,184
153 (32,563)
(452,059) -
3,737,806 4,085,621
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i

vestment of Rs 4 billion in Fauji Foods Limited (FFL), a Fauji

On March 18, 2023, the Company made an in
00,000 ordinary shares at par value of Rs 10 per share giving

Foundation (FF) group entity, by acquiring 400,0
the Company an ownership of 15.87% in FFL.

al resolution and in accordance with the requirements
latory approvals. FFL is incorporated in Pakistan and
the processing and sale of toned milk, milk powder,
parent is FF. This is a

The investment was made under the authority of a speci
of the Companies Act, 2017 and after obtaining all regu
listed 'on Pakistan Stock: Exchange (PSX) and engaged in
fruit juices, allied dairy and food products. F FL is a subsidiary of FFC and the uitimate

strategic investment of the Company.

As required by SECP, the Company is required to retain its shareholding in these shares for a period of two
years from the date of issuance of shares to the Company.

Although the Company has less than 20 percent shareholding in FFL, this has been treated as an associate
since the Company has representation on its Board of Directors.

fair values of acquired net assets were measured provisionally at the
date of acquisition. The management assessed that the transactions between the date of acquisition of
associate i.e March 16, 2023 and the reporting period of the associate i.e March 31, 2023 are not material and,
accordingly, the assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2023 have been considered for the purpose of
determination of fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of associate as at the dale of acquisition.
During the period, the Company carried out an exercise to firm up the fair values of net assets acquired, to
complete the acquisition accounting within a period of twelve months from the date of acquisition in accordance
with IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations'. Accordingly, the fair values of net assels acquired have been revised
and and resultantly a notional goodwill of Rs 1,370.6 million was determined on the basis of notional fair values
as detailed below. The company has assessed that there is no retrospective effect as a result of this revision in
provisional fair values of the net assets acquired, accordingly, no adjustment is required to be made in these

financial statements retrospectively.

For the purpose of acquisition accounting,

Recognised Recognised
values after Amounts
measured on
measurement .
oriod provisional
P basis

Rupees '000 Rupees '000

Purchase consideration paid in cash 4,000,000 4,000,000
Fair vallue of identifiable net assets 16,565,267 11,794,974
Percentage of identifiable net assets acquired ' 2,629,446 1,872,245

1,370,554 2,127,755

Goodwill

Brand has been recognised as intangible asset as a result of investment in FFL. The brand amounting to Rs
784.8 million has been treated as having an indefinite useful life because it is expected to contribute to net
cash inflows indefinitely based on the analysis of various economic factors which indicated that there is no limit
to the period this asset would contribute to the net cash inflows and, consequently, the said intangible will not
be amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite. It is tested for impairment annually and whenever

there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

NSV])
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6.6 The summarized financial information in respect the Fauji Foods Limited is set out below. The summarized
financial information represents the amounts shown in the associate's financial statements for the years ended

December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 is as follow:

Summarised statement of financial position

Current assets

Ass:et held for sale
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Net'Assets {100%)

Reconciliation to carrying amounts :

Opening carrying value of net assets
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive (loss) / income
Items direclly accounted forin statement of changes in equity

-share deposit money
-share issuance cost charged against share premium

-acquisition reserve
Net assets
Less: Share deposit money already accounted for in
carrying value of net assets of Rs10,514 thousand
at the date of acquisition

Percentage of Shareholding

Share in net assets
Goodwill / Goodwill-provisional

Fair value adjustments
- brand - intangibles recognised
- write down in respect of trade debts
- other adjustments

Carrying amount

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

Revenue

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

RAH 2

Note

2024 2023
Rupees ‘000 Rupees ‘000
9,094,269 6,876,494
- 262,655
9,558,165 9,071,180
{8,801,181) (2,104,527)
{336,417) {50,355)
9,514,856 14,055,427
11,705,427 10,514,389
656,398 774,695
962 436,932
- 2,350,000
- {20,589)
(2,847,931) -
9,514,856 14,055,427
- (2,350,000)
9,514,856 11,705,427
15.87% 15.87%
1,510,317 1,858,031
1,370,554 2,127,755
778,900 -
78,135 99,835
3,737,906 4,085,621
23,404,094 19,370,542
656,398 605,112
962 436,932
657,360 1,042 044
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Management has performed an assessment of its investment in FFL and is of the view that recoverable
amount exceeds its carrying value based on multiple factors including the fair market value of its shares etc.
and thereby concluded that the recoverable amount of the investment in FFL exceeds its carrying amount.

: 2024 2023
STOCK IN TRADE Note Rupees ‘000 Rupees '000
Coal e 7.4 2,121,862 2,482,617
Limestone 10,255 6,149

' 2,132,117 2,488,766

|
This includes Rs. 1,004.34 miilion coal stock of the Company at the Pakistan International Bulk Terminal Ltd.
site'as on December 31, 2024,

i 2024 2023
TRADE DEBTS Rupees '000 Rupees ‘000
|
Trade debts 8.1 3,792,214 4,641,997
Expected credit losses {26,586) {26,586)
3,765,628 4,615 411

This includes Rs. 1,771.30 million (2023; Rs. 2,345.01 million) receivable from the Parent Company. Maximum
amount outstanding during the year was Rs, 4,444,14 million (2023: Rs. 8,546.11 mitlion}.

This includes provisional revenue amounting to Rs. 1,893.03 million (2023: Rs. 1,156 million) in respect of ash,
limestone, water, insurance, fuel price adjustment, WPPF, WWF and GST etc.

: 2024 2023
LOANS, ADVANCES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES Rupees '000 Rupees '000
Advances - considered good

Suppliers 151,691 ! 169,358
Customs clearing agent I 149,286 ( 34,372 J

300,977 203,730
Loan to employees - Secured 9.1 34,983 42,259
Prepayments 165,752 167,583
Insurance claim receivable 166,453 -
Sales tax refundable 120,846 169,508
Margin against letters of credit 558 16,019
Security deposits 5,509 5,509
' 795,078 804,608

This includes non-interest bearing ioans to employees amounting to Rs. 30.81 million to management
executives (2023: Rs. 31.69 million) and Rs. 5.97 million to the staff (2023: Rs. 7.45 million). Loan has been
sectioned for the purpose of vehicle and house rent (upto 50% of one year basic pay} under the Company's

policy. ;

2024 2023
INCOME TAX REFUNDABLE Rupees "000 Rupees '000
Balance at start of the year 287,611 332,330
Advance tax paid during the year 218,504 221,446
Provision of income tax for the year (232,508) {266,165)
273,607 287,611

Baiance as at end of the year

Sivval
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i

2024 2023
Note Rupees '000 Rupees '000
11 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash In hand - local currency 1,255 1,394

Cash at bank - local currency
- Current accounts 1,097 25
, - Saving accounts 11.1 & 14.2 2,353,424 2,868,573
11.3 2,355,776 2,869,992

The balances in saving accounts carry interest rates ranging from 4.50% to 20.51% (2023: 7.5% to 20.51%) per
annum. This includes accrued interest amounting to Rs. 0.55 million { 2023: Rs. 0.19 million}.

This include balance of Rs. 2,204 million {2023: Rs. 3.21 million) were held with Askari Bank Limited {related party) al
profit rate of 13.5% per annum.

11.3  Alithe bank balances as at year end are held under lien with banks as explained in note 13.3 ().

2024 2023
11.4  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Note Rupees '000 Rupees 000
Cash and bank balances 11 2,355,776 2,869,992
Short term borrowings 16 {7,063,665) (5,536,840}
Balance as per cash flow statement {4,707,889) (2,666,848)
' 2024 2023
| Rupees '000 Rupees '000
12 SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised share capital
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 3,000,000 9,000,000
900,000,000 {2023: 900,000,000)
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 8,587,500 8,587,500

858,750,000 (2023: 858,750,000)
Number of shares Number of shares

Number of shares as at year end 858,750,000 858,750,000
2024 2023
124 The patlemn of shareholding of the Company is as follows: Number of shares shares
Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited 644,062,491 644,062,491
Fauji Foundation 214,687,500 214,687,500
9 2

Nominee Directors

12.2  Shares held by Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited and Fauji Foundation are pledged under lien as stated in note 13.3

12.3  Aliordinary share holders have same rights regarding voting, board election, right of first refusal and block voling.

HATLL
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|
LONG TERNM FINANCE FACILITIES

The Company entered into the following long term finance facililies under Commercial and Isiamic Facility

arrangements. .
2024 2023
Note Rupees '000 Rupees '000
Commercial facility
Natignal Bank of Pakistan - 1,638,888
United Bank Limited - 454,959
Bank Alfalah Limited . 1,033,999
Songri Bank Limited - 413,509
Bank of Punjab - 413,599
MCE Bank Limited = 620,869
- 4,575,913
Isfamic facility
National Bank of Pakistan ! - 413,599
Habib Bank Limited - 1,447,598
United Bank Limited : - 454,959
Dubai Islamic Bank Limited - 620,399
Meezan Bank Limited - 620,399
Faysal Bank Limited a o " 496,319
Sindh Bank Limiled - 413,559
- 4,466,872
Total syndicate facility 13.1,13.2 & 13.3 - 9,042,785
Other finance facilities: 13.2
Allied Bank Limited - conventional - 1,600,000
Faysal Bank Limited - islamic - 600,000
United Bank Limited - conventional - 1,000,000
- 3,200,000
Total principal outstanding - 12,242,785
Accrued markup - 5,776
- 12,248,561
Less:
Current portion of long term finance facilities - {3.341,940)
Unamortised transaction cost of long term
finance facilities 13.6 - (61,183)
: - 8,345,429

The Company had entered into syndicale long term finance facilities under commercial facility of Rs. 11,062.5 million
and musharika facility of Rs, 10,800 million with various banks, at an interest rate of 3-month KIBOR plus 0.75% per
annum (2023: 3-month KIBOR plus 0.75%). The loan was repayable in 40 quarterly instalments commencing from
June 30, 2017, along with interest for the respective quarters. Any delay in payments to banks by the Company is
subject lo liquidated damages at the rate of applicable interest rate plus 2% per annum. During the year, the
Company fully repaid its syndicate long-term financing facilities amounting Rs. 8.04 billion. Syndicate long-term
financing facilities repaid ahead of the scheduled repayment timeline, amounting to Rs. 6.5 billion {comprising Rs.
3.280 billion under the commercial facility and Rs. 3.211 billion under the Musharika facility). Thesé payments were
made in two tranches: Rs. 3 billion on September 30, 2024, and Rs. 3.5 billion on 2024. By prepaying these facililies,
the Company shorlened the repayment period from the original maturity date of March 2027 to December 2024,

ARIFL-
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The Company entered inlo syndicate long term finance facilitiy agreement under commercial facility of Rs. 3,250
million and musharika facility of Rs. 750 miliion on December 29, 2022, at an interest rate of 3-month KIBOR plus
0.5% per annum (2023: 3-month KIBOR plus 0.5%). The facility was availed on March 1, 2023. The loan was
repayable in 20 quarterly instalments commencing from April 01, 2023, along with interest for the respective quarters.
The loans is secured by way of charge on all current and fixed assets (excluding Jand and building together with
encumbered in favour of working capital lenders). During the year, Company repaid the enlire outstanding loan
amounting Rs. 3.2 billion. Sndicate long-term financing facilities repaid ahead of the scheduled repayment limeline,
amounting to Rs. 2.4 billion {comprising Rs. 1.950 biflion under the syndicate term finance facility and Rs. 450 million
under the Musharika facility) ahead of the scheduled payment timeline, by prepaying these facilities, the Company
shortened the repayment period from the original maturity date of December 2027 to December 2024,

Facilities mentioned above are secured by way of, inter alia:

{a) First ranking pari passu charge up o Rs. 28,150 miilion by way of hypothecation on all present and fulure moveable
and immoveable fixed assets (other than land and building) of the Company;

(b} Mortgage over land in favor of lenders;

{c) First pari passu hypothecation charge on all present and future current assets of the GCompany (excluding all present
and future fuel stock and inventories and any charge over any accounts of the Company opened in relation to working
capital or any accounts currently cpened by the Company with other banks for the purposes of the lelter of credit

issuance);

i

(d) Assignment of Company's receivables from its off-takers in favor of financiers (excluding Energy Purchase Price -
Receivables);

{e) Lien on all project accounts openad with various banks;

(F) An assignment of all project insurances as co-loss payee or assignee except for the working capital lender's
securilies;
i
{g) Share representing 100% of the paid up share capital of the Company have been pledged with the security trustee of
the syndicate financiers.

{h} Undertaking by the Holding Company for uncapped support to fund any payment shortfall i.e. amount less than the
required finance payment balance up lo technical completion date and thereafter up to financing service cap i.e. Rs

8,000 million till debt repayment;

Significant covenants of above facility include maintenance of financing service coverage ratio (FSCR), current ratio,
financing to equity ratio, financing life coverage ratio and forecast FSCR,

In addition to, following actions require prior consent of the lenders:

- disposal of assels;
- modification or amendment in any key project contrac;

- transfer or allotment of new shares;
- Incurring any new financial indebtedness;

- disbursement of dividend; and
- ' creation of further higher/equal ranking security on Company’s assets.

Furthler covenants under this loan relate to the operations of the Company.

Since the Company has settled the entire long term loan, therefore the process for release of above mentioned
security package has been initiated by the Company with the lenders,

S
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Unamortised transaction cost

Balance at start of the year
Addition during the year
Amortisation during the year
Béiance as at end of the year

Detail of actuarial valuation of deferred employee benefits

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Payable to outgoing employees
Net liability

Changes in present value of defined benefit obligations

Balance at start of the year
Interest cost
Benefits due but not paid (payables)

Benefits paid
Remeasurement {gain)./ loss on present value of defined benefit

obligation
Balance as at end of the year

Expenses recognized in profit and loss account

Gain and losses arising on present value of defined benefit obligation
Interest cost

Changes in net liability

Liability at beginning of the year
Charged to profit and loss
Benefils paid

Principal actuarial assumptions

Dis?couht rate used for interest cost charged to profit and loss
Discount rate used for period end obligation

Sal:ary increase used for year end obligations is as under:
Salary increase FY 2024

Salary increase FY 2025

Salary increase FY 2026

Salary increase FY 2027

Salary increase FY 2028

Salary increase FY 2029

Salary increase FY 2030 onward

Mortality rates
Refirement assumption

SORHL.

Note

25

14.1

2024 2023
Rupees '000 Rupees "000
61,183 66,443
45,704 31,806
{106,887) {37,066)
- 61,183
203,637 190,536
957 71
204,594 190,607
180,536 184,437
29,531 23177
{857) (71N
{17,565) (25,550)
2,092 8,543
203,637 190,536
2,092 8,545
29,531 23,177
31,623 31,722
190,607 184,436
31,623 31,721
(17,636) (25,550)
204,584 190,607
16.00% 13.25%
12.00% 16.00%

N/A 16.00%
17.00% 16.00%
12.00% 16.00%
12.00% 16.00%
12.00% 16.00%
12.00% 16.00%
12.00% 16.00%

SLIC 2001-2005
Age 80

SLIC 2001-2005

Age 60
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Sensitivity analysis

The calculation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to assumptions set out above. The following table
summarizes how the impact on the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period would have increased /

{decreased) as a resull of a change in respective assumptions by one percent.

i 2024
Effect of 1% increase Rupees '000
[ILiscounl rate {16,958)
Salary 16,372
Effect of 1% decrease
Discount rate 16,234
Salary {16,362)
2025
Rupees '000
Expected benefit payment 15,078
2024 2023
DEFERRED TAXATION Note Rupees '000 Rupees '000
The balance of deferred tax is in respect of following lemporary
differences:
Accelerated tax depreciation 779,489 766,704
Share of Profit from associate 47,491 21,405
Alternate Corporate Tax 15.1 {94,464) {68,530)
Minimum Tax 15.2 - (31,581)
732,516 687,998

Deferred tax assel on alternate corporate tax amounting to Rs. 19.78 million, Rs.13.65 million, Rs.16.42 million, Rs.
18.69 million and Rs. 25.93 million will expire in financial year 2028, 2029, 2030, 2031 and 2033 respectively.

Deflerred tax assel on minimum tax amounting to Rs. 31.58 million has been adjusted during the year.

2024 2023
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - SECURED Rupees '600 Rupees ‘000
Principal balance outstanding 16.1 7,026,603 5,307,092
Accrued markup 37,062 229,748
16.2 7,063,665 5,536,840

The facilities for short term running finances, available from various banks, aggregate to Rs. 10 million (2023: Rs.
8,000 million). The rate of interest on the overdraft facilifies during the year ended December 31, 2024 ranging from 1-
month to 3-month KIBOR and spread ranging -2% to 0.15% (2023: 0.10% to 0.20%) per annum. As of reporting date,

un-availed facilities amounts to Rs. 2,936 million (2023: Rs. 2,693 million).

NSl
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e facilities are secured by way of assignment over present and future energy purchase price receivables,

!
T
h;‘,pothecalion charge on stocks / inventory of the Company, liens over accounts established in connection .wiih the
facilities, ranking hypothecation charge over the present and future fixed assets (excluding land and building) and

liens over import documents.

' 2024 2023
; Note Rupees '000 Rupees '000
TF?ADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Créditors 17.1 1,001,986 194,763
Accrued expenses 617,747 416,761
Reltention money payable 6,133 11,744
Payable to Employees’ Provident Fund - 3,109
Payable to Employees" Gratuity Fund 17.2 25,437 21,183
Payable against leave fair assistance 52,458 47,724
Payable to Workers' Profit Participation Fund 17.3 353,536 223,941
Payable to Workers' Welfare Fund 15,276 9,604
Withhoiding tax payable 128,675 102,976
Other payables 21,242 20,236
2,222,490 1,052,041

This includes Rs. 212.46 million (2023: Rs. 143.79 million) payable to the Parent Company against materials /
services received and use of common facility, during the year. The related invoice is received on a monthly basis with

a credit period of 30 days.

2024 2023

Payable to employees’ gratuity fund Rupees '000 Rupees '000
The details of actuarial valuation of staff gratuity fund carried out
Pre.f;ent value of defined benefit obligation 17.2.1 173,229 146,357
Faira value of plan assets 17.2.2 {148,997) 125,174)
Paylables 1,205 -
Net liability ' 17.2.5 25,437 21,183

|
Changes in present value of defined benefit
obligations
Balance at start of the year 146,357 113,078
Current service cost ’ 25,337 21,814
Interest cost ' 21,957 15,253
Remeasurement {gain) { loss on present value of defined benefi
obligation (2,173) 8,300
Benefits due but not paid {Payables) {1,205}
Benefils paid {17,044) {12,088)
Balance as at end of the year 173,229 146,357
Changes in fair value of plan assets
Balance at start of the year 125,174 90,375
Conti’ibutions 21,183 22,703
Interest income ¢n plan assets 20,359 13,635
Benefits paid ' - (17,044) (12,088}
Retufn on plan assets, excluding interest income (675) 10,549
Balanice as at end of the year 17.2.6 148,997 125,174

AFYL.
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17.2.4

17.2.5

17.2.7

Expenses recognized in profit and loss account

Current service cost
Interest cost
Interest income on plan assets

Gains recognized in other comprehensive income:

Actuarial gain from changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial gain from changes in financial assumptions

Experience adjustments
Remeasurement loss on present value of defined benefit

ob{igation
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income

Changes in net liability

Balance at beginning of the year

Charged to profit and loss

Reineasurement in other comprehensive income
Contributions paid

Plan assets comprise of

Sho:n term investmenis
Cash at bank

Principal actuarial assumptions
[}
I

DisQount rate used for interest cost charged to profit and loss

Discount rale used for period end obligation

Salary increase used for year end obligations is as under:
Salary increase FY 2024

Salary increase FY 2025

Salary increase FY 2026

Salary increase FY 2027

Salary increase FY 2028

Salary increase FY 2029

Salary increase FY 2030 onward

Moﬁ+lily rates
I

Retirement assumplion

2024 2023
Note Rupees '000 Rupees ‘000
25,337 21,814
21,957 15,253
{20,359) {13,635)
26,935 23,432
- 1,150
6,315 328
(8,488) 6,822
{2,173) 8,300
§75 (10,549)
{1,498) {2,249)
24,183 22,703
26,935 23,432
(1,498) (2,249)
{21,183) {22,703)
25,437 21,183
148,796 124,789
201 385
148,997 125,174
16.00% 14.25%
12.00% 16.00%

N/A 16.00%
17.00% 16.00%
12.00% 16.00%
12.00% 16.00%
12.00% 16.00%
12.00% 16.00%
12.00% 16.00%

SLIC 2001-2005  SLIC 2001-2005

Setback 1 year
Age 60

Setback 1 year

Age 60
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17.2.8 Sensitivity analysis, .

17.

18

The calculation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to assumptions set out above. The following table

summarizes how the impact on the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period would have increased /

(Idecreased) as a result of a change in respective assumptions by one percent.

2024 2023
Effect of 1% increase Note Rupees '000 Rupees '000
Discount rate {14,208) {12,130)
Salary 16,553 14,223
Effect of 1% decrease
Discount rate 16,479 14,071
Salary {14,539) (12,483)
The average duration of the defined beneiit obligation at 2024 is 09 years (2023: 09 years).
Estimated Expenses to be charged to statement of profit or loss 2025
Rupees ‘000
Current service cost 26,@591
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 20,135
Interest income ¢on plan assets (18,498)
Amount chargedable to statement of profit or loss 28,328
Expected benefit payment 10,879
2024 2023
Rupees '000 Rupees 000
Paj.rab!c_e to Workers' Profit Participation Fund
Balance at start of the year 223,941 221,799
Charge for the period 23 353,536 223,941
1
Amount paid {223,941) (221,799)
353,536 223,941

Balance as at end of the year

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

This batance comprises of the advances received on account of technical services.

DAH




Ve

19

19.1

18.1.1

19.1.2

19.1.3

19.1.4

19.1.5

19.2

-27-

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

‘Contingencies

iThe Inland Revenue authorities (IR Authorities) framed an order under section 161/182/205 of the Ordinance for the
:Tax Year 2015 and 2016 on October 27, 2017 whereby, tax demand of Rs. 1,168 million inclusive of default surcharge
land penalty was created for alleged non-deduction of tax on foreign payments, local payments, and reimbursement lo
the parent company, 'Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited'. Being aggrieved with the order, the Company preferred an
appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A), who whilst adjudicating the appeal set aside the
principal demand along with default surcharge and penalty and remanded the case back to the assessing officer for
reconsideration. Being aggreived with the order of CIR-A the Company filed an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal

Inland Revenue (the ATIR) which is subjudice till date.

The Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) tax authorities framed Order in Original No.191 of 2018 dated March 26, 2018 [the
Order, 191] with respect to alleged non-withholding and deposit of Sindh sales tax of Rs.78.32 million on expense of
Rs.564.40 miillion claimed under the head 'professional services' in the annual accounts for the Years 2015 and 2016,
Through the Order, the SRB lax authorities along with the principal sales lax demand has charged penalty of Rs.
82.23 million and default surcharge. Being aggrieved with the Order, the Company preferred an appeal before the
Commissioner (Appeals), SRB Karachi [the CA(SRB)] which was heard for orders on January 17, 2020. Furthermore,
the stay has been granted by the Honorable High Court, however the Appellate order of the CA(SRB) is slill awaited.

The IR authorities framed an Order-in-Original 11/26 of 2024.dated January 03, 2024 and raised the sales tax
demand of Rs, 89.9 miilion in respect of inadmissible claim of input tax for the tax period from January 2020 to June
2023. The Company has filed an appeal before the CIR-A against the impugned order which was remanded back to
the assessing officer for reconsideration. The matter is outsanding with the assessing officer for further proceeding.

The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (the ADCIR) framed an order under section 122(9)/122(5A) of the
Ordinance for the Tax Year 2019. The ADCIR chailenged the basis of allocation of expenses between exempt income,
in<;:ome subject to final tax regime and normal tax regime. Further, the ADCIR have also challenged the claim of
deductible allowances on account of Workers Welfare Fund. Being aggrieved with the order, the Company has filed
an appeal before the CIR-A who upheld the Order of the ADCIR through Appellate Order dated July 05, 2023, Being
aqgrieved with the order of the CIR-A the Company filed an appeal before the ATIR which is subjudice tiil date.

The management of the Company is of the view that the ultimate outcome of these cases are expeclted to be
favorable and liability, if any, arising on the seftlement of these cases is not likely to be material, Accordingly, no

provision has been made in the financial statements in this regard.

Commitments

Q)] Commitments include those in respect of capital expenditure for an aggregrate of amount Rs. 328.03 million
(2023: Rs. 74.47 million).

(i}  The outstanding amount againsi letters of credit is Rs. 157.91 million {2023 Rs. 2,337.47 million) out of total
facility of Rs. 13,800 million (2023: Rs. 11,425 million). The aggregate facilities for opening of letters of credil's

are secured by lien on valid import documents,

S
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2024 2023
REVENUE - NET Note Rupees '000 Rupees '000
Sale of electricity :
i Energy 11,578,825 10,727,242
Capacity 11,596,800 10,296,678
' 23,175,625 21,023,920
Sale of steam :
. Erergy 8,366,387 8,470,289
! Capacity 2,578,518 2,810,008
' 11,444,905 11,280,297
Ii’ass through items charged 393,510 223,578
Less:
t Sales tax 4,921,155 4,102,970
" Advance income tax from customers 20.2 586,064 367,349
5,807,219 4,470,319
Sales - net of government taxes 29,506,821 28,057,476

ognised in the financial statements on the basis of the signed PPA and

Sales to K-Electric have been rec
letter dated February 08, 2022. The tariff is further indexed as notified by

tariff approved by NEPRA vide its
NEPRA from time to time.

':!'his represents advance income tax invoiced at the rate of 5% under section 235 of the Income Tax
Ordinance 2001, on the gross amount of electricity sold to industrial consumer - the Parent Company.

d steam is recognized over time, when the Company satisfies
mised good or service to a customner. Revenue pertaining to
on the basis of rates determined in accordance wilh

Revenue from sale of electricity an
performance obligation by transferring a pro
capacity charge is recognized point over time when due,
the mechanism laid down in PPA/SSA.

1
Insurance claim

claim for business interruption resulting from technical faults with Steam

This income pertains to insurance
y 5, 2023, and March 7, 2023,

Turbine Generators (STG) 1 and 2 which experienced trips on Ma

respectively.

. 2024 2023

Disaggregation of revenue from Rupees '000 Rupees '000

contract with customer

I’Electricity . 19,747,643 18,395,856

Steam 8,759,178 9,661,620

Total revenue from contracts with customers 29,506,821 28,057,476

;Customer

'K-Electric Limited 10,186,425 11,203,268

;Parent Company 20.5.1 19,320,396 16,854,208
29,506,821 28,057,476

“I'nis relates to the defunct FFBL and thereafter to the merged entity i.e. FFC.

3T,
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2024 2023
Rupees 000 Rupees '000

COST OF SALES

Raw materials consumed 211 17,493,425 16,017,953

Ash dumping charges 10,930 17,029

Depreciation 4.6 1,158,583 1,083,460
. Amortization 5 2,226 11,162
| Salaries, wages and other benefits 21.2 + 1,272,360 1,145,279
- Insurance 335,294 250,698
I Facilities and utilities 21.3 275,514 331,048

Stores and spares consumed 421,071 467,036
| Travelling and lodging 123,315 93,671
| Repair, maintenance and related costs 21.4 575,785 469,815
g Communication, establishment & others expenses 125,744 129,879
i 21,794,247 20,017,128

Raw material consumed include Rs. 786.94 million (2023: Rs. 448.83 million) charged by the Parent
Company as per cost sharing agreement,

Th:s includes charges on account of employees' retirement benefits in respect of the gratuity fund amounting
‘Rs. 24.48 million (2023: Rs. 21.48 million), provident fund amounting Rs. 26.85 million (2023. Rs. 24,90
imillion} and deferred employee benefits amounting Rs. 35.47 million (2023: Rs. 29.56 million).

fThis includes Rs. 230.98 million {2023: Rs. 295.13 million) charged by the Parent Company under cost
sharing agreement and Rs. 26.42 million {2023: Rs. 14.25 million) charged by ultimate parent, Fauiji
Foundation,

|
I his includes Rs. 132.49 million (2023: Rs. 76.56 million) in respect of air freight charges for inspection of
Iotor and repair works for STGs.

2024 2023

Note Rupees '000 Rupees '000

ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES ;
Salaries, wages and benefits 221 111,953 94,481
Dapreciation : 4.6 3,498 3,470
Amortization 5 - 1,121
Travelling and conveyance 9,515 " 8,634
Legal and professional charges 20,680 22,880
Rrinting, stationery & supplies 1,242 568
Fee and subscription 739 3,140
tilities and communication 8,173 10,595
Insurance 2,124 2,135
uditors' remuneration 22.2 3,285 1,731
ithers 7,977 4,215

W 169,188 152,980
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This includes charges on acco
R:s.l 2.46 million (2023: Rs. 1.96 million),
and deferred employee benefits amounting Rs. 3.56 million {

unt of employees’ retirement benefits in respect of the gratuity fund amounting
provident fund amounting Rs. 2.71 million (2023: Rs. 2.41 million)

2023: Rs. 2.21 million).

Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
Augditors' remuneration Note Rupees '000 Rupees '000
Statutory audit fee 1,100 861
Certifications, FFBL merger related special audit etc 1,780 590
Out of pocket expenses 405 280
: 3,285 1,731
2024 2023
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES Rupees '600 Rupees '000
Wolkers' Profit Participation Fund 353,536 223,941
Workers' Welfare Fund 14,722 8,974
Corporate social responsibility (CSR) 231 69,660 54,240
437,918 287,155

This amount relates to contribution towards CSR initiatives undertaken by the Fauji Foundation during the
year with the approval of the Board.

. 2024 2023
OTHER INCOME Rupees '000 Rupees '000
lncc:ame from financial assets
{nterest on bank deposits
& short term investments 241 73,937 14,377
Income from non-financial assets
Sale of scrap 52,141 33,256
Loss on disposal of STG 1 & 2 Stator's 4.2 (76,423) -
Insurance claim 24.2 603,255 -
Gain / (Loss) on vehicles disposal 4.1 780 {569)

528,612 {569)
Technical services 35,197 32,499
Others 33 5,067

615,983 71,153

This includes profit of Rs. 1.53 million (2023: Rs. 0.35 million) received on deposit held with Askari Bank
Limited (a related party}.

The insurance claim of Rs. 603,26 Million pertains to the newly procured stators for STG1&2

0L
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FINANCE COST

Interest on long term finance facilities
Interest on short term borrowings
Amortization of transaction cost
Exchange loss

Bank charges

TAXATION

Current tax

- Current year
- Prior year
Deferred tax

- Current year

- Prior year

Reconciliation of tax charge for the year
Accounting profit before tax

Tax at applicable tax rate of 39% (2023: 39%)

Tax effect of exempt income

Tax effect of prior year charge

Tax effect of alternate corporate tax / minimum tax
Impact of difference in tax rate on investment in associate
Deferred tax impact of prior year charge

QOthers

4.

2024 2023

Rupees '000 Rupees '000
2,110,703 2,985,194
267,583 938,522
106,887 37,066
22,885 251,835
1,203 1,148
2,509,261 4,218,765
259,730 229,620
(27,222) 36,545
44,396 80,064

= 94,781
276,904 441,010
7,780,443 4,459,657
3,034,573 1,739,266
(2,689,884) (1,378,747}
(27,222) 386,545
(31,581} (73,086)
(14,587) (16,546)

- 94,781

5,805 38,797
276,904 441,010
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27 FINANGIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including thelir levels in
the fair value hierarchy.

|
! Carrying amount Fair vafue
Financial Fairvalue Finangcial
assets at through  liabillties at Level Level Level
amortized profit or amortized e 1 2 3 el
cost loss cost
December 31, 2024 Rupees '000 Rupees '000
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Trade debts . 3,765,628 = 2 3,765,628 - c - -
Loans,:,‘ advances, prepayments & other 673,674 - - 673,674 - - =
receivdbles
Bank balances 2,355,776 - - 2,355,776 - - -
Total . 6,795,078 - - 6,795,078 - - - -
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Trade & olher payables . - 2,222490 2,2224% - - - .
Short term borrowings including mark-up - - 7,083,665 7,063,665 - - - -
Long term loan including mark-up - - - = = - 2
Total . . - 9,286,155 9,286,166 “ - - -
i Carrying value Fair value
: Financial Fair valug Financial
; assetls at liabilities at Level Level Level
' . through - Total Total
amortized amortized 1 2 3
| cost profit or loss cost
December 31, 2023 Rupees '000 Rupees '000
anancia( assefs not measured at fair value
Trade debts 4,615,411 - - 4,615.411 - - - .
Loans, advances, prepayments & other - - - - -
receivables 419,081 - 419,081
Short term investment - = - = - 2 - -
Bank balances 2,869,892 - - 2,869,992 - - .
Total ' 7,904,484 - - 7,804,484 - - -
Financial ifabiilties not measured at fair value
Trade & other payables - - 1,076,108 1,076,108 - - - -
Short term borrowings including mark-up - - 5,536,840 5,535,840 - - - -
Long term loan including mark-up - - 14,729,366 14,729,366 - - - -
Total - 21,342,315 21,342,315 - - - -

The table analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as

follows:
Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are cbservable for the asset or liabliity, either directly (i.e., as

prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs).

ARG -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

I
The C(!Jrhpany has exposures to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Creéj risk
- Liquidity risk
. Market risk

and oversight of the Company's risk managemenl

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishmenl
k management policies.

framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's 1is

nalyse the risks faced by the Company, 1o set

cies are established to identify and a
d to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems

arket conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through ils
dures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment

The Company's risk management poli
appropriate risk limits and controls, an
are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in m
training and management standards and proce
in which ali employees understand their roles.

|
The Bogrd of Directors of the Company oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's Tisk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the

risks faced by the Company.

Credit rilsk

nancial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other parly by failing

Credit risk represents the risk that one party lo a fi
{ of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The

to discharge an obligation. The carrying amoun
maximurln exposure 1o credit risk at the reporling date was as follows:

2024 2023
Rupees '000 Rupees 000

Trade debls 3,792,214 4,641,997
Loans, advances, prepayments & other receivables 673,674 419,081
Bank balances 2,354,521 2,868,598
The ageing of trade debls of related party (FFC) al the reporting date is as follows:
- not yet due 1,747,150 2,327,952
- from 31 lo 90 days 4,331 12,960
- from 91 to 180 days 3,418 4,607
- over 180 days 16,396 -

1,771,295 2,345,519
The ageing of trade debts other than related parly at the reporting date is as follows:
- not yet due ' 468,786 1,149,487
- from 31 to 90 days 140,581 170,368
- from 91 to 180 days 17,404 58,442
- over 180 days 1,394,148 918,181

2,020,919 2,296,478

WA -
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|
The credit quality financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to ext
ratings (if avallable) or to historical information about counterparty default rate.

Agency 2024 2023

emal credil

Short Long
Term Term Rupees 000 Rupees '000
Trade: debts:
Counterparties with external !
credit rating ‘
K-Eleétrip Limited A1+ AA VIS 1,914,519 2,196,338
FFC- parent company A-ft AA+ VIS 4,771,295 2,345,015
: 3,685,814 4,541,353
Counterparties without external
credil rating
Others | 106,400 100,644
. 3,792,214 4.641,997

d approach, while expected credit loss on others was

Expec:teéi credit loss was calculated on trade debts using simplifie
hat, as of reparting date the ECL on trade debts and

calculated using general approach. The Company has estimated t
other receiveable is insignificant to these financial statements.
2024 2023
Rupees '000 Rupees '000

Counterpadies without external credit rating
Loans, advances, prepayments & other receivables 673,674 . 419,081

Short term investments and bank balances:

and bank balances are subject lo the requirements of IFRS 9, the identified

The Company's short term investments
ably high credit ralings.

impairment loss was immaterial as the counter parties have reason

Short Long Agency 2024 2023
Banks balances: Term Term Rupees '000 Rupees '000
Counterparties with external credit rating
National Bank of Pakistan Al+ AAA VIS 102,099 4,149
Habib B:Ignk Limited At+ AAA VI3 31,196 1,087,918
Meezan Bank Limited Al+ AAA VIS 95 178
United Bank Limited Al+ AAA VIS 8,603 7.227
Silk Bank Limited Al+ AA VIS 13 1
Faysal Bank Limited Al+ AA VIS 106 15
Bank Alfalah Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 6,214 5415
MCB Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 424 591
Dubat Islamic Bank ) Al+ AA VIS 87 79
Bank of Punjab Al+ AA¥ PACRA 215 394
J§ Bank Limited Al+ AA PACRA 1 .
AskariIBank Limited A+ AR+ ., PACRA 2,204,362 1,762,616
Habib Metropolitan Bank Al+ Ab+ PACRA 29 .
Soneri Bank Limited Al+ AA PAGCRA 1,077 5
2,354,521 2,868,508

d an allowance on its balances with banks based on 12 months

Being low risk instruments, the Company has assesse
ECL rate on bank balances and short term investments round to

ECL. Based upon above mentioned high credit ratings,
zero.
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28.2 Liquidity risk
will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fali due. The Company's
ure, as far as possible, that it-will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its

d stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage
| maturities of financial Habilities exciuding the impact of

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company
approach to managing liquidity is to ens
liabilities when due, under both normal an
to the Company's reputation. The following are the contractua

netting agreements;
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at December 31, 2024

Trade & other  Short term Long term

| payables borrowings finance facilities Total
' Rupees '000
Carrying amounts 1,647,108 7,063,665 - 8,710,773
Contractual cashflows 1,647,108 7,063,665 - 8,710,773
Six mél’;ths oriess 4,647,108 7,063,665 - 8,710,773
Sixto t\¢relve months - . - -
One lo jwo years - - 5
Two to five years c - -
Later than five years . = =
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at December 31, 2023
: Trade & other ~ Shortterm  Long term finance
payables borrowings facilities Total
Rupees '000
Carrying amounts 643,504 5,536,840 12,187,378 18,367,722
Contractual cashflows 643,504 5,536,840 14,729,366 20,909,710
Six months or less 643,504 5,536,840 2,261,112 8,441,456
Six to twelve months - - 2,227,646 2,227,646
One to two years - - 4,348,759 4,348,759
- - 5,891,849 5,891,849

Two lo five years
Later than five years

28.3 Market fisk

|
Market risk is the rigk thal the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rales
or the market price due to change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in markel sentiments, speculative
activitieg, supply and demand of securities and liquidity in the market. The Company is exposed to currency, price and

interest rate risk only.

Price rigk
The Company exposure to equity securities price risk arise from investment held by the Company in FFL and classified in
the statement of financial position at the fair value.

Currency Risk
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future
nly from future commercial transactions or receivables and payables

in foreigh exchange rates. Currency risk arises mai
that exisll due 1o transactions in foreign currencies.

Financia] liabilities include Rs. 501.10 million (2023: Rs. 14.84 million) which are subject to currency risk.

WATLL
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The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows based on following amounts

2024 2023
US Dollars 1,798,432 44,050
_ 1,000 21,020

I
Euro |

The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year:

Average rates Reporting date rate

! 2024 2023 2024 2023

: Rupees Rupees
US Dollars 278.48 282.81 278.85 282 .40
Euro 301.24 306.41 289.66 313.11

Sensitivity analysis

A 15% strengthening of the functional currency against foreign currencies at December 31, 2024 would have increased
the profit by Rs. 65.36 million (2023: Rs. 1.94 million). A 15% weakening of the functional currency against foreign
currencies at December 31, 2024 would have had the equal but opposite effect of these amounts. The analysis assumes

that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

Intere;st rate risk

The interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will flucluate because of

changes in markel interest rates. Interesl rate exposure arises from current account with the Parent Company, short and
long term deposits with banks. At the balance sheet date the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest bearing

financial instruments is:
Effective interest rates Carrying amount

2024 2023 2024 2023

Variable rate instruments Rupees '000 Rupees '000

Financial assets

Cash & Bank balances 4.5% 10 20.51% 7.5%1020.51% 2,355,776 2,869,992
Financial liabilities
1-month to J-
month KIBOR 1-month to 3~ .
and spread month KIBOR
ranging -2% to  plus 0.10% to
Short term borrowings 0.15% 0.20% 7,063,665 5,536,840
3-month KIBOR . '
and spread 3-month KIBOR
: ranging from plus 0.5% to
Long term finance facilities 0.5% to 0.75% 0.75% - 12,187,378
: 7,063,665 T 17,724,218

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
Therefore, a change in interest rate at the balance sheet date would not affect profit or loss of the Company.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 400 basis points in inlerest rates through out the year would have increased / (decreased) profit by the
amounts $hown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.

impact on profit for the year
400 bhasis points 400 basis
increase points

Rupees ‘000 Rupees ‘000

Cash flow sensitivity
Variable rate instruments - 2024

Variable rate instruments - 2023

MRAZLY-

{188,316) 188,316
{594,169) 594,169




N AF

. . -37-
} 0

29 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

30

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor and creditor confidence and to
sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital, which the
Company defines as net profit after taxation divided by total shareholders' equity. The Board of Directors also
monitors the level of dividend to ordinary shareholders. There were no changes to the Company's approach to
capital management during the year and the Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

The tdtal net debt to equity ratio as at December 31, 2024 based on reported value of debt and equity was
17%:83% {2023: 45%:55%)

The Cgmpany finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with view
of maiqtaining ah appropriate mix between various source of finance for optimal risk mitigation.

RECONCILIATION Ol'-;- MOVEMENT OF LIABILITIES TO CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM

FINAN:C]NG ACTIVITIES

Liabilities
Long term Others Total
i finance facilities
o Rupeas '000
Balance at January 1, 2024 12,187,378 - 12,187,378
Changes from non-cash items
Intere'stji accrual reversed (5,776} - {5,776)
Addition in transaction costs {(45,704) . (45,704)
Amortisation of transaction costs 108,887 - 106,887
Dividend declared - - -
Total cﬁanges from non-cash items 55,407 55,407
Changes from financing cash flows
(12,242,7885) - {12,242,785)

Repayment of long term loan
Receipt of long term loan
Dividend paid

Total changes from ﬁnéncing cash flows

Balance at December 31, 2024

(12,242,785)

- (12,242,785)

Liabilities
Long term Others Total
finance facilities
Rupees "000

Balance at January 1, 2023 11,326,936 - 11,326,936
Changes from non-cash items
Interest acerual reversed 5,776 S . 5776
Addition in transaction costs {31,808) - (31,808)
Amortisation of transaction costs 37,066 - 37,066
Dividend declared 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
Total changes from non-cash items 3,011,036 - 3,011,036
Changes from financing cash flows
Repayment of long term loan (3,150,584} - {3,150,594)
Receipt of long term loan 4,000,000 - 4,000,000
Dividend paid (3,000,000) - {3,000,000)
Total changes from financing cash flows (2,150,594) - (2,150,594)
Balance at December 31, 2023 12,187,378 - 12,187,378

G |
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Note

DISCLOSURE IN RELATION TO
SHARIAH COMPLIANCE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Financing obtained as per Islamic mode

|
Long term finance facilities 13
Short term borrowings 16
Mark-up accrued 13 & 16
Shariah-compliant bank balances 11
Statement of profit or loss & other
comprehensive income
Revenue earned 20
Profit paid on Shariah Compliant financing 25
Shariah compliant other income
Profit earned from bank deposits 24
Sale of scrap 24
Gain / (Loss) on vehicles disposal 24
Technical services 24
Others 24
Non-Shariah compliant other income
Profit earned from bank deposits 24
Gain/ (Loss) on assets disposal - insurance claim 20.4

Relationship with Shariah-Compliant

National Bank of Pakistan
Habib Bank Limited
United Bank Limited
Dubai islamic Bank
Meezan Bank Limited
Faysal Bank Limited
Sindh Bank Limited

Silk Bank Limited

WY

2024

Rupees 000

3,800,000
13,133

100,704

29,506,821

974,550

16,016
52,141
780
35,197
33

57,920
527,832

2023
Rupees '000

5,066,872
1,499,996

144,752

4,082

28,057,476

1,411,784

962
33,256
(569)
32,499
5,967

13,415




LR

32

32.1

32.2

30

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

erilizer Company Limited {FFC) with 75% holding {2023: defunct FFBL held 75%

d by Fauji Foundation (FF) which holds 43.51% shares in the holding company and
are related parties of the

The Company is a subsidiary of Fauji F

shares in the Company) . FFC is sponsore
25% shares of the Company. Therefore, all subsidiaries and associated undertakings of FF and FFC

Company. The Company has also acquired 15.87% equity stake in Fauji Foods Limited (FFL).

The :Cornpany has related parties which comprise of entities under common directorship, directors and key management
personnel. Detail of transactions with related parties, other than those which have been specifically disclosed elsewhers in

thesq' financial statements, are as follows:

Nature of relationship 2024 2023

. Rupees '000 Rupees '000
Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited {2023:FFBL) Parent Company
Balance payable as at 212,464 143,788
Balance receivable as at 1,771,295 2,345,519
Raw hnaterials and services received from parent company 1,076,620 798,491
Sale of electricity, power and steam 19,033,11C 16,704,496
Charged to parent company in respect of utilities / other costs 310,223 149,711
Rendering of technical sefvices 3,574 446
Payments made 1,107,143 852,937
Dividend paid - 2,250,000
Recejpts 24,087,763 25,844,363
Fau]l% Foundation Ultimate Parent
payments for CSR initiatives 69,660 54,240
Payrr::enls for costs charged against services 20,4186 14,252
Dividend paid - 750,000
Faujl, Foods Limited Associate
Investment 4,000,000 4,000,000
Askalri Bank Limited ~ Commeon Directorship
Prof}tlon PLS account 1,527 352
Mark|up on long term loan - 78,282
Balance held with bank 2,204,362 1,762,616
FaujijCement Company Limited Common Directorship
Rendering of services 138 -
Receivable 19 .
Receipts 157 -
Fauji Trans Terminal Limited Common Directorship
Rendering of services 939 463
Receivable - 8
Receipts 1,090 531
Fourdation Power Company Dharki Ltd. Common Directorship
Rendering of services - 1,079
Recejpts - 1,219
FauﬁJMeat Limited Common Directorship
Rendering of services - - 175

- 198

Rece%pts
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2024 2023
] Rupees '000 Rupees '000
Other Related Parties

Key Management Personnel Remuneration 126,878 122,176
Directors Meeting fes 2,105 2,465
FPCL Employees' Provident Fund Contributions 29,559 27,305
Payable - 3,109
FPCL Employees’ Gratuity Fund Provision 26,936 23,431
' Payment 21,183 22,703
0 Payable 25,437 21,183
FPCL Workers' Profit Participation Fund Provision 353,536 223,041
‘ - Payment 223,941 221,799
Payable 353,536 223,941

Number of Number of shares

The.pattern of shareholding of the Company is as follow;
Y shares
FFC | 644,062,491 644,062,491
FF 214,687,500 214,687,500
9 9

Non‘iiriwe Directors

b
REMl?rlNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
The aiggregate amount charged in the financial statements for the period in respect of remuneration, including certain benefils
are glven below:

. 2024 2023
; . Rupees ‘000 Rupees '000
: ‘| Directors Executives | [ Directors | Executives |
Meelirig fee 2,105 . 2,485 .
Managerial remuneration . 193,923 - 153,631
Housing and Utilities Allowance S 193,994 - 153,674
Contribution to providant fund - 19,437 - 15,363
Contribution to gratuity fund - 20,128 - 17,191
Bonus! . 120,834 - 150,520
Others - 112,811 . 77,669
L 2,105 661,127 2,465 568,048
14 , 72 11 52

Number of persons

For the purpose of this disclosure, Execulive means an employee other than Chief Executive Officer and directors of the
Company whose basic salary exceeds Rs 1.2 milllon for the year.,

Chief Executive Officer of the Parent Company is serving as Chief Executive Officer of the Company. No remuneration to the
Chief Efcecutive Officer is paid or payable by the Company in this respect.

Certainiexecutives are also provided with the use of company maintained car and fuel amounting to Rs. 34.23 million (2023:
Rs. 30.46 million) in accordance with the terms of their employment.

3L
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CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION
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installed capacity based on 8,784 hours (2023: 8,760 hours}

Actur:;ﬂ energy delivered
!
Steaf

Instal: led capacity based on 8,784 hours {2023; 8,760 hours)

Actqal steam delivered

REC'{\LSSIF!CATION OF COMPARATIVES

Corhlésponding figures have been rearranged and r
presentation as per reporting framework. However, the

eclassified as follows, for the purposes of comparis
change in corresponding figures has no material impact on previously

repoited financia! position, financial performance and cashflow of the Company.

Reclassified from

Trade and other payables
Cost/of sales
Administrative expenses

GENFRAL

Figur:es have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees.

I

|
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

|

Totaljemployees at end of the year
Average employees during the year

These financial statem

v 25 .

)
Cm}é,ﬁc/ W
|

Reclassifed to

Contract liabilities
Other operating expenses
Other operating expenses

2024 2023
Megawatt
641,232 639,480
483,620 410,235
Metric ton
1,756,800 1,752,000
1,529,228 1,312,031

on and better

Rupees '000
24,068
44,561
9,679
2024 2023
Number of employees
33 314
322 315

ents were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company in their heeting heid on

RUAAA

R CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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BACKGROUND
1.1. GENERALITIES

1.1.1 FFBL Power Company Limited (FPCL) is.an Unlisted Public|Limited
Company incorporated under Section 32 of the Co panies
Ordinance 1984 (XLVIl of 1984) on 27th day of June, 2014 having
Corporate Universat identification No. 0088996. The Comppny was
formed for setting up a coal-fired cogeneration power plant to

1.1.1.1 Sell power to K-Electric (formally known as Karach| Electric
Supply Corporation) and/or Bulk Power Consumers
1.1.1.2 Sell power to Fauji Fertilizer Company (FFC) to meet the
requirements of the FFG fertilizer plant.
1.2. SPONSER
1.2.1 FPCL is a fully owned subsidiary of Fauji Fertilizer Company & Fauji

group (FF). FFCisa public limited company incorporated in |Pakistan

under the Companies Ordinance, 1984.

1.3. THEPROJECT

1.3.1 The FPCL coal-based power plant is located within the Pgrt Qasim

industrial Zone, Karachi. The facility consists of:

1.3.3

e Two CFB boilers, each rated at 250 MTPH

+ Multiple steam turbine generators (STGs) supporting a total

licensed generation capacity of 118 MW

» Ahybrid operational modet using 50 Hz and 60 Hz systems for

diverse consumer needs
The plant has historically supplied:

e 52 MW to K-Electric
o 20 MW (plus steam) to FFC(formerly FFBL)
e Remaining power to internal auxitiaries

FPCL now seeks to include new Bulk Power Consumer (BPC) in its

Generation Licence, namely:

«“FonGreen Silicon Technologies Limited (FoST) - off taking

>07 MW from 60Hz System”

No physical expansion is being proposed. The suppliestothe BPC will
be met entirely through optimized reallocation of FPCL’sexisting 60

Hz generation facility .
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2%LOGATION:& SITE. CONDITIONS

2.1. LOCATION

2.1.1 The Project Site is within the existing FPCL Plant site located
in the Eastern Industrial Zone, Bin Qasim, Karachi.

2.1.2 Given the following characteristics for site selection. The site
meets the essential criteria

2.1.2.1 Land availability within existing Plant site.
2.1.2.2 Reliable Power and Steam availabitity.
2.1.2.3  Availability of water and other utilities in near proximity.

2.1.2.4 Suitability for the construction of intake / putfall
structures.

2.1.25 Sea Port Vicinity for equipment and more importantty
for Rock Phosphate import.

2.1.2.6  Availability of road infrastructure.

2.1.2.7° Lowcostof site development and suitable topographic
/ geological conditions.

2.1.2.8 Minimum socio-economic and environment
implications of the Project such as displacements,
availability of effluents disposal area etc.

2.1.3 The site co-ordinates are 67 © 25’ longitudes east, 24°50°
latitude north, about 45 km east/ south east from Karachi.
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2.2. GLIMATIC & AMBIENT CONDITIONS

FPCL Plant Layout

Average 1005 mbar+10 -
mbar
Maximum variation +10 mbar in hour -
speed
-20 mbarin hour -
TEMPERATUREVANDIHUMIDY
Design conditions 43 °C with RH 45%
Foroutdoor Electrical & | 50 °C with RH 85%
Instruments




oy

Average conditions 31 °C with RH 60%
(Yearly)

Minimum (winter) 1 °C with RH 100%

Maximum in 24 hours 207 ] mm

Puring 1 hour -

-for storm water sewer 50 mm/hour
-for waste water
40 mm/hour
treatment

3..PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY

The existing power generation configuration at the facility demonstrates a diversified
setup utilizing both 50 Hz and 60 Hz systems to cater to varying operatjonal and

consumer demands. Steam is produced by Boilers 1 and 2, delivering a
total of approximately 490 tons per hour {TPH). This steam is distributed a
Steam Turbine Generators (STGs), which operate at different freque
capacities to optimize load sharing and system efficiency. The con
supports both internal and external power needs and reflects a balanced
of installed generation assets.

3.1. Existing Configuration Details

« Total Steam Production: ~490 TPH from Boilers 1 & 2, fo
thermal input basis for all STGs. o

+ STG 1:10 MW capacity, operating at 60 Hz, currently generat

e STG 2 & STG 3: Each with a 24 MW capacity, operating
currently generating ~12.5 MW each. ’

ombined

ong four
cies and
iguration
Itilization

rming the

ng 9 MW.
at 50 Hz,

s STG 4: 60 MW capacity, operating at 50 Hz, currently generating 44

Mw,
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3.2. Post Modification Configuration

Following the proposed modification, the plant will continue utilizing its
existing coal-fired boilers to produce steam, with a revised and pptimized
steam allocation strategy aimed at enhancing efficiency and meeting the
additional demand from a new Bulk Power Consumer (BPC). While the
overall steam production remains unchanged, the distribution gcross the
Steam Turbine Generators (STGs) has been rebalanced to accommodate
increased power output, particularly from the 24 MW upits. This
reallocation ensures better utilization of available capagity while
maintaining operational stability across both the 50 Hz and 60 Hz systems.

Steam Allocation and $TG Performance:

+ STG1(10 MW, 60 Hz): Allocated 200 TPH of steam; continugs to
operate at 9 MW, serving the 60 Hz system.
¢ STG2&STG 3(24 MW each, 50 Hz): Each unit allocated 68 TPH of
steam (previously lower); now operating at 17.5 MW each.

{increased output is intended to support the new BPC, ensuring
stable power delivery.)

« STG4(60 MW, 50 Hz}): Allocated 164 TPH of steam; continugs to
operate at 44 MW, maintaining baseline supply to existing 50 Hz
consumers.

This reconfiguration enhances system efficiency without requiring any
new capacity addition and aligns steam utilization with current and future
load demands.

3.3. Optimization Strategy

+ Rebalancing of existing load through improved STG output

« Minorinternal reconfiguration of switchgear and metering

+ No additionatl boiler or turbine installations

« Use of frequency converters for BPCs operating on different
frequenéy réquirements.

3.4. Procurement and Equipment Installation
« The modification primarily focuses on reconfiguring turbine output and

upgrading power distribution infrastructure, rather than acquiring new
turbines.




Transformers and, frequency converters will be installed to f
seamless power detivery to FOST.

acilitate

Interconnection adjustments will be made to enable dedicated power

export to FoST from FPCL’s existing 60 Hz shared facility with

4.'FUEL AND EMISSIONS

FFC.

4.1.
4.1.1

4.1.2

4.1.3

4.1.4

FUEL

Fuel Source & Usage

The FPCL facility utilizes approximately 500,000 metric
annum of coal based on an estimated 310 operational day
at full load. The plant’s boiler technology is des
accommodate various grades of coal, including both imp
indigenous sources, subject to compliance with the
specifications. >

At present, the facility relies on imported coal due
availability and consistency of quality in international

tons per
5 per year
igned to
prted and
required

to better
markets.

Indigenous coal may be utilized in the future when it becomes reliabty
available and commercially viable. Owing to the facility’s close

proximity to Karachi Port, coal is received and handled th

rough the

existing infrastructure of the Karachi Port Trust (KPT) or the Pakistan

International Bulk Terminal (PIBT).

Fuel Procurement Strategy

The Company initially maintained a long-term Fuel Supply Agreement
{FSA) with Mercuria, which provided coal at fixed pricing. However, in
view of the need to maintain competitiveness under the Take-and-

Pay Agreement with K-Electric, and to ensure inclusion in
Order, FPCL has transitioned to a spot-based coal pro
strategy.

Fuel Storage and Security

To mitigate fuel supply risks, the facility is equipped wi

the Merit
curement

th a coal

storage yard having a capacity of 60,000 metric tons, which provides

autonomy for approximately 40 days of continuous operatio
plant load,

The basic characteristics of coal, that can be utilized by t
inciude a range of parameters as specified by the boiler d
combustion efficiency regquirements and, are as under:

nat100%

ne facility
2sign and
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4.2. EMISSION LIMITS

4.2.1

" Coal:Characteristics

LHV 3000 ~ 3400

Kcal/kg
Moisture 30~560 %
Ash 3~12 %
Volatile matters 20~30 %
Sulphur 0.1~1.65 %

The whole installation will be in accordance to the W

prid Bank

Guidelines (WBG) and Pakistan National Environmentgl Quality
Standards (NEQS). The project will be designed to remain within the

following emissions limits:

PG He
NOx 51 0 mgle3
SOy 500 mg/Nm*
Dust 50 mg/Nm]
CC 800 mg/Nm’®

5.1.1

5.1.2

Frequency COnverter Integratlon

Electrical Specifications

Converter Type

Frequency Regulation: =0.1 Hz or better.

‘converter.

Power Capacity: 10 MW (single or multiple units, egch of 2

MW).

Input Voltage: 13.8 kV, 60 Hz {(single unit), 60 Hz.
Output Voltage: 3-phase, 5-wire (3P+N+E), 50 Hz.
Input Frequency: 60 Hz.

Output Frequency: 50 Hz.

Power Factor: Adjustable > 0.95.

Efficiency: = 98% at full load.

Voltage Regulation: +1% or better.

Technology: Solid-state IGBT-based or IGCT-based {

Topology: AC-DC-AC (Rectifier + inverter) or Direct N
Converter.
Cooling System: Air-cooled.

requency

latrix




5.1.3

5.1.4

5.1.5

5.1.6

5.1.7

6:EXRECTED.POWER PRODUCTION -~

6.1. Power Production Efficiency and Reliability

+ Steam Turbine Optimization: Running 24 MW STGs at 17.5
improves plant efficiency.

+ Stable Power Distribution: Integration of a frequency conv
transformers ensures seamtess power conversion for the Data (

Protection Features

To ensure reliability, the frequency converter includes advanced

protection mechanisms:

» Overvoltage and Undervoltage Protection.
« Overcurrent and Short-Circuit Protection.
« Thermal Overload and Surge Protection.

Control and Communication

+ Control System: PLC/DCS integration with HMI cont

« Communication Protocols: Modbus, Profibus, Ether

« Remote Monitoring: SCADA—ready and loT-enabted f
time diagnostics.

Mechanical Specifications

+ Cooling Method: Water-cooled (high efficiency) or Fq
cooled.

« Enclosure Protection: IP54 (indoor) / IP65 {outdoor).

¢ Operational Temperature Range: -10°C to +45°C,

» Humidity Resistance: = 85% non-condensing,

Compliance and Standards

» Compliance: [EC 61800, IEEE, CE, ISO 8001 certified.

» Harmonic Distortion: < 5% THD (IEEE 519 compliant

» Electromagnetic Compatibility: |IEC 61000 standards

Additional Features

« Soft Start/Stop Functionality for smooth operation.

» Redundancy for Critical Components to enhance re

s Energy Efficiency Optimization for minimal power Los

» Load Sharing Capability (Parallel Operation) ts
flexibility.

rol panel.
net/IP.
or real-

orced air-

).

iability.
BS.
D ensure

MW each

erter and
Lenter.
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6.2. Conclusion

* with national goals for industriat growth and grid reliability.

+ Grid Stability: Adjusted load balancing and distribution strategy prevents

system overload or fluctuations. o

The proposed modification is a no-expansion, low-capex optimization plan

that leverages FPCL's existing 60 Hz generation assets generation
supply power to new BPC (FoST), ensuring:
« Noincrease ininstalled capacity
¢ No adverse impact on existing off takers (KE or FFC)
e Full regulatory compliance under NEPRA’s Generation
framework

Licensing

The modification is technically feasible, commercially sound, and aligned

assets to.

Qs
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FFBL POWER COMPANY LIMITED (FPCL)

Number of Consumers and Expected Load

1. Number of Consumers

o Total Consumers: 03 (FFBL, K.E, and FonGreen Silicon Technologies Limited (FoST))
s Category: Bulk Power Consumer (BPC)
o Load Classification: FFBL: 13.8kV, K.E: 132kV, FoST: 11kV/13.8kV
2. Expected Load
s Total Expected Load: 118 MW (Gross)
e Load Breakdown:
1) 48 MW [Gross): For FFBL.
2) 33 MW (Gross): For K.E.
3} >»01 MW (Gross): For FonGreen Silicon Technologies Limited {FoST).
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